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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH OUR BUSINESS

Our business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties that you should be aware of before making an investment decision. These risks include,
but are not limited to, the following:

• There is no assurance that our commercialization efforts with respect to QINLOCK® (ripretinib), referred to as QINLOCK, including, without
limitation, our launch of QINLOCK in the EU4 (Germany, France, Italy, and Spain) and the U.K., which we refer to as key European markets, will
be successful or that we will be able to generate revenues at the levels or on the timing we expect, or at levels or on the timing necessary to
support our goals.

• Our pivotal Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK versus sunitinib in second-line gastrointestinal stromal tumor (GIST) patients with mutations
in KIT exon 11 and 17 and/or 18 and the absence of mutations in KIT exon 9, 13, and/or 14, which we also refer to as patients with mutations in
KIT exon 11 and 17/18 (the INSIGHT study), may not be successful.

• We have limited experience as a commercial company and the marketing and sale of QINLOCK or any future approved drugs may be
unsuccessful or less successful than anticipated.

• If we are not able to obtain, or if there are delays in obtaining, required regulatory approvals for our drug and drug candidates and, if applicable,
including by a third party, for any related companion diagnostic tests, or if we experience a delay in drug supply, we will not be able to
commercialize our drug candidates or continue our European geographic expansion of QINLOCK, and our ability to generate revenue will be
materially impaired.

• Our reliance on sole source third-party suppliers could harm our ability to commercialize QINLOCK or any drug candidates that may be approved
in the future.

• Our relationships with customers and third-party payors will be subject to applicable anti-kickback, fraud and abuse, and other healthcare laws and
regulations, and health information privacy and security laws, which could expose us to criminal sanctions, civil penalties, contractual damages,
reputational harm, and diminished profits and future earnings.

• Failure to obtain or maintain adequate coverage and reimbursement for new or current products could limit our ability to market those products
and decrease our ability to generate revenue.

• Recently enacted and future legislation may increase the difficulty and cost for us to obtain marketing approval of and commercialize our drug
candidates and decrease the prices we may obtain for our approved drug.

• QINLOCK or any current drug candidates, such as vimseltinib and DCC-3116, or future drug candidates, if successfully developed and approved,
may cause undesirable side effects that limit the commercial profile or result in other significant negative consequences for approved products; or
delay or prevent further development or regulatory approval with respect to drug candidates or new indications, or cause regulatory authorities to
require labeling statements, such as boxed warnings.

• We face substantial competition, which may result in others discovering, developing, or commercializing products before or more successfully
than we do.

• If the market opportunities for our approved drug or any potential expanded market for our approved drug or drug candidates are smaller than
what we estimate or if any approval that we obtain is based on a narrower definition of the patient population, our revenue potential and ability to
achieve profitability will be adversely affected.

• The commercial success of QINLOCK, and of any future approved drugs, such as vimseltinib or DCC-3116, if approved, will depend upon the
degree of market acceptance by physicians, patients, third-party payors, and others in the medical community.

• Our failure to obtain additional marketing approvals in other foreign jurisdictions would prevent QINLOCK and our drug candidates from being
marketed more extensively internationally, and any approval we are granted for QINLOCK or our drug candidates in the United States (U.S.) or
key European markets would not assure approval of QINLOCK or our drug candidates in other foreign jurisdictions.

• QINLOCK and any drug candidate for which we obtain marketing approval will be subject to ongoing enforcement of post-marketing
requirements and we could be subject to substantial penalties, including withdrawal of QINLOCK or any future approved product from the
market, if we fail to comply with all regulatory requirements. In addition, the terms of the marketing approval of QINLOCK, and any future
approved products, and ongoing regulation of our products, may limit how we manufacture and market our products and compliance with such
requirements may involve substantial resources, which could materially impair our ability to generate revenue.

• We may incur additional costs or experience delays in completing, or ultimately be unable to complete, the development and commercialization of
our drug and drug candidates.
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• If we experience delays or difficulties in the enrollment of patients in clinical trials, including in our ongoing Phase 3 INSIGHT study and Phase
1/2 study of DCC-3116, our receipt of necessary marketing approvals could be delayed or prevented.

• If serious adverse events or unacceptable side effects are identified during the development of our drug or drug candidates, we may need to
abandon or limit such development.

• We may not be able to obtain or retain orphan drug exclusivity for our drug or drug candidates.

• An outbreak of any highly infectious or contagious diseases, could seriously harm our research, development, and commercialization efforts,
increase our costs and expenses and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

• We have incurred significant operating losses since our inception and have not generated sufficient revenue to result in a profit from product sales.
We expect to incur continued losses for the foreseeable future and may never achieve or maintain profitability.

• We have a limited operating history, have not successfully completed late-stage clinical trials for any drug candidate other than QINLOCK and
vimseltinib, and have not generated sufficient revenue to result in a profit from product sales or profits from our operations. We may never achieve
or sustain profitability.

• If we are unable to raise capital when needed, or on attractive terms, we could be forced to delay, reduce, or eliminate our research or drug
development programs or commercialization efforts.

• We rely, and expect to continue to rely, on third parties to conduct our clinical trials and preclinical studies, and those third parties may not
perform satisfactorily, or may experience delays in performing these services, including failing to meet deadlines for the completion of such trials
or studies, which may harm our ability to obtain regulatory approval for or commercialize our approved drug and drug candidates and our business
could be substantially harmed.

• We contract with third parties for the manufacture of our drug candidates for preclinical testing, clinical trials, and for the manufacture of
QINLOCK. This reliance on third parties increases the risk that we will not have sufficient quantities of our drug or drug candidates or such
quantities at an acceptable cost or quality, which could delay, prevent, or impair our development or commercialization efforts.

• We may not be able to enforce our intellectual property rights throughout the world.

• If we are unable to obtain and maintain sufficient patent protection for our approved drug or drug candidates, or if the scope of the patent
protection is not sufficiently broad, third parties, including our competitors, could develop and commercialize products similar or identical to ours,
and our ability to commercialize our approved drug or drug candidates successfully may be adversely affected.

The summary risk factors described above should be read together with the text of the full risk factors below in the section entitled "Risk Factors"
and the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Form 10-Q), including our consolidated financial statements and the related
notes, as well as in other documents that we file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The risks summarized above or described in
full below are not the only risks that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not precisely known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may
also materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and future growth prospects.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements, which reflect our current views with respect to, among other things, our operations and
financial performance. All statements other than statements of historical facts contained in this Form 10-Q, including statements regarding our strategy,
future operations, future financial position, future revenue, projected costs, prospects, plan, objectives of management, and expected market growth are
forward-looking statements. You can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words such as "outlook," "believes," "expects," "potential,"
"continues," "may," "will," "should," "seeks," "approximately," "predicts," "intends," "plans," "estimates," "anticipates," or the negative version of these
words or other comparable words. Such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there are or will be
important factors that could cause actual outcomes or results to differ materially from those indicated in these statements. We believe these factors include
but are not limited to those described under "Risk Factors" and include, among other things:

• our ability to successfully commercialize or otherwise provide access to QINLOCK for the treatment of adult patients with advanced GIST who
have received prior treatment with three or more kinase inhibitors, including imatinib, in the U.S., key European markets, and any other
jurisdictions where we may receive marketing approval in the future;

• the success and cost of our plans to research, develop, and commercialize our drug candidates, including the timing of our product development
activities and clinical trials, and the timing of our investigational new drug (IND) applications, and clearance thereof, for any other drug
candidates;

• our ability to successfully complete the pivotal Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK for the potential treatment of second line GIST patients
with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18, advance our DCC-3116 program through clinical development, and nominate additional drug
candidates from our switch control inhibitor platform;

• if we experience delays or difficulties in the enrollment of patients in clinical trials, including in our ongoing INSIGHT study and Phase 1/2
study of DCC-3116, our receipt of necessary marketing approvals could be delayed or prevented;

• the timing or likelihood of regulatory actions, filings, and approvals for our current and future drug candidates, including our ability to obtain
and maintain regulatory approval for QINLOCK or obtain and maintain regulatory approval for any of our current or future drug candidates, and
any related restrictions, limitations, and/or warnings in the label of QINLOCK or any of our current or future drug candidates that may receive
marketing approval;

• the rate and degree of market acceptance for QINLOCK or any current or future drug candidate for which we may receive marketing approval;

• our ability and plans in continuing to maintain our commercial infrastructure and successfully marketing and selling QINLOCK and any current
or future drug candidate for which we may receive marketing approval, including our plans with respect to the focus and activities of our sales
force, the nature of our marketing, market access, patient support activities, and our pricing of QINLOCK;

• the pricing and reimbursement of, and the extent to which patient assistance programs are utilized for, QINLOCK, or any current or future drug
candidates for which we may receive marketing approval;

• our expectations regarding the size and growth potential of the markets for QINLOCK or any of our current or future drug candidates for which
we may receive marketing approval and our ability to serve those markets;

• our ability to obtain funding for our strategic plans and operations;

• the development of companion diagnostic tests for our drug or any of our current or future drug candidates, if applicable;

• our ability to manufacture or obtain sufficient quantities of QINLOCK or our drug candidates, on a timely basis, to support our planned clinical
trials and commercialization of QINLOCK or any of our current or future drug candidates for which we may receive marketing approval;

• the therapeutic benefit, effectiveness, and safety profile of QINLOCK and our drug candidates;

• our commercial preparedness efforts and our ability to successfully commercially launch, or where permitted, otherwise provide access to our
drug or drug candidates, if and when they are approved or receive pricing or reimbursement approval;

• the performance and experience of our licensee, Zai Lab (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Zai), to successfully develop and commercialize QINLOCK in
the People's Republic of China (the PRC), Hong Kong, Taiwan, Macau, and Singapore, these territories collectively referred to as Greater
China, under the terms and conditions of our license agreement, and the performance of our distributors in other territories;
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• the potential benefits of our combination strategy for DCC-3116;

• our ability to attract additional licensees and/or collaborators or distributors with development, regulatory, and commercialization expertise;

• future agreements with third parties in connection with the commercialization of QINLOCK or any of our current or future drug candidates for
which we may receive marketing approval;

• our expectations regarding our ability to obtain, maintain, enforce, and defend our intellectual property protection for QINLOCK or our drug
candidates;

• the success and timing of competing therapies that are or may become available;

• our ability to attract and retain key scientific, medical, commercial, and management personnel;

• the accuracy of our estimates regarding expenses, future revenues, capital requirements, use of proceeds, and need for additional financing; and

• the impact of global economic and political developments on our business, including high inflation and capital market disruptions, the war in
Ukraine, economic sanctions and economic slowdowns or recessions, including any that may result from such developments and the COVID-19
pandemic or other public health concern, which could harm our commercialization efforts for QINLOCK as well as the value of our common
stock and our ability to access capital markets.

These factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included
elsewhere in this Form 10-Q and our prior filings with the SEC. You should read this Form 10-Q and the documents that we have filed as exhibits to this
Form 10-Q completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect. The forward-looking
statements contained in this Form 10-Q are made as of the date of this Form 10-Q, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or review any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise.

NOTE REGARDING TRADEMARKS

The Deciphera logo and the QINLOCK® word mark and logo are registered trademarks and the Deciphera word mark is a trademark of Deciphera
Pharmaceuticals, LLC.

We have, in certain cases, omitted the ®, ©, and ™ designations for these and other trademarks used in this Form 10-Q. Nevertheless, all rights to
such trademarks are reserved. These and other trademarks referenced in this Form 10-Q are the property of their respective owners.
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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.    Financial Statements.

Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited, in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 108,087  $ 64,741 
Short-term marketable securities 230,988  259,745 
Accounts receivable, net 27,549  22,429 
Inventory 27,105  20,561 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 23,847  25,482 

Total current assets 417,576  392,958 
Long-term marketable securities 37,850  14,550 
Long-term investments—restricted and other long-term assets 3,337  3,277 
Property and equipment, net 5,864  6,707 
Operating lease assets 33,209  36,547 

Total assets $ 497,836  $ 454,039 
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 21,453  $ 18,612 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 68,005  64,622 
Operating lease liabilities 3,436  3,235 

Total current liabilities 92,894  86,469 
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 23,272  25,879 

Total liabilities 116,166  112,348 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share; 5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding —  — 
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share; 125,000,000 shares authorized; 79,975,625 shares and

67,637,351 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively 799  676 
Additional paid-in capital 1,762,882  1,575,361 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (896) (983)
Accumulated deficit (1,381,115) (1,233,363)

Total stockholders' equity 381,670  341,691 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 497,836  $ 454,039 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022

Revenues:
Product revenues, net $ 41,820  $ 32,318  $ 112,362  $ 92,624 
Collaboration revenues 1,493  3,656  2,700  5,067 

Total revenues 43,313  35,974  115,062  97,691 
Cost and operating expenses:

Cost of sales 1,286  3,344  1,947  5,525 
Research and development 62,463  47,485  175,524  139,755 
Selling, general, and administrative 33,252  30,026  97,311  87,972 

Total cost and operating expenses 97,001  80,855  274,782  233,252 
Loss from operations (53,688) (44,881) (159,720) (135,561)
Other income (expense):

Interest and other income, net 4,107  1,838  11,968  2,565 
Total other income (expense), net 4,107  1,838  11,968  2,565 

Net loss $ (49,581) $ (43,043) $ (147,752) $ (132,996)

Net loss per share—basic and diluted $ (0.58) $ (0.55) $ (1.75) $ (1.82)

Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic and diluted 85,788,613  78,206,647  84,506,593  73,129,804 

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss $ (49,581) $ (43,043) $ (147,752) $ (132,996)
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities 250  (422) 65  (1,619)
Currency translation adjustment (179) (352) 22  (474)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 71  (774) 87  (2,093)
Total comprehensive loss $ (49,510) $ (43,817) $ (147,665) $ (135,089)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share amounts)

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders'

EquityShares Amount

Balance, June 30, 2023 78,772,870  $ 788  $ 1,736,143  $ (967) $ (1,331,534) $ 404,430 
Issuance of common stock, net of underwriting discounts,

commissions and offering costs 1,004,185  10  14,612  —  —  14,622 
Issuance of common stock under stock option and incentive

plans 198,570  1  967  —  —  968 
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  11,160  —  —  11,160 
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  71  —  71 
Net loss —  —  —  —  (49,581) (49,581)
Balance, September 30, 2023 79,975,625  $ 799  $ 1,762,882  $ (896) $ (1,381,115) $ 381,670 

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders'

EquityShares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2022 67,637,351  $ 676  $ 1,575,361  $ (983) $ (1,233,363) $ 341,691 
Issuance of common stock, net of underwriting discounts,

commissions and offering costs 8,990,296  90  149,023  —  —  149,113 
Issuance of common stock upon pre-funded warrant exercise 2,427,693  24  —  —  —  24 
Issuance of common stock under stock option and incentive

and employee stock purchase plans 920,285  9  1,968  —  —  1,977 
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  36,530  —  —  36,530 
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  87  —  87 
Net loss —  —  —  —  (147,752) (147,752)
Balance, September 30, 2023 79,975,625  $ 799  $ 1,762,882  $ (896) $ (1,381,115) $ 381,670 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share amounts)

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders'

EquityShares Amount

Balance, June 30, 2022 66,815,511  $ 668  $ 1,549,996  (1,268) $ (1,144,385) $ 405,011 
Issuance of common stock upon pre-funded warrant exercise 575,482  6  —  —  —  6 
Issuance of common stock under stock option and incentive

plans 38,727  —  203  —  —  203 
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  12,373  —  —  12,373 
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  (774) —  (774)
Net loss —  —  —  —  (43,043) (43,043)
Balance, September 30, 2022 67,429,720  $ 674  $ 1,562,572  $ (2,042) $ (1,187,428) $ 373,776 

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders'

EquityShares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2021 58,549,644  $ 585  $ 1,358,516  $ 51  $ (1,054,432) $ 304,720 
Issuance of common stock, net of underwriting discounts,

commissions and offering costs 7,501,239  75  163,278  —  —  163,353 
Issuance of common stock upon pre-funded warrant exercise 892,798  9  —  —  —  9 
Issuance of common stock under stock option and incentive

and employee stock purchase plans 486,039  5  1,149  —  —  1,154 
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  39,629  —  —  39,629 
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  (2,093) —  (2,093)
Net loss —  —  —  —  (132,996) (132,996)
Balance, September 30, 2022 67,429,720  $ 674  $ 1,562,572  $ (2,042) $ (1,187,428) $ 373,776 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited, in thousands)
Nine Months Ended September 30,

2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (147,752) $ (132,996)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows used in operating activities:

Stock-based compensation expense 36,530  39,629 
Depreciation expense 1,644  2,345 
Noncash lease expense 3,339  3,035 
Net accretion of discounts on marketable securities (5,545) (390)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (5,178) (3,014)
Inventory (1,358) (3,746)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,637  2,034 
Other long-term assets (61) (167)
Accounts payable 2,844  (250)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (1,581) (22,013)
Operating lease liabilities (2,407) (2,171)

Net cash flows used in operating activities (117,888) (117,704)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of marketable securities (262,915) (240,592)
Maturities of marketable securities 273,195  190,839 
Sales of marketable securities 785  — 
Purchases of property and equipment (715) (860)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities 10,350  (50,613)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from offerings of common stock, net of underwriting discounts and commissions 149,747  163,778 
Proceeds from pre-funded warrant exercise 24  9 
Payments of offering costs (634) (425)
Proceeds from stock option exercises and employee stock purchase plan 1,977  1,154 
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 151,114  164,516 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 43,576  (3,801)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (230) (724)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 64,741  87,063 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 108,087  $ 82,538 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

1. Nature of the Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of the Business

Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the Company) is a biopharmaceutical company focused on discovering, developing, and commercializing
important new medicines to improve the lives of people with cancer. Leveraging its proprietary switch-control inhibitor platform and deep expertise in
kinase biology, the Company designs kinase inhibitors to target the switch pocket region of the kinase with the goal of developing potentially
transformative medicines. Through its patient-inspired approach, the Company seeks to develop a broad portfolio of innovative medicines to improve
treatment outcomes. QINLOCK, the Company's switch-control tyrosine kinase inhibitor, was discovered using its proprietary drug discovery platform and
designed for the treatment of gastrointestinal stromal tumor (GIST). QINLOCK is approved in Australia, Canada, China, the European Union (EU), Hong
Kong, Israel, Macau, New Zealand, Singapore, Switzerland, Taiwan, the United Kingdom (U.K.), and the United States (U.S.) for the treatment of fourth-
line advanced GIST. The Company wholly owns QINLOCK and all of its drug candidates with the exception of a development and commercialization out-
license agreement for QINLOCK in Greater China. In addition to QINLOCK, the Company has developed a robust pipeline of novel drug candidates using
its switch-control kinase inhibitor platform, including vimseltinib and DCC-3116.

The Company is subject to risks and uncertainties common to companies in the biotechnology industry, including, but not limited to, development
by competitors of new technological innovations, dependence on key personnel, market acceptance and the successful commercialization of QINLOCK or
any of the Company's current or future drug candidates for which it receives marketing approval, protection of proprietary technology, ability to complete
late-stage clinical trials, ability to obtain and maintain regulatory approvals, compliance with government regulations, and the ability to secure additional
capital to fund operations. QINLOCK and the Company's drug candidates currently under development will require significant additional research and
development efforts, including extensive preclinical and/or clinical testing and regulatory approval. In addition to supporting its research and development
efforts, the Company will be required to invest in the Company's commercial capabilities and infrastructure, to support its commercialization of
QINLOCK, the Company's first approved drug, and any current or future drug candidate for which the Company obtains marketing approval. These efforts
require significant amounts of additional capital, adequate personnel and infrastructure, and extensive compliance-reporting capabilities. Even if the
Company's drug development and commercialization efforts are successful, it is uncertain when, if ever, the Company will realize sufficient revenue to
result in a profit from product sales of QINLOCK or any current or future drug candidates for which it receives marketing approval.

In April 2022, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement with J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Jefferies, LLC (Jefferies), as
representatives of the several underwriters named therein, relating to the issuance and sale of an aggregate of 7,501,239 shares of its common stock at a
public offering price of $10.00 per share to certain investors. In addition, the Company issued and sold pre-funded warrants to purchase 9,748,761 shares of
its common stock at a public offering price of $9.99 per pre-funded warrant, which equals the public offering price per share of the common stock less the
$0.01 exercise price per share of each pre-funded warrant. The offering closed on April 29, 2022, resulting in net proceeds of $163.4 million after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering expenses.

As the pre-funded warrants are indexed to the Company’s common stock (and otherwise meet the requirements to be classified in equity), the
Company recorded the consideration received from the issuance of the pre-funded warrants as additional paid-in capital on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets.

The pre-funded warrants are exercisable at any time. Certain holders of pre-funded warrants may not exercise the pre-funded warrant if the holder,
together with its affiliates, would beneficially own more than 4.99%, 9.99%, or 28.22% of the number of shares of the Company’s common stock
outstanding immediately after giving effect to such exercise. A holder of pre-funded warrants may increase or decrease this percentage not in excess of
19.99%, with the exception of one holder, by providing at least 61 days’ prior notice to the Company.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2023, 2,427,693 shares of pre-funded warrants were exercised resulting in net proceeds of less than
$0.1 million. As of September 30, 2023, there were 6,428,270 pre-funded warrants outstanding. There were no pre-funded warrants exercised in the three
months ended September 30, 2023.
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In January 2023, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement with J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Jefferies, Cowen and Company, LLC, and
Guggenheim Securities, LLC, as representatives of the several underwriters named therein, relating to the issuance and sale of an aggregate of 7,986,111
shares of its common stock at a public offering price of $18.00 per share. The offering closed on January 24, 2023, resulting in net proceeds of
$134.5 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering expenses.

In May 2023, the Company entered into an Open Market Sale Agreement  (the Sales Agreement) with Jefferies, pursuant to which the Company
may issue and sell the Shares having aggregate offering proceeds of up to $200.0 million from time to time through Jefferies as its sales agent. Upon
delivery of a placement notice and subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreement, Jefferies may sell the Shares by any method permitted by
law deemed to be an "at the market offering" as defined in Rule 415(a)(4) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Company may
sell the Shares in amounts and at times to be determined by the Company from time to time subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreement, but
it has no obligation to sell any Shares under the Sales Agreement. The Company or Jefferies may suspend or terminate the offering of Shares upon notice to
the other party and subject to other conditions.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, the Company issued 1,004,185 shares resulting in net proceeds of $14.6 million, after
deducting commissions and other offering expenses, under the Sales Agreement. As of September 30, 2023, there was up to $185.0 million available for
future issuance under the Sales Agreement.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of continuity of operations, realization of assets, and the
satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the ordinary course of business. Since inception, the Company has incurred recurring losses, including net
losses of $147.8 million and $178.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and the year ended December 31, 2022, respectively. As of
September 30, 2023, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $1.4 billion. The Company expects to continue to generate operating losses for the
foreseeable future. The Company expects that its cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities of $376.9 million as of September 30, 2023, together
with anticipated product, royalty, and supply revenues, but excluding any potential future milestones received under its collaboration or license agreements
will be sufficient to fund its operating expenses and capital expenditure requirements through at least 12 months from the issuance date of these
consolidated financial statements. The future viability of the Company is dependent on its ability to raise additional capital to fund its operations.

The Company will need to obtain substantial additional funding in connection with continuing operations. If the Company is unable to raise capital
when needed, or on attractive terms, it could be forced to delay, reduce, or further terminate its research or drug development programs or certain
commercialization efforts. Although management continues to pursue these plans, there is no assurance that the Company will be successful in obtaining
sufficient funding on terms acceptable to the Company to fund continuing operations, if at all.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

Unaudited Interim Financial Information

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (GAAP).

The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2022 was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required
by GAAP. The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2023 and for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022 have been prepared by the Company pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
for interim financial statements. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP
have been omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company's
audited financial statements and the notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2022 included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (Form
10-K) on file with the SEC.

SM
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In the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair statement of the Company's
consolidated financial position as of September 30, 2023, consolidated results of operations and comprehensive loss for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, and consolidated cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, have been made. The consolidated
results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that may be
expected for the year ending December 31, 2023.

The significant accounting policies used in preparation of these consolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2023 are consistent with those discussed in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the consolidated financial statements in the Company's
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Significant estimates and assumptions reflected in these consolidated financial statements include, but
are not limited to, product revenue reserves, the accrual for research and development expenses, and the valuation of stock-based option awards. Estimates
are periodically reviewed in light of changes in circumstances, facts, and experience. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which they become
known. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Loss per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for
the period, including unexercised pre-funded warrants. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing the diluted net income (loss) by the
weighted average number of common shares, including pre-funded warrants and potential dilutive common shares assuming the dilutive effect of
outstanding stock options and unvested restricted common stock, as determined using the treasury stock method.

For periods in which the Company has reported net losses, diluted net loss per common share is the same as basic net loss per common share, since
dilutive common shares are not assumed to have been issued if their effect is anti-dilutive. The Company reported a net loss for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2023 and 2022.

The following potential dilutive securities, presented based on amounts outstanding at the end of each reporting period, have been excluded from the
calculation of diluted net loss per share because including them would have had an anti-dilutive impact:

As of September 30,
2023 2022

Options to purchase common stock 9,458,319  8,316,531 
Unvested restricted common stock units 3,049,574  2,106,283 
Unvested employee stock purchase plan shares 45,612  53,429 

Total 12,553,505  10,476,243 

2. Revenues

Net Product Revenues

To date, the Company's only source of product revenues has been from the sales of QINLOCK, which began in May 2020, following the approval of
QINLOCK by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) on May 15, 2020, and during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022
in certain other jurisdictions following regulatory approval or on a named patient basis.
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Net product revenues by geography consisted of the following and are attributable to individual countries based on the location of the customer:
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands) 2023 2022 2023 2022

U.S. $ 32,661  $ 24,478  $ 86,200  $ 71,621 
Rest of world 9,159  7,840  26,162  21,003 

Total product revenues, net $ 41,820  $ 32,318  $ 112,362  $ 92,624 

Activity in each of the product revenue allowance and reserve categories is summarized as follows:

(in thousands)
Trade discounts and

allowances
Chargebacks and

administrative fees
Government rebates
and other incentives Returns Total

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 475  $ 656  $ 15,825  $ 1,375  $ 18,331 
Provision related to sales in the current year 3,232  7,849  13,076  3,348  27,505 
Adjustments related to prior period sales (30) —  80  —  50 
Credits and payments made during the period (3,022) (7,674) (4,078) (3,854) (18,628)

Balance as of September 30, 2023 $ 655  $ 831  $ 24,903  $ 869  $ 27,258 

The total reserves described above are summarized as components of the Company's consolidated balance sheets as follows:

(in thousands)
As of September 30,

2023
As of December 31,

2022

Reduction of accounts receivable, net $ 1,377  $ 1,082 
Component of accrued expenses and other current liabilities 25,881  17,249 

Total revenue-related reserves $ 27,258  $ 18,331 

Collaboration Revenues

Zai License Agreement

In June 2019, the Company entered into a license agreement (Zai License Agreement) with Zai Lab (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Zai), pursuant to which the
Company granted Zai exclusive rights to develop and commercialize the Licensed Products in the Territory. The Company retains exclusive rights to,
among other things, develop, manufacture, and commercialize the Licensed Products outside the Territory.

Pursuant to the terms of the Zai License Agreement, as of September 30, 2023 the Company has received an upfront cash payment of $20.0 million
and three development milestone payments totaling $12.0 million and will be eligible to receive up to $173.0 million in potential development and
commercial milestone payments, consisting of up to $38.0 million of development milestones and up to $135.0 million of commercial milestones. In
addition, during the term of the Zai License Agreement, Zai will be obligated to pay the Company tiered percentage royalties ranging from low to high
teens on annual net sales of the Licensed Products in the Territory, subject to adjustments in specified circumstances. Additionally, certain costs incurred by
the Company associated with the Zai License Agreement are reimbursed by Zai.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized royalty revenues under the Zai License Agreement,
which the Company began recognizing in the second quarter of 2021 following the approval from the China National Medical Products Administration
(China NMPA).

Please read Note 3, Revenues, to the consolidated financial statements in the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 for
further details on the Zai License Agreement.
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Zai Supply Agreement

In February 2020, the Company entered into a Supply Agreement (the Zai Supply Agreement) with Zai, as required by terms in the Zai License
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company will supply the Licensed Products to Zai for use in the Territory for clinical trials as well as commercial
inventory, if QINLOCK obtained regulatory approval in the Territory. QINLOCK was approved in the People's Republic of China (the PRC), Hong Kong,
and Taiwan in 2021, and Macau and Singapore in 2023. Subject to the Zai Supply Agreement, costs incurred by the Company for clinical and commercial
supply are reimbursed by Zai.

During the second quarter of 2021, following the approvals of QINLOCK in the PRC and Hong Kong in March 2021, the Company began
recognizing revenues associated with sales of commercial inventory of QINLOCK under the Zai Supply Agreement.

3. Marketable Securities and Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present marketable securities by contractual maturity and security type:

As of September 30, 2023 (in thousands) Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized

Gains
Gross Unrealized

Losses Estimated Fair Value

Due within one year:
Commercial paper $ 45,630  $ —  $ (41) $ 45,589 
Corporate debt securities 69,426  1  (282) 69,145 
U.S. government securities 112,492  1  (314) 112,179 
Certificates of deposit 4,080  —  (5) 4,075 

Due after one year through five years:
Corporate debt securities 12,232  —  (120) 12,112 
U.S. government securities 26,171  —  (433) 25,738 

Total $ 270,031  $ 2  $ (1,195) $ 268,838 

As of December 31, 2022 (in thousands) Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized

Gains
Gross Unrealized

Losses Estimated Fair Value

Due within one year:
Corporate debt securities $ 113,939  $ 2  $ (571) $ 113,370 
Commercial paper 81,344  12  (336) 81,020 
Certificates of deposit 33,877  14  (152) 33,739 
U.S. government securities 31,761  15  (160) 31,616 

Due after one year through five years:
Corporate debt securities 11,278  —  (38) 11,240 
U.S. government securities 3,349  —  (39) 3,310 

Total $ 275,548  $ 43  $ (1,296) $ 274,295 
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The following tables present information about the Company's financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and indicate the level of
the fair value hierarchy utilized to determine such fair values:
As of September 30, 2023 (in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ —  $ 64,373  $ —  $ 64,373 
U.S. government securities —  9,999  —  9,999 
Commercial paper —  4,972  —  4,972 

Marketable securities:
Corporate debt securities —  81,257  —  81,257 
Commercial paper —  45,589  —  45,589 
U.S. government securities —  137,917  —  137,917 
Certificates of deposit —  4,075  —  4,075 

Total $ —  $ 348,182  $ —  $ 348,182 

As of December 31, 2022 (in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ —  $ 27,787  $ —  $ 27,787 
Commercial paper —  14,167  —  14,167 
Corporate debt securities —  4,945  —  4,945 

Marketable securities:
Corporate debt securities —  124,610  —  124,610 
Commercial paper —  81,020  —  81,020 
U.S. government securities —  34,926  —  34,926 
Certificates of deposit —  33,739  —  33,739 

Total $ —  $ 321,194  $ —  $ 321,194 

The tables above exclude certificates of deposit totaling $3.1 million as of both September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022 that the Company held
to secure a letter of credit associated with its leases and to secure a credit card account. The certificates of deposit are measured at carrying value in the
consolidated balance sheets in long-term investments—restricted and approximate fair value. For additional information on the letter of credit associated
with the Company's leases, please read Note 7, Leases, to the consolidated financial statements in the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

The fair value of Level 2 instruments classified as cash equivalents and marketable securities were determined through third-party pricing services.
The pricing services use many observable market inputs to determine value, including reportable trades, benchmark yields, credit spreads, broker/dealer
quotes, bids, offers, current spot rates, and other industry and economic events. The Company performs validation procedures to ensure the reasonableness
of this data. The Company performs its own review of prices received from the independent pricing services by comparing these prices to other sources.
After completing the validation procedures, the Company did not adjust or override any fair value measurements provided by the pricing services as of
September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022.
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4. Inventory

Capitalized inventory consisted of the following:

(in thousands)
As of September 30,

2023
As of December 31,

2022

Raw materials $ 4,934  $ 6,844 
Work in process 19,880  11,125 
Finished goods 2,291  2,592 

Total inventory $ 27,105  $ 20,561 

Inventory written down as a result of excess, obsolescence, unmarketability, or other reasons is charged to cost of sales. During the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2023, there was no inventory written down as a result of excess, obsolescence, unmarketability, or other reasons. During the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, $0.3 million and $0.7 million, respectively, in inventory was written down as a result of excess,
obsolescence, unmarketability, or other reasons, respectively.

5. Other Consolidated Financial Statement Detail

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following:

(in thousands)
As of September 30,

2023
As of December 31,

2022

External research and development expenses $ 18,343  $ 17,411 
Payroll and related expenses 14,226  21,971 
Revenue-related reserves 25,881  17,249 
Professional fees 5,008  4,275 
Other 4,547  3,716 

Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 68,005  $ 64,622 

Interest Income

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, interest income was $4.3 million and $12.5 million, respectively. For the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2022, interest income was $1.8 million and $2.5 million, respectively.

6. Stock-Based Awards

Equity Plans

The Company grants stock-based awards under its 2017 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the 2017 Plan) and is authorized to issue common stock
under its 2017 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). In February 2023, the Company granted performance-based restricted stock unit awards under the
2017 Plan. No performance-based restricted stock units vested, no performance-based restricted stock units were forfeited, and no stock-based
compensation expense was recognized related to performance-based restricted stock units during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023. The
Company also has outstanding stock options under its 2015 Equity Incentive Plan but is no longer granting awards under this plan. As of September 30,
2023, 1,358,019 shares of common stock were available for issuance under the 2017 Plan. As of September 30, 2023, 2,266,771 shares of common stock
were available for issuance to participating employees under the ESPP.

In January 2022, the Company adopted an inducement plan (the Inducement Plan) pursuant to which the Company initially reserved 800,000 shares
of common stock to be used exclusively for grants of equity-based awards to individuals who were not previously employees or directors of the Company,
as an inducement material to the individual’s entry into employment with the Company within the meaning of Rule 5635(c)(4) of the Marketplace Rules of
the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. In February 2023, the Inducement Plan was amended and the number of shares reserved for issuance under the Inducement
Plan was increased by
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270,000. The Inducement Plan provides for the grant of equity-based awards in the form of nonstatutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, unrestricted stock awards, and dividend equivalent rights. The Inducement Plan was adopted by the Company
without stockholder approval pursuant to Rule 5635(c)(4) of the Marketplace Rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. As of September 30, 2023, 444,400
shares of common stock were available for issuance under the Inducement Plan.

Stock-based compensation expense was classified in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss as follows:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
(in thousands) 2023 2022 2023 2022

Research and development $ 5,011  $ 5,305  $ 16,203  $ 16,995 
Selling, general, and administrative 6,149  7,068  20,327  22,634 

Total stock-based compensation $ 11,160  $ 12,373  $ 36,530  $ 39,629 

As of September 30, 2023, total unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested share-based awards was $65.6 million, which is expected to
be recognized over a weighted average of 2.1 years.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

Purchase Commitments Associated with Commercial Supply Agreements

The Company has entered into commercial supply agreements related to the supply of QINLOCK that require the Company to make binding
forecasts for a certain amount of purchases. The related cancellation clauses would as a general matter require the Company to pay the full amount of these
binding forecasts. As of September 30, 2023, the Company's contractual commitments for its commercial supply agreements were $10.1 million which are
expected to be paid within one year.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is not currently a party to any material legal proceedings. At each reporting date, the Company evaluates whether or not a potential
loss amount or a potential range of loss is probable and reasonably estimable under the provisions of the authoritative guidance that addresses accounting
for contingencies. The Company expenses the costs related to its legal proceedings as they are incurred.

Indemnification Agreements

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may provide indemnification of varying scope and terms to vendors, lessors, business partners and
other parties with respect to certain matters including, but not limited to, losses arising out of breach of such agreements or from intellectual property
infringement claims made by third parties. In addition, the Company has entered into indemnification agreements with members of its board of directors
and senior management that will require the Company, among other things, to indemnify them against certain liabilities that may arise by reason of their
status or service as directors or officers. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these
indemnification agreements is, in many cases, unlimited. To date, the Company has not incurred any material costs as a result of such indemnifications. The
Company is not aware of any claims under indemnification arrangements, and it has not accrued any liabilities related to such obligations in its
consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2023 or December 31, 2022.
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Item 2.    Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-Q and our Annual Report on Form 10-K (Form 10-K) for the year ended
December 31, 2022 on file with the SEC. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in this Form 10-Q,
including information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business, includes forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. As a
result of many factors, including those factors set forth in the "Risk Factors" section of this Form 10-Q, our actual results could differ materially from the
results described in, or implied by, the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused on discovering, developing, and commercializing important new medicines to improve the lives of
people with cancer. Leveraging our proprietary switch-control kinase inhibitor platform and deep expertise in kinase biology, we design kinase inhibitors to
target the switch pocket region of the kinase with the goal of developing potentially transformative medicines. Through our patient-inspired approach, we
seek to develop a broad portfolio of innovative medicines to improve treatment outcomes. QINLOCK, our switch-control tyrosine kinase inhibitor, was
discovered using our proprietary drug discovery platform and designed for the treatment of GIST. QINLOCK is approved in Australia, Canada, China, the
EU, Hong Kong, Israel, Macau, New Zealand, Singapore, Switzerland, Taiwan, the U.K., and the U.S. for the treatment of fourth-line advanced GIST. We
wholly own QINLOCK and all of our drug candidates with the exception of a development and commercialization out-license agreement for QINLOCK in
Greater China. In addition to QINLOCK, we have developed a robust pipeline of novel drug candidates using our switch-control kinase inhibitor platform,
including vimseltinib and DCC-3116.

Recent Developments

QINLOCK

QINLOCK, an orally administered kinase switch control inhibitor of the KIT and PDGFRA kinases, is approved in thirteen territories for the
treatment of fourth-line advanced GIST.

In January 2023, we announced findings from an exploratory analysis using circulating tumor DNA (ctDNA) from the Phase 3 INTRIGUE study
demonstrating substantial clinical benefit of QINLOCK in second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18. In August 2023, we
announced that we opened the first sites for enrollment in the pivotal Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK versus sunitinib in this patient population.

Vimseltinib

Vimseltinib is an investigational, orally administered, potent, and highly-selective switch-control kinase inhibitor of the colony stimulating factor 1
receptor (CSF1R).

We are currently studying vimseltinib in the pivotal Phase 3 MOTION study in patients with tenosynovial giant cell tumor (TGCT), (MOTION
study). The MOTION study is a two-part, randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled study to assess the efficacy and safety of vimseltinib in patients
with TGCT who are not amenable to surgery.

In October 2023, we announced positive top-line data from the MOTION study. The study met its primary endpoint in the intent-to-treat population
demonstrating statistically significant and clinically meaningful improvement versus placebo in objective response rate at Week 25 based on blinded
independent radiologic review per Response Evaluation Criteria in Solid Tumors version 1.1. In addition to meeting the primary endpoint, the study also
achieved statistically significant and clinically meaningful improvements versus placebo in all key secondary endpoints including tumor volume score
(TVS), active range of motion (ROM), physical function, stiffness, quality of life, and pain. Vimseltinib was well-tolerated and the observed adverse events
in the MOTION study were consistent with previously presented Phase 1/2 study results, including the data discussed below.

We plan to engage with regulatory authorities and expect to submit a New Drug Application (NDA) to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) in the second quarter of 2024 and a marketing authorization application with the European Medicines Agency (EMA) in the third quarter of 2024
for vimseltinib for the treatment of patients with TGCT.

We are also conducting an ongoing open-label Phase 1/2 study designed to evaluate the safety, efficacy, pharmacokinetics (PK), and
pharmacodynamics (PD) of vimseltinib in patients with solid tumors and TGCT. In October 2023, we provided updated data from our Phase 1/2 study of
vimseltinib in TGCT patients. The data demonstrated strong clinical benefit with best objective
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response rates of 72% (Phase 1) and 64% (Phase 2 Cohort A), an increasing median treatment duration of 25.1 months (Phase 1) and 21.0 months (Phase 2
Cohort A), and a favorable long-term safety profile with no evidence of cholestatic hepatotoxicity.

DCC-3116

DCC-3116 is a potential first-in-class investigational, orally administered, potent, and highly selective switch-control inhibitor of the ULK kinase.

DCC-3116 is being studied in a Phase 1/2 study designed to evaluate the safety, tolerability, clinical activity, PK, and PD of DCC-3116 as a single
agent and in combination with (i) trametinib in patients with advanced or metastatic solid tumors with RAS, NF1, or RAF mutations; (ii) binimetinib in
patients with advanced or metastatic solid tumors with RAS, NF1, or RAF mutations; (iii) sotorasib in patients with advanced or metastatic solid tumors
with KRASG12C mutations; (iv) ripretinib in patients with GIST; and (v) encorafenib and cetuximab in patients with colorectal cancer.

In August 2023, we announced the completion of the single agent DCC-3116 dose escalation portion of the Phase 1/2 study (n=28). We also
provided updated data on the PK characteristics of single agent DCC-3116.

In addition, we provided an update on the ongoing Phase 1/2 study in combination with trametinib, binimetinib, and sotorasib.

In August 2023, we also announced that we opened the first site for enrollment in two new combinations evaluating DCC-3116 in combination
cohorts with ripretinib in patients with GIST and in combination with encorafenib and cetuximab in patients with colorectal cancer. Under the terms of the
clinical trial collaboration and supply agreement with Pfizer Inc. (Pfizer) announced in January 2023, we will sponsor the trial and Pfizer will supply
encorafenib at no cost.

We currently expect to have sufficient data in the first half of 2024 to make decisions about whether to open expansion cohorts of DCC-3116 in
combination with trametinib, binimetinib, and/or sotorasib. Subject to favorable data from the combination dose escalation portion of the study and
selection of combination doses, we plan to invest in and prioritize the expansion combination(s) that we believe will have the best chance to demonstrate
clinical proof-of-concept.

Platform Development and Preclinical Pipeline

We are also making a focused investment in our next generation of research programs, which are designed to provide first-in-class or best-in-class
treatments using our proprietary switch-control inhibitor platform. We announced the nomination of DCC-3084 as our pan-RAF development candidate in
2022 and DCC-3009 as our next generation KIT inhibitor in 2023. We also plan to continue to develop our in-licensed research-stage program, which
targets the VPS34 kinase, pursuant to our agreement with Sprint Biosciences AB (the Sprint Agreement).

DCC-3084

DCC-3084 is a potential best-in-class pan-RAF inhibitor that is designed to broadly inhibit Class I, II, and III BRAF mutations, BRAF fusions, and
BRAF/CRAF heterodimers. We expect to submit an IND application to the FDA for DCC-3084 in the fourth quarter of 2023.

DCC-3009

DCC-3009 is a potential best-in-class next generation KIT inhibitor that is designed to inhibit the broad spectrum of known primary and secondary
drug resistant mutations in GIST, spanning KIT exons 9, 11, 13, 14, 17, and 18. We expect to submit an IND application to the FDA for DCC-3009 in the
first half of 2024.

Components of Our Results of Operations

Revenues

QINLOCK is approved in Australia, Canada, China, the EU, Hong Kong, Israel, Macau, New Zealand, Singapore, Switzerland, Taiwan, the U.S. and
the U.K. for the treatment of fourth-line advanced GIST. We may generate revenue in the future from a combination of product sales or payments from
collaboration, distribution, or any potential additional license agreements that we may enter into with third parties. We expect that our revenue in the
foreseeable future will be derived primarily from sales of QINLOCK and, payments owed to us under the Zai License Agreement and Zai Supply
Agreement we entered into with Zai in June 2019 and February 2020, respectively, including royalty revenues under the Zai License Agreement following
the approvals of QINLOCK in the PRC and Hong Kong in March 2021. We cannot provide assurance as to what extent
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we will generate revenue from the commercialization of QINLOCK or if, when, or to what extent we will generate revenue from the commercialization and
sale of our drug candidates for which we may receive marketing approval, if any. Additionally, we cannot provide assurance as to the extent of future
royalty payments, the timing of future milestone payments, or that we will achieve and receive any future milestone payments at all. We may never succeed
in obtaining regulatory approval for any of our drug candidates other than QINLOCK.

Product Revenues, Net

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, our only source of product revenues was from the sales of QINLOCK.
Product revenues are recorded net of estimates of variable consideration. Please read Note 2, Revenues, of these consolidated financial statements included
in this Form 10-Q for further details of the reserves recorded for variable considerations.

Collaboration Revenues

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, collaboration revenues were associated with the Zai License Agreement and Zai
Supply Agreement, as applicable.

Zai License Agreement

Pursuant to the terms of the Zai License Agreement, as of September 30, 2023 we have received an upfront cash payment of $20.0 million and three
development milestone payments totaling $12.0 million and will be eligible to receive up to $173.0 million in potential development and commercial
milestone payments, consisting of up to $38.0 million of development milestones and up to $135.0 million of commercial milestones. In addition, during
the term of the Zai License Agreement, Zai will be obligated to pay us tiered percentage royalties ranging from low to high teens on annual net sales of the
Licensed Products in the Territory, subject to adjustments in specified circumstances. Additionally, certain costs we incur associated with the Zai License
Agreement are reimbursed by Zai.

During the second quarter of 2021, following the approvals of QINLOCK in the PRC and Hong Kong in March 2021, we began recognizing royalty
revenues under the Zai License Agreement.

Zai Supply Agreement

Pursuant to the terms of the Zai Supply Agreement, costs incurred by us for external manufacturing services associated with the production of
QINLOCK for use in the Territory for clinical trials and commercial inventory are reimbursed by Zai. During the second quarter of 2021, following the
approvals of QINLOCK in the PRC and Hong Kong in March 2021, we began recognizing revenues associated with sales of commercial inventory of
QINLOCK under the Zai Supply Agreement.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales includes external costs of producing and distributing inventories that are related to product revenue during the respective period of
the associated sales. In addition, shipping and handling costs for product shipments are recorded in cost of sales as incurred. Further, cost of sales includes
the external costs of producing and distributing commercial inventories sold under the Zai Supply Agreement. Cost of sales also includes charges related to
inventory written down as a result of excess, obsolescence, unmarketability, or other reasons.

Cost of sales for newly launched products will not include the full cost of manufacturing until the initial pre-launch inventory is depleted, and
additional inventory is manufactured and sold. The gross margin on sales of QINLOCK for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 was
enhanced by sales of the initial pre-launch inventory, and therefore, use of active pharmaceutical ingredients and components that were previously
expensed as research and development expenses prior to the launch of QINLOCK, referred to as zero cost inventories. We began selling inventory with the
full cost of manufacturing in the fourth quarter of 2022, and we do not expect that the cost of sales as a percentage of net sales of QINLOCK will increase
significantly.
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Operating Expenses

The successful development and commercialization of our drug and drug candidates is highly uncertain. This is due to the numerous risks and
uncertainties, including the following:

• successfully commercializing or otherwise providing access to QINLOCK for the treatment of fourth-line advanced GIST in the U.S., key
European markets, and any other jurisdictions where we may receive marketing approval in the future;

• successful completion of our Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK, advancing our DCC-3116 program through clinical development, and
nominating additional drug candidates from our switch control inhibitor platform;

• the rate and degree of market acceptance of QINLOCK or any current or future drug candidate for which we may receive marketing approval;

• developing and implementing marketing and reimbursement strategies;

• raising additional funds necessary to fund ongoing operations and capital expenditure requirements, including to complete clinical development
of and commercialize any current or future drug candidates for which we receive approval;

• making arrangements with third-party manufacturers, or establishing manufacturing capabilities, for both clinical and commercial supplies of
our drug and drug candidates;

• maintaining a continued acceptable safety profile of our products following approval;

• obtaining and maintaining patent, trade secret, and other intellectual property protection, and regulatory exclusivity for our drug and drug
candidates;

• protecting and enforcing our rights in our intellectual property portfolio;

• effectively competing with other therapies; and

• attracting additional licensees and/or collaborators or distributors with development, regulatory, and commercialization expertise.

A change in the outcome of any of these variables with respect to the commercialization of QINLOCK or the development of our drug or any of our
drug candidates would significantly change the costs and timing associated with the commercialization of QINLOCK or development of our drug or that
drug candidate. We may never succeed in obtaining regulatory approval for any of our drug candidates other than QINLOCK.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist primarily of costs incurred for our research activities, including our drug discovery efforts and the
development of our drug and drug candidates, which include:

• employee-related expenses, including salaries, related benefits, travel, and stock-based compensation expense for employees engaged in
research and development functions;

• expenses incurred in connection with the preclinical and clinical development of our drug candidates, including under agreements with contract
research organizations (CROs);

• the cost of consultants and contract manufacturing organizations (CMOs) that manufacture drug products for use in our preclinical studies and
clinical trials as well as all expenses associated with the pre-launch manufacturing of commercial inventory of QINLOCK prior to FDA
approval; and

• facilities, depreciation, and other expenses, which include direct and allocated expenses for rent and maintenance of facilities, insurance,
supplies, and technology-related costs.

We expense research and development costs to operations as incurred. Advance payments for goods or services to be received in the future for use in
research and development activities are recorded as prepaid expenses within our consolidated balance sheets. The prepaid amounts are expensed as the
related goods are delivered or the services are performed.

Our direct research and development expenses are tracked on a program-by-program basis and consist primarily of external costs, such as fees paid
to consultants, central laboratories, contractors, CMOs, and CROs in connection with our preclinical and clinical development activities. We do not allocate
employee costs, costs associated with our proprietary switch-control kinase inhibitor platform technology, or facility expenses, including depreciation or
other indirect costs, to specific drug or drug

23



Table of Contents

candidate development programs because these costs are deployed across multiple drug or drug candidate development programs and, as such, are not
separately classified.

Research and development activities are central to our business model. Drugs and drug candidates in later stages of clinical development generally
have higher development costs than those in earlier stages of clinical development, primarily due to the increased size and duration of later-stage clinical
trials. We expect research and development expenses associated with our drug and drug candidate programs in the fourth quarter of 2023 to be relatively
consistent with expenses incurred during the third quarter of 2023 as these programs progress. We do not believe that it is possible at this time to accurately
project total program-specific expenses through commercialization. There are numerous factors associated with the successful commercialization of our
drug and any of our drug candidates, including future trial design and various regulatory requirements, many of which cannot be determined with accuracy
at this time based on our stage of development. Additionally, future commercial and regulatory factors beyond our control will impact our clinical
development programs and plans.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general, and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and related costs, including stock-based compensation, for personnel in
executive, legal, finance, commercial, human resources, and administrative functions. Selling, general, and administrative expenses also include direct and
allocated facility- and technology-related costs as well as professional fees for legal, patent, consulting, accounting, and audit services.

We anticipate that our selling, general, and administrative expenses in the fourth quarter of 2023 will be relatively consistent with expenses incurred
during the third quarter of 2023 related to the continued support of launches of QINLOCK in new jurisdictions in 2023. We also anticipate that we will
continue to incur accounting, audit, legal, regulatory, compliance, and investor and public relations expenses associated with the business and continued
operations as a public company.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest and Other Income, net

Interest income consists of interest earned on our cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities balances. Other income, net, consists of
insignificant amounts of miscellaneous income and expenses unrelated to our core operations, including the impacts of foreign currency exchange
differences.

Income Taxes

On October 2, 2017, immediately prior to the completion of our initial public offering (IPO), we engaged in a series of transactions whereby
Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, LLC became a wholly owned subsidiary of Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the Conversion). Prior to
the Conversion, we were treated as a partnership for tax purposes and had not been subject to U.S. federal or state income taxation. Upon the Conversion,
we became subject to typical corporate U.S. federal and state income taxation; however, we do not have net operating loss carryforwards from periods prior
to October 2, 2017 available to offset taxable income earned in future periods in which we will be treated as a corporation.

Consistent with our income tax disclosures described under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Components of Our Results of Operations" in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 on file with the SEC, as of
September 30, 2023, we have not recorded any U.S. federal or state income tax benefits for either the net losses we have incurred or our earned research
and orphan drug credits, due to the uncertainty of realizing a benefit from those items in the future.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of our consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, costs and expenses, and related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our critical accounting policies that involve the most judgment and complexity are
those relating to:

• product revenue reserves;

• accrued research and development expenses; and

• stock-based compensation.
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Accordingly, we believe the policies set forth above are critical to fully understanding and evaluating our financial condition and results of
operations. If actual results or events differ materially from the estimates, judgments, and assumptions used by us in applying these policies, our reported
financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected.

For a description of our critical accounting policies, please see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates" in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 on file with
the SEC. There have been no significant changes to our critical accounting policies since December 31, 2022.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022:
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands) 2023 2022 2023 2022

Revenues:
Product revenues, net $ 41,820  $ 32,318  $ 112,362  $ 92,624 
Collaboration revenues 1,493  3,656  2,700  5,067 

Total revenues 43,313  35,974  115,062  97,691 
Cost and operating expenses:

Cost of sales 1,286  3,344  1,947  5,525 
Research and development 62,463  47,485  175,524  139,755 
Selling, general, and administrative 33,252  30,026  97,311  87,972 

Total cost and operating expenses 97,001  80,855  274,782  233,252 
Loss from operations (53,688) (44,881) (159,720) (135,561)
Other income (expense):

Interest and other income, net 4,107  1,838  11,968  2,565 
Total other income (expense), net 4,107  1,838  11,968  2,565 

Net loss $ (49,581) $ (43,043) $ (147,752) $ (132,996)

Revenues

Product Revenues, Net

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, our only source of product revenues was from the sales of QINLOCK.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, net product revenues by geography consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
(in thousands) 2023 2022 2023 2022

U.S. $ 32,661  $ 24,478  $ 86,200  $ 71,621 
Rest of world 9,159  7,840  26,162  21,003 

Total product revenues, net $ 41,820  $ 32,318  $ 112,362  $ 92,624 

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same periods in 2022, U.S. net product revenues increased $8.2 million
and $14.6 million, respectively, primarily due to increased sales volume and an increase in net price. In the three months ended September 30, 2023
compared to the same period in 2022, increased sales volume for QINLOCK in the U.S. was driven primarily by increased demand, including new patient
acquisition, new prescriber growth, and increasing average duration of therapy. In addition to strength in QINLOCK's fourth-line GIST indication, we
believe recent demand growth has been positively impacted by an increase in unpromoted use in earlier lines of therapy based on physician decision.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, rest of world net product revenues increased $1.3
million and $5.2 million, respectively, primarily due to increased sales volume of QINLOCK in
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Germany, which launched in January 2022, partially offset by a decrease in net price in Germany as price negotiations were completed in 2023, France,
where we have conducted a post-approval paid access program since April 2022, and other jurisdictions as we continued our commercialization efforts.

Collaboration Revenues

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 compared to the same periods in 2022, collaboration revenues decreased $2.2
million and $2.4 million, respectively, primarily due to a decrease in supply revenues under the Zai Supply Agreement. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, the decrease due to a decrease in supply revenues was partially offset by an increase in royalty
revenues under the Zai License Agreement.

Cost of Sales

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, cost of sales by type consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
(in thousands) 2023 2022 2023 2022

Cost of product sales $ 604  $ 672  $ 1,152  $ 2,013 
Cost of collaboration sales 682  2,672  795  3,512 

Total cost of sales $ 1,286  $ 3,344  $ 1,947  $ 5,525 

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same periods in 2022, cost of sales decreased $2.1 million and $3.6
million, respectively, primarily due to a decrease in cost of sales recognized under the Zai Supply Agreement and a decrease in cost of sales in the U.S. due
to the write down of inventory in the prior year period. The decrease in cost of sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 also included a credit
received during the first quarter of 2023 for inventory previously written down during the year ended December 31, 2022. During the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2023, there was no inventory written down as a result of excess, obsolescence, unmarketability, or other reasons. During the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, $0.3 million and $0.7 million, respectively, in inventory was written down as a result of excess,
obsolescence, unmarketability, or other reasons, respectively.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, cost of sales associated with product sales of QINLOCK was primarily related to the sales
of zero cost inventories, which consisted of packaging, labeling, shipping, and distribution costs.

Prior to receiving FDA approval for QINLOCK in May 2020, we manufactured inventory to be sold and recorded approximately $6.0 million
related to this inventory build-up as research and development expense. We did not record any such costs related to the build-up of this inventory as
research and development expense during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022.

Utilizing the actual direct costs to manufacture QINLOCK prior to receiving FDA approval, had the previously expensed inventory been capitalized
and recognized when sold, the total cost of sales with these manufacturing costs included for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 would
have increased by approximately $0.6 million and $1.9 million, respectively. We began selling inventory with the full cost of manufacturing in the fourth
quarter of 2022.

We do not expect our cost of sales for QINLOCK to increase significantly as a percentage of net sales in future periods as we continue to produce
inventory for future sales, which will reflect the full cost of manufacturing, and then sell such inventory.
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Operating Expenses

Research and Development Expenses

QINLOCK

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same periods in 2022, research and development expenses related to
QINLOCK increased primarily as a result of increased clinical trial expenses of $9.1 million and $11.0 million, respectively, and increased manufacturing
expenses of $0.4 million and $1.5 million, respectively. Clinical trial expenses for QINLOCK increased primarily as a result of increased expenses
associated with our Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK versus sunitinib in patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18, our Phase 3 INTRIGUE
study of QINLOCK for the treatment of second-line GIST, our ongoing Phase 1 trial of QINLOCK, and an increase in clinical pharmacology study
activities. For the nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, increases in clinical trial expenses for QINLOCK were
partially offset by a decrease in expenses associated with INVICTUS, our Phase 3 study of QINLOCK for the
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treatment of fourth-line GIST. Manufacturing costs increased primarily due to timing of processing of inventory for clinical and commercial use.

Vimseltinib

For the three months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, research and development expenses related to our vimseltinib
program decreased primarily as a result of decreased clinical trial expenses of $0.7 million. Clinical trial expenses decreased primarily due to decreased
activities associated with clinical pharmacology study activities.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, research and development expenses related to our vimseltinib
program increased primarily as a result of increased clinical trial expenses of $0.9 million, increased manufacturing expenses of $1.5 million, and increased
preclinical expenses of $0.9 million. Clinical trial expenses increased primarily due to increased activities associated with our Phase 3 study of vimseltinib
in patients with TGCT, MOTION, which was initiated in the fourth quarter of 2021 and clinical trial expenses associated with our Phase 1/2 study of
vimseltinib to assess the safety, tolerability, PK, and PD in patients with TGCT, partially offset by a decrease in clinical pharmacology study activities.
Manufacturing expenses increased primarily due to process developments and the timing of packaging and labeling activities. Preclinical expenses
increased primarily due to increased activities related to toxicology and biology studies.

DCC-3116

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same periods in 2022, research and development expenses related to our
DCC-3116 program increased primarily as a result of increased clinical trial expenses of $2.3 million and $4.9 million, respectively, and increased
preclinical expenses of $0.7 million and $1.3 million, respectively. Clinical trial expenses increased primarily due to increased activities associated with our
Phase 1/2 study evaluating DCC-3116 as a single agent and in combination cohorts. Preclinical expenses increased primarily due to increased activities
related to toxicology and biology studies. For the three months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, manufacturing expenses
decreased $0.8 million. Manufacturing expenses decreased primarily due to the timing of inventory production and timing of raw materials procurement of
product to be used in our Phase 1/2 study of DCC-3116.

Preclinical

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same periods in 2022, research and development expenses related to
preclinical costs increased $0.6 million and $2.2 million, respectively, primarily due to increased activities related to toxicology and biology studies for our
early-stage drug discovery programs, including for DCC-3084 and DCC-3009.

Personnel-related and Other Research and Development Expenses

For the three months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, the increase in personnel-related and other research and
development expenses was primarily associated with increased other research and development of $2.6 million and increased personnel-related costs of
$1.4 million, partially offset by a decrease in stock-based compensation of $0.3 million. The increase in other research and development expenses was
primarily related to manufacturing expenses for DCC-3084 and DCC-3009, consulting and professional services to support the research and development
functions not allocated to specific projects, and reversals of certain accrued research and development expenses due to a change in estimate as certain of
our clinical trials are closing.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, the increase in personnel-related and other research and
development expenses were primarily associated with increased other research and development expenses of $7.6 million and increased personnel-related
costs of $4.2 million, partially offset by a decrease in stock-based compensation expense of $0.8 million. The other research and development expenses
increase primarily related to manufacturing and development expenses for DCC-3084 and DCC-3009, consulting and professional services to support the
research and development functions not allocated to specific projects, and temporary employment services.

We expect research and development expenses associated with our drug and drug candidate programs in the fourth quarter of 2023 to be relatively
consistent with expenses incurred during the third quarter of 2023 as these programs continue to progress.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same periods in 2022, the increase in selling, general, and administrative
expenses was primarily associated with increased professional and consultant fees of $2.7 million and $8.9 million, respectively, and increased personnel-
related costs of $0.7 million and $2.1 million, respectively, partially offset by a decrease in stock-based compensation expense of $0.9 million and $2.3
million, respectively, and a decrease in other selling,
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general, and administrative expenses of $0.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively, primarily due to an increase in sublease income, which began during
the second quarter of 2022. The increase in professional and consultant fees is primarily due to an increase in professional, consulting, and other expenses
related to the commercialization of QINLOCK and temporary employment services.

We anticipate that our selling, general, and administrative expenses in the fourth quarter of 2023 to be relatively consistent with expenses incurred
during the third quarter of 2023 as we support the continued launch of QINLOCK in additional jurisdictions.

Interest and Other Income, Net

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same periods in 2022, the increase in interest and other income, net, was
primarily due to increased interest income on our cash equivalents and marketable securities associated with an increase in our investment holdings and
changes in interest rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception in 2003, we have focused substantially all of our efforts and financial resources on organizing and staffing our company,
business planning, raising capital, developing product and technology rights, conducting research and development activities for our drug candidates,
building a commercial and marketing organization, and commercializing our first approved product, QINLOCK. Our only product approved for sale is
QINLOCK and we have not generated sufficient revenues to result in a profit.

As a result, we have incurred significant operating losses since our inception. We have generated limited revenue to date primarily from our product
sales and under the Zai License Agreement and Zai Supply Agreement. QINLOCK is approved in thirteen territories for the treatment of fourth-line
advanced GIST. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, our product revenues were primarily derived from sales of
QINLOCK in the U.S. Additionally, we launched QINLOCK in Germany in January 2022 and have conducted the post-approval paid access program in
France since April 2022. We have also entered into exclusive distributor arrangements to facilitate product sales of QINLOCK in select geographies where
we do not currently intend to distribute QINLOCK on our own. Beginning in the second quarter of 2021, following the approvals of QINLOCK in the PRC
and Hong Kong in March 2021, we began to recognize royalty revenues under the Zai License Agreement. However, we cannot provide assurance as to
what extent we will generate revenue from the commercialization of QINLOCK by us or our partners. We do not expect to generate revenue from sales of
any drug candidates in the near future, if at all, unless and until we obtain marketing approval for, and begin to sell, such drug candidates. We may never
generate revenues that are significant enough to achieve profitability.

On October 2, 2017, we completed our IPO of our common stock. Since October 2017, we have primarily supported our operations by completing
issuances of our common stock through our IPO, subsequent follow-on offerings, including our underwritten public offerings in April 2022 and January
2023, and the Sales Agreement and the Amended Sales Agreement with Jefferies. Through such issuances, we have issued and sold 46,160,921 shares of
our common stock and pre-funded warrants to purchase 9,748,761 shares of our common stock resulting in net proceeds of $1.3 billion after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering expenses.

In April 2022, we entered into an underwriting agreement with J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Jefferies, as representatives of the several
underwriters named therein, relating to the issuance and sale of an aggregate of 7,501,239 shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $10.00
per share to certain investors. In addition, we issued and sold pre-funded warrants to purchase 9,748,761 shares of our common stock at a purchase price of
$9.99 per pre-funded warrant, which equals the public offering price per share of the common stock less the $0.01 exercise price per share of each pre-
funded warrant. The offering closed on April 29, 2022, resulting in net proceeds of $163.4 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions
and other offering expenses.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2023, 2,427,693 shares of pre-funded warrants were exercised resulting in net proceeds of less than
$0.1 million. As of September 30, 2023, there were 6,428,270 pre-funded warrants outstanding. There were no pre-funded warrants exercised in the three
months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022.

In January 2023, we entered into an underwriting agreement with J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Jefferies, Cowen and Company, LLC, and
Guggenheim Securities, LLC, as representatives of the several underwriters named therein, relating to the issuance and sale of an aggregate of 7,986,111
shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $18.00 per share. The
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offering closed on January 24, 2023, resulting in net proceeds of $134.5 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other
offering expenses.

In May 2023, we entered into the Sales Agreement with Jefferies, pursuant to which the Company may issue and sell shares of its common stock
having aggregate offering proceeds of up to $200.0 million from time to time through Jefferies as its sales agent. Upon delivery of a placement notice and
subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreement, Jefferies may sell the Shares by any method permitted by law deemed to be an "at the market
offering" as defined in Rule 415(a)(4) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. We may sell the Shares in amounts and at times to be
determined by us from time to time subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreement, but it has no obligation to sell any Shares under the Sales
Agreement. We or Jefferies may suspend or terminate the offering of Shares upon notice to the other party and subject to other conditions.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, we issued 1,004,185 shares resulting in net proceeds of $14.6 million, after deducting
commissions and other offering expenses, under the Sales Agreement. As of September 30, 2023, there was up to $185.0 million available for future
issuance under the Sales Agreement.

Cash Flows

As of September 30, 2023, our principal sources of liquidity were cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities of $376.9 million, which
consisted of cash, money market funds, U.S. government securities, corporate debt securities, commercial paper, and certificates of deposit. The primary
objectives of our investment activities are to preserve principal, provide liquidity, and maximize income without significantly increasing risk. Given the
nature of these investments, we believe that the market for these instruments is not illiquid.

The following table summarizes our sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents for each of the periods presented:
Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands) 2023 2022

Net cash flows used in operating activities $ (117,888) $ (117,704)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities 10,350  (50,613)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 151,114  164,516 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 43,576  $ (3,801)

Operating Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, net cash flows used in operating activities increased $0.2
million, primarily resulting from an increase in our net loss of $14.8 million and a decrease in net non-cash charges of $8.7 million, including a decrease in
share-based compensation of $3.1 million, partially offset by a decrease in net cash flows related to changes in our operating assets and liabilities of $23.2
million . The decrease in net cash flows related to changes in our operating assets and liabilities were generally due to the timing of vendor invoicing and
payments and the completion of payments under our restructuring program initiated during the fourth quarter of 2021.

Investing Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, net cash flows provided by investing activities increased
$61.0 million, primarily resulting from an increase in proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities of $83.1 million, partially offset by an
increase in purchases of marketable securities of $22.3 million.

Financing Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, net cash flows provided by financing activities decreased
$13.4 million, primarily resulting from net proceeds from an offering of our common stock in a follow-on public offering in April 2022 for $163.4 million,
partially offset by net proceeds from an offering of our common stock in a follow-on public offering in January 2023 for $134.5 million and net proceeds
from issuances of our common stock under the Sales Agreement during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 of $14.6 million.
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Funding Requirements

Our ability to generate product revenues sufficient to achieve profitability will depend heavily on the successful commercialization of QINLOCK
and eventual commercialization of one or more of our drug candidates. Our net loss was $147.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and
$178.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. As of September 30, 2023, we had an accumulated deficit of $1.4 billion. We expect to continue to
incur significant expenses and operating losses for the foreseeable future. We expect that our expenses and capital requirements will continue to increase in
connection with our ongoing activities, particularly as we:

• continue to commercialize QINLOCK in the U.S., and continue to build our global commercial capabilities to bring QINLOCK to eligible
patients around the world, including in key European markets;

• conduct our Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK, the development of companion diagnostic tests related to INSIGHT, and other expenses that
may be borne as a result of the new trial;

• seek regulatory approval and support the commercialization of vimseltinib, if approved, as a potential single agent therapy for the treatment of
TGCT;

• develop DCC-3116, our ULK kinase inhibitor, for the potential treatment of mutant RAS or RAF cancers;

• continue research and development and drug discovery activities and initiate additional clinical trials;

• seek marketing approval for our drug or any of our drug candidates that successfully complete clinical development;

• develop and scale up our capabilities to support our ongoing preclinical activities and clinical trials for our drug candidates and
commercialization of any of our drug candidates for which we obtain marketing approval;

• make payments, if any, pursuant to any license or collaboration agreement we may enter into, including those associated with the Sprint
Agreement;

• maintain, expand, protect, and enforce our intellectual property portfolio; and

• maintain our operational, financial, and management systems and personnel, including to support our clinical development and
commercialization efforts and our operations as a public company, including international operations in key European markets and other
potential geographies.

As we continue to seek regulatory approval for our drug candidates, we expect to incur significant expenses related to our ongoing clinical
development efforts and activities related to maintaining and expanding our internal commercialization capability to support product sales, marketing, and
distribution except to the extent we enter into a commercialization partnership that covers such expenses. Further, we expect to continue to incur costs
associated with operating as a public company.

As a result, we will need substantial additional funding to support our continuing operations and pursue our growth strategy. Even if we are able to
generate substantial product sales of QINLOCK, we may not become profitable. Until we become profitable, if ever, we expect to finance our operations
primarily through a combination of equity, debt, or other financings, product, royalty, and supply revenues, collaborations, strategic alliances, and
marketing, distribution, or additional licensing arrangements. We may be unable to raise additional funds or enter into such other agreements or
arrangements when needed on favorable terms, or at all. Market volatility resulting from global economic developments, political unrest, and high inflation,
the COVID-19 pandemic or other public health concerns, or other factors could also adversely impact our ability to access capital as and when needed. If
we are unable to raise additional funds through equity or debt financings or other arrangements when needed, we may be required to delay, limit, reduce, or
terminate our research, product development, or commercialization efforts or grant rights to develop and market drugs and drug candidates that we would
otherwise prefer to develop and market ourselves.

To the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, the ownership interest of existing equity
holders will be diluted, and the terms of these securities may include liquidation or other preferences that adversely affect the rights of common
stockholders. Debt financing and preferred equity financing, if available, may involve agreements that include covenants limiting or restricting our ability
to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making acquisitions or capital expenditures, or declaring dividends. If we raise additional funds
through collaborations, strategic alliances or marketing, distribution, or licensing arrangements with third parties (such as the Zai License Agreement), we
may have to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies, future revenue streams, research programs, drugs, or drug candidates, or grant licenses on terms
that may not be favorable to us.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with pharmaceutical product development and commercialization, we are unable to
accurately predict the timing or amount of increased expenses and capital requirements or when or if we will be able to achieve or maintain profitability. If
we fail to become profitable or are unable to sustain profitability
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on a continuing basis, then we may be unable to continue our operations at planned levels and be forced to further reduce or terminate our operations. The
timing and amount of our operating expenditures will depend largely on:

• the timing and progress of preclinical and clinical development activities;

• successful enrollment in and completion of clinical trials;

• the success of our commercialization efforts and market acceptance for QINLOCK or any of our future approved drugs;

• the timing and outcome of regulatory review of our drug and drug candidates;

• the cost to develop companion diagnostic tests as needed for each of our drug candidates;

• our ability to establish and manage agreements with third-party manufacturers for clinical supply for our clinical trials and commercial
manufacturing;

• addition and retention of key research and development and commercial, including sales and marketing, personnel;

• the costs and timing of commercialization activities, including product manufacturing, marketing, sales, and distribution, for QINLOCK,
including our commercial launch of QINLOCK in key European markets, and any of our drug candidates for which we obtain marketing
approval;

• the legal and patent costs involved in prosecuting patent applications and enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property claims; and

• the terms and timing of any collaboration, license, distribution, or other arrangement, including the terms and timing of any upfront, milestone,
and/or royalty payments thereunder.

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities as of September 30, 2023 of $376.9 million, together with anticipated
product, royalty, and supply revenues, but excluding any potential future milestones received under our collaboration or license agreements will enable us
to fund our operating expenses and capital expenditure requirements into 2026. We have based these estimates on assumptions that may not be achieved,
and we could utilize our available capital resources sooner than we expect.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

As of September 30, 2023, there have been no material changes to our contractual obligations and commitments outside the ordinary course of
business from those that were presented in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have during the periods presented, and we do not currently have, any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in the rules and
regulations of the SEC.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Based on our review of recently issued accounting pronouncements, we do not believe there are any such pronouncements that will have a material
impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Item 3.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

For the Company’s disclosures about market risk, please see “Part II—Item 7A—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” in
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 on file with the SEC. There have been no material changes to the Company’s disclosures about
market risk in Part II—Item 7A of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 on file with the SEC.

Item 4.    Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, respectively), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
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procedures as of September 30, 2023. The term "disclosure controls and procedures," as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act
means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it
files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a
company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’s management, including its
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.
Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2023, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.    Legal Proceedings.

We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings.

Item 1A.    Risk Factors.

Our business is subject to numerous material and other risks. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below together
with all of the other information contained in this Form 10-Q, including our consolidated financial statements and the related notes, and in our other
filings with the SEC. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, prospects, operating results, and financial condition could suffer materially.
In such event, the trading price of our common stock could decline and you might lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Commercialization

Risks Related to Business Development and Commercialization

Our business depends heavily on our ability to successfully commercialize QINLOCK in the U.S., key European markets, and in other jurisdictions
where we may obtain marketing approval. There is no assurance that our commercialization efforts with respect to QINLOCK including, without
limitation, our launch of QINLOCK in key European markets, will be successful or that we will be able to generate revenues at the levels or on the
timing we expect, or at levels or on the timing necessary to support our goals.

To date, we have not generated sufficient revenue to result in a profit from the sale of products. On May 15, 2020, QINLOCK was approved in the
U.S. by the FDA for the treatment of adult patients with advanced GIST who have received prior treatment with three or more kinase inhibitors, including
imatinib. Our business currently depends heavily on our ability to successfully commercialize QINLOCK as a treatment for GIST in the U.S., key
European markets, and in other jurisdictions where we may obtain marketing approval. In November 2021, we announced that the European Commission
(EC) approved QINLOCK in the EU for the treatment of adult patients with advanced GIST who have received prior treatment with three or more kinase
inhibitors, including imatinib. We launched QINLOCK in Germany in January 2022, and have conducted the post-approval paid access program in France
since April 2022. We also plan to continue the European expansion of QINLOCK in 2023, with planned commercial launches following conclusion of
pricing and reimbursement negotiations in other key European markets. This process is conducted on a country-by-country basis and is time-consuming
and complex, and we may not be successful in obtaining reimbursements and other approvals in a timely manner with acceptable terms, or at all.
Furthermore, we may never be able to successfully commercialize our product or meet our expectations with respect to revenues. We have never marketed,
sold, or distributed for commercial use any pharmaceutical product other than QINLOCK in fourth-line advanced GIST and have a limited history of
commercial sales. There is no guarantee that the infrastructure, systems, processes, policies, relationships, and materials we have built for the
commercialization of QINLOCK in the U.S. in GIST, or those for the commercialization of QINLOCK in key European markets in GIST, will be sufficient
for us to achieve success at the levels we expect. Furthermore, there is no guarantee that we will be able to expand patient access to QINLOCK in
additional European countries through any channels that we may pursue.

We may encounter issues and challenges in commercializing QINLOCK and generating sufficient revenues to result in a profit. We may also
encounter challenges related to reimbursement of QINLOCK, including potential limitations in the scope, breadth, availability, or amount of reimbursement
covering QINLOCK. Similarly, healthcare settings or patients may determine that the financial burdens of treatment are not acceptable. We may face other
limitations or issues related to the price of QINLOCK. Our results may also be negatively impacted if we have not adequately sized our field teams or our
physician segmentation and targeting strategy is inadequate or if we encounter deficiencies or inefficiencies in our infrastructure or processes. Other factors
that may hinder our ability to successfully commercialize QINLOCK, or any of our future approved drugs, and generate sufficient revenues to result in a
profit, include:

• the acceptance of QINLOCK by patients and the medical community;

• our ability to successfully complete our Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK;

• the ability of our third-party manufacturer(s) to manufacture commercial supplies of QINLOCK at acceptable costs, to remain in good standing
with regulatory agencies, and to maintain commercially viable manufacturing processes that are, to the extent required, compliant with current
good manufacturing practice (cGMP) regulations;

• our ability to remain compliant with laws and regulations that apply to us and our commercial activities;
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• FDA- or EMA-mandated package insert requirements and successful completion of any related FDA or EMA post-marketing requirements;

• the actual market size for QINLOCK, which may be different than expected;

• the length of time that patients who are prescribed our drug remain on treatment;

• the sufficiency of our drug supply to meet commercial and clinical demands which could be negatively impacted if our projections regarding the
potential number of patients are inaccurate, we are subject to unanticipated regulatory requirements, or our current drug supply is destroyed, or
negatively impacted at our manufacturing sites, storage sites, or in transit;

• our ability to effectively compete with other therapies; and

• our ability to maintain, enforce, and defend third party challenges to our intellectual property rights in and to QINLOCK.

Any of these issues could impair our ability to successfully commercialize our product or to generate sufficient revenues to result in profit(s) or to
meet our expectations with respect to the amount or timing of revenues or profits. Any issues or hurdles related to our commercialization efforts may
materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. There is no guarantee that we will be successful in our
commercialization efforts with respect to QINLOCK in fourth-line advanced GIST. We may also experience significant fluctuations in sales of QINLOCK
from period to period and, ultimately, we may never generate sufficient revenues from QINLOCK to reach or maintain profitability or sustain our
anticipated levels of operations. Any inability on our part to successfully commercialize QINLOCK in the U.S., key European markets, and any other
international markets where it may subsequently be approved or any significant delay, could have a material adverse impact on our company.

We have limited experience as a commercial company and the marketing and sale of QINLOCK or any future approved drugs may be unsuccessful or
less successful than anticipated.

While we are commercializing QINLOCK in the U.S. and continuing our European geographic expansion of QINLOCK in key European markets,
we have limited experience as a commercial company and there is limited information about our ability to successfully overcome many of the risks and
uncertainties encountered by companies commercializing drugs in the biopharmaceutical industry. To execute our business plan, in addition to successfully
marketing and selling QINLOCK, we will need to successfully:

• establish and maintain our relationships with healthcare providers who will be treating the patients who may receive our drug and any future
drugs;

• obtain adequate pricing and reimbursement for QINLOCK and any future drugs;

• obtain regulatory authorization for the development and commercialization of the drug candidates in our pipeline;

• develop and maintain successful strategic alliances; and

• manage our spending as costs and expenses increase due to clinical trials, marketing approvals, and commercialization.

If we are unsuccessful in accomplishing these objectives, we may not be able to successfully develop drug candidates, commercialize QINLOCK or
any future drugs, raise capital, expand our business, or continue our operations.

Our reliance on sole source third-party suppliers could harm our ability to commercialize QINLOCK or any drug candidates that may be approved in
the future.

We have scaled up our manufacturing process for QINLOCK , and may continue to scale up as needed to satisfy greater drug requirements for
commercialization. We do not currently own or operate manufacturing facilities for the production of QINLOCK or any drug candidates that may be
approved in the future. We rely on sole source third-party suppliers to manufacture and supply QINLOCK which may not be able to produce sufficient
inventory to meet commercial demand in a cost-efficient, timely manner, or at all. Our third-party suppliers may not be required to, or may be unable to,
provide us with any guaranteed minimum production levels or have sufficient dedicated capacity for our drug. As a result, there can be no assurances that
we will be able to obtain sufficient quantities of QINLOCK or any drug candidates that may be approved in the future, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business as a whole.
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Our relationships with customers and third-party payors will be subject to applicable anti-kickback, fraud and abuse, and other healthcare laws and
regulations, and health information privacy and security laws, which could expose us to criminal sanctions, civil penalties, contractual damages,
reputational harm, and diminished profits and future earnings.

Healthcare providers, physicians, and third-party payors play a primary role in the recommendation and prescription of QINLOCK and any drug
candidates for which we obtain marketing approval. Our arrangements with third-party payors, customers, and other third parties may expose us to broadly
applicable fraud and abuse and other healthcare laws and regulations that may constrain the business or financial arrangements and relationships through
which we market, sell, and distribute QINLOCK and any other products for which we obtain marketing approval. These laws impact, among other things,
our research activities and proposed sales, marketing and education programs and constrain our business and financial arrangements and relationships with
third-party payors, healthcare professionals, and other parties through which we market, sell, and distribute QINLOCK and any other products for which
we obtain marketing approval. In addition, we may be subject to patient data privacy and security regulation by both the U.S. federal government and the
states in which we conduct our business, along with foreign regulators (including European data protection authorities). Finally, our current and future
operations are subject to additional healthcare-related statutory and regulatory requirements and enforcement by foreign regulatory authorities in
jurisdictions in which we conduct our business. For more information regarding the risks related to such laws, regulations, and patient assistance programs
please see "Business—Government Regulation—Other Healthcare Laws" in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The scope and enforcement of each of these laws is uncertain and subject to rapid change in the current environment of healthcare reform. Federal
and state enforcement bodies have increased their scrutiny of interactions between healthcare companies and healthcare providers, which has led to a
number of investigations, prosecutions, convictions and settlements in the healthcare industry. Even if precautions are taken, it is possible that
governmental authorities will conclude that our business practices could, despite efforts to comply, be subject to challenge under current or future statutes,
regulations, or case law involving applicable fraud and abuse or other healthcare laws and regulations. If our operations are found to be in violation of any
of these laws or any other governmental regulations that may apply to us, we may be subject to significant civil, criminal, and administrative penalties,
damages, fines, disgorgement, imprisonment, exclusion of drugs from government funded healthcare programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, additional
reporting requirements and oversight if we become subject to a corporate integrity agreement or similar agreement to resolve allegations of non-compliance
with these laws, reputational harm, and the curtailment or restructuring of our operations. If any of the physicians or other healthcare providers or entities
with whom we expect to do business is found not to be in compliance with applicable laws, that person or entity may be subject to significant criminal,
civil, or administrative sanctions, including exclusions from government funded healthcare programs. Prohibitions or restrictions on sales or withdrawal of
future marketed products could materially affect our business in an adverse way.

Efforts to ensure that our business arrangements with third parties will comply with applicable healthcare laws and regulations will involve
substantial costs. Any action against us for violation of these laws, even if we successfully defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal
expenses and divert our management’s attention from the operation of our business. The shifting compliance environment and the need to build and
maintain robust and expandable systems to comply with multiple jurisdictions with different compliance or reporting requirements increases the possibility
that a healthcare company may run afoul of one or more of the requirements.

The insurance coverage and reimbursement status of our drug is uncertain. QINLOCK and our drug candidates may become subject to unfavorable
pricing regulations, third-party coverage and reimbursement practices, or healthcare reform initiatives, which would harm our business. Failure to
obtain or maintain adequate coverage and reimbursement for new or current products could limit our ability to market those products and decrease our
ability to generate revenue.

The regulations that govern marketing approvals, pricing, coverage, and reimbursement for new drugs vary widely from country to country. In the
U.S., recently enacted legislation may significantly change the approval requirements in ways that could involve additional costs and cause delays in
obtaining approvals. Some countries require approval of the sale price of a drug before it can be marketed. In many countries, the pricing review period
begins after marketing or product licensing approval is granted. In some foreign markets, including certain European countries, prescription pharmaceutical
pricing remains subject to continuing governmental control even after initial approval is granted. As a result, we might obtain marketing approval for a
product in a particular country, but then be subject to price regulations that delay our commercial launch of the product, possibly for lengthy time periods,
and negatively impact the revenue we are able to generate from the sale of the product in that country. Adverse pricing limitations may hinder our ability to
recoup our investment in QINLOCK or one or more of our drug candidates, even if such drug candidates obtain marketing approval. For more information
regarding the risks related to insurance coverage and reimbursement please see "Business—Government Regulation—Coverage and Reimbursement" in
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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Our ability to successfully commercialize QINLOCK and other drug candidates also will depend in part on the extent to which coverage and
adequate reimbursement for these products and related treatments will be available from government health administration authorities, private health
insurers, and other organizations. Government authorities and other third-party payors, such as private health insurers and health maintenance
organizations, decide which medications they will pay for and establish reimbursement levels. The availability of coverage and extent of reimbursement by
governmental and private payors is essential for most patients to be able to afford treatments. Sales of these or other drug candidates that we may identify
will depend substantially, both domestically and abroad, on the extent to which the costs of our drug and drug candidates will be paid by health
maintenance, managed care, pharmacy benefit, and similar healthcare management organizations, or reimbursed by government health administration
authorities, private health coverage insurers, and other third-party payors. If coverage and adequate reimbursement is not available, or is available only to
limited levels, we may not be able to successfully commercialize our drug or drug candidates. Even if coverage is provided, the approved reimbursement
amount may not be high enough to allow us to establish or maintain pricing sufficient to realize a sufficient return on our investment.

Recently enacted and future legislation may increase the difficulty and cost for us to obtain marketing approval of and commercialize our drug
candidates and decrease the prices we may obtain for our approved drug.

In the U.S. and some foreign jurisdictions, there have been a number of legislative and regulatory changes and proposed changes regarding the
healthcare system that could prevent or delay marketing approval of our drug candidates, restrict or regulate post-approval activities, and affect our ability
to profitably sell our approved drug and any drug candidates for which we obtain marketing approval. Among policy-makers and payers in the U.S. and
elsewhere, there is significant interest in promoting changes in healthcare systems with the stated goals of containing healthcare costs, improving quality
and/or expanding access to healthcare. In the U.S., the pharmaceutical industry has been a particular focus of these efforts and has been significantly
affected by major legislative initiatives. There have been, and likely will continue to be, legislative and regulatory proposals at the federal and state levels
directed at broadening the availability of healthcare and containing or lowering the cost of healthcare. For more information regarding the risks related to
such recently enacted and future legislation please see “Business—Government Regulation—U.S. Healthcare Reform” in our Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2022.

There has been increasing legislative and enforcement interest in the United States with respect to drug pricing practices. Specifically, there has been
heightened governmental scrutiny over the manner in which manufacturers set prices for their marketed products, which has resulted in several United
States Congressional inquiries and proposed and enacted federal and state legislation designed to, among other things, bring more transparency to drug
pricing, reduce the cost of prescription drugs under Medicare, and review the relationship between pricing and manufacturer patient programs. The
Inflation Reduction Act of 2022, or IRA, includes several provisions that may impact our business to varying degrees, including provisions that reduce the
out-of-pocket spending cap for Medicare Part D beneficiaries from $7,050 to $2,000 starting in 2025, thereby effectively eliminating the coverage gap;
impose new manufacturer financial liability on certain drugs under Medicare Part D; allow the U.S. government to negotiate Medicare Part B and Part D
price caps for certain high-cost drugs and biologics without generic or biosimilar competition; require companies to pay rebates to Medicare for certain
drug prices that increase faster than inflation; and delay until January 1, 2032 the implementation of the HHS rebate rule that would have limited the fees
that pharmacy benefit managers can charge. Further, under the IRA, orphan drugs are exempted from the Medicare drug price negotiation program, but
only if they have one orphan designation and for which the only approved indication is for that disease or condition. If a product receives multiple orphan
designations or has multiple approved indications, it may not qualify for the orphan drug exemption. The implementation of the IRA is currently subject to
ongoing litigation challenging the constitutionality of the IRA's Medicare drug price negotiation program. The full effects of the IRA on our business and
the healthcare industry in general is not yet known.

In addition, President Biden has issued multiple executive orders that have sought to reduce prescription drug costs. In February 2023, HHS also
issued a proposal in response to an October 2022 executive order from President Biden that includes a proposed prescription drug pricing model that will
test whether targeted Medicare payment adjustments will sufficiently incentivize manufacturers to complete confirmatory trials for drugs approved through
FDA’s accelerated approval pathway. Although a number of these and other proposed measures may require authorization through additional legislation to
become effective, and the Biden administration may reverse or otherwise change these measures, both the Biden administration and Congress have
indicated that they will continue to seek new legislative measures to control drug costs.

Individual states in the United States have also become increasingly active in passing legislation and implementing regulations designed to control
pharmaceutical and biological product pricing, including price or patient reimbursement constraints, discounts, restrictions on certain drug access and
marketing cost disclosure and transparency measures, and designed to encourage importation from other countries and bulk purchasing. Legally mandated
price controls on payment amounts by third-party payors or other restrictions could harm our business, financial condition, results of operations, and
prospects. In addition, regional healthcare authorities and individual hospitals are increasingly using bidding procedures to determine what

37



Table of Contents

pharmaceutical products and which suppliers will be included in their prescription drug and other healthcare programs. This could reduce the ultimate
demand for our drugs or put pressure on our drug pricing, which could negatively affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and
prospects.

We expect that the healthcare reform measures that have been adopted and may be adopted in the future, may result in more rigorous coverage
criteria and in additional downward pressure on the price that we receive for any approved product and could seriously harm our future revenues. Any
reduction in reimbursement from Medicare or other government programs may result in a similar reduction in payments from private payors. The
implementation of cost containment measures or other healthcare reforms may prevent us from being able to generate revenue, attain profitability or
commercialize our products.

Inadequate funding for the FDA, the SEC, and other government agencies, including from government shutdowns, or other disruptions to these
agencies’ operations, could hinder their ability to hire and retain key leadership and other personnel, prevent new products and services from being
developed or commercialized in a timely manner or otherwise prevent those agencies from performing normal business functions on which the
operation of our business may rely, which could negatively impact our business.

The ability of the FDA to review and approve new products can be affected by a variety of factors, including government budget and funding levels,
the ability to hire and retain key personnel and the acceptance of user fees payments, and statutory, regulatory, and policy changes. Average review times at
the agency have fluctuated in recent years as a result. If a prolonged government shutdown occurs, if the FDA is required to furlough review staff or
necessary employees, or if the agency operations are otherwise impacted, it could significantly affect the ability of the FDA to timely review and process
our regulatory submissions, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. Further, future government shutdowns could impact our ability to
access the public markets and obtain necessary capital in order to properly capitalize and continue our operations.

QINLOCK or any current drug candidates, such as vimseltinib and DCC-3116, or future drug candidates, if successfully developed and approved, may
cause undesirable side effects that limit the commercial profile or result in other significant negative consequences for approved products; or delay or
prevent further development or regulatory approval with respect to drug candidates or new indications, or cause regulatory authorities to require
labeling statements, such as boxed warnings.

Undesirable side effects caused by QINLOCK or any current drug candidates, such as vimseltinib and DCC-3116, or future approved drugs could
limit the commercial profile of such drug or result in significant negative consequences such as a more restrictive label or other limitations or restrictions.
In addition, undesirable side effects caused by our drug candidates could cause us or regulatory authorities to interrupt, delay, or halt non-clinical studies
and clinical trials or could result in a more restrictive label or the delay, or denial of regulatory approval by the FDA, the EMA, or other regulatory
authorities.

Clinical trials by their nature utilize a sample of the potential patient population. With a limited number of patients and limited duration of exposure,
certain side effects of QINLOCK or of our current drug candidates, such as vimseltinib and DCC-3116, or future drug candidates may only be uncovered
with a significantly larger number of patients exposed to the drug, and those side effects could be serious or life-threatening. If we or others identify
undesirable side effects caused by QINLOCK or any future approved drug (or any other similar drugs), a number of potentially significant negative
consequences could result, including:

• regulatory authorities may withdraw or limit their approval of such drugs;

• regulatory authorities may require the addition of labeling statements, such as a “boxed” warning or additions to an existing boxed warning, or a
contraindication, including as a result of inclusion in a class of drugs for a particular disease;

• regulatory authorities may refuse to approve label expansion for additional indications for QINLOCK or any approved drugs;

• we may be required to change the way such drugs are distributed or administered, conduct additional clinical trials, or change the labeling of the
drugs;

• we may be subject to regulatory investigations and government enforcement actions;

• we may decide to remove such drugs from the marketplace;

• we could be sued and held liable for injury caused to individuals exposed to or taking such drugs; and

• our reputation may suffer.
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We believe that any of these events could prevent us from advancing clinical development or achieving or maintaining market acceptance of the
affected drug, and could substantially increase the costs of commercializing such drugs and significantly impact our ability to successfully commercialize
such drugs and generate revenues.

We may incur significant liability if enforcement authorities allege or determine that we are engaging in commercial activities or promoting QINLOCK
or any future approved drug in a way that violates applicable regulations.

Physicians have the discretion to prescribe drug products for uses that are not described in the product's labeling and that differ from those approved
by the FDA or other applicable regulatory agencies. Off-label uses are common across medical specialties. Although the FDA and other regulatory
agencies do not regulate a physician's choice of treatments, the FDA and other regulatory agencies regulate a manufacturer's communications regarding off-
label use and prohibit off-label promotion, as well as the dissemination of false or misleading labeling or promotional materials. Manufacturers may not
promote drugs for off-label uses. Accordingly, we may not promote QINLOCK for use in any indications other than the treatment of adult patients with
advanced GIST who have received prior treatment with three or more kinase inhibitors, including imatinib. The FDA, competent authorities of the Member
States in the EU, and other regulatory and enforcement authorities actively enforce laws and regulations prohibiting promotion of off-label uses and the
promotion of products for which marketing approval has not been obtained. A company that is found to have improperly promoted off-label uses, including
promoting unapproved dosing regimens, may be subject to significant liability, which may include civil and administrative remedies as well as criminal
sanctions.

Notwithstanding regulations related to product promotion, the FDA, competent authorities of the Member States of the EU, and other regulatory
authorities allow companies to engage in truthful, non-misleading, and non-promotional scientific exchange concerning their products. We intend to engage
in medical education activities and communicate with healthcare providers in compliance with all applicable laws and regulatory guidance.

Laws and regulations governing our current international operations or international operations we may have in the future may preclude us from
developing, manufacturing, and selling certain drug candidates and products outside of the U.S. and require us to develop and implement costly
compliance programs.

As we expand our operations outside of the U.S. in key European markets, we must dedicate additional resources to comply with numerous laws and
regulations in each jurisdiction in which we plan to operate. The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) prohibits any U.S. individual or business from
paying, offering, authorizing payment, or offering anything of value, directly or indirectly, to any foreign official, political party, or candidate for the
purpose of influencing any act or decision of such third party in order to assist the individual or business in obtaining or retaining business. The FCPA also
obligates companies whose securities are listed in the U.S. to comply with certain accounting provisions requiring the company to maintain books and
records that accurately and fairly reflect all transactions of the company, including international subsidiaries, and to devise and maintain an adequate
system of internal accounting controls for international operations.

Compliance with the FCPA is expensive and difficult, particularly in countries in which corruption is a recognized problem. In addition, the FCPA
presents particular challenges in the pharmaceutical industry, because, in many countries, hospitals are operated by the government, and doctors and other
hospital employees are considered foreign officials. Certain payments to hospitals in connection with clinical trials and other work have been deemed to be
improper payments to government officials and have led to FCPA enforcement actions. Similar laws in other countries, such as the U.K. Bribery Act 2010,
may apply to our operations.

Various laws, regulations, and executive orders also restrict the use and dissemination outside of the U.S., or the sharing with certain non-U.S.
nationals, of information classified for national security purposes, as well as certain products and technical data relating to those products. Such laws may
preclude us from developing, manufacturing, or selling certain drug candidates and products outside of the U.S., which could limit our growth potential and
increase our development costs.

The failure to comply with laws governing international business practices may result in substantial civil and criminal penalties and suspension or
debarment from government contracting. The SEC also may suspend or bar issuers from trading securities on U.S. exchanges for violations of the FCPA's
accounting provisions.

Governments outside of the U.S. tend to impose strict price controls, which may adversely affect our revenues, if any.

In some countries, particularly Canada and the countries of Europe, including without limitation, Germany and France, the pricing of prescription
pharmaceuticals is subject to governmental control. In these countries, pricing negotiations with governmental authorities can take considerable time after
the receipt of marketing authorization to evaluate the product for
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reimbursement. To obtain reimbursement or pricing approval in some countries, we may be required to conduct a clinical trial that compares the cost-
effectiveness of our drug candidate to other available therapies. If reimbursement of our approved drug is unavailable or limited in scope or amount, or if
pricing is set at unsatisfactory levels, our business could be harmed.

We may fail to comply with evolving privacy and data protection laws, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

In California, the California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA), which became effective in 2020, broadly defines personal information, gives California
residents expanded individual privacy rights and protections and provides for civil penalties for violations and a private right of action for data breaches.
Further, the California Privacy Rights Act (CPRA), which became effective in 2023, and amends the CCPA, creates additional obligations with respect to
processing and storing personal information. We will continue to monitor developments related to the CCPA and anticipate additional costs and expenses
associated with CPRA compliance. While there is an exception for protected health information that is subject to HIPAA and clinical trial regulations, the
CCPA may impact our business activities if we become a "Business" regulated by the CCPA. Unlike other state privacy laws, the CCPA also regulates
personal information collected in a business to business and in human resources contexts. Further, there continues to be some uncertainly about how certain
provisions of the CCPA will be interpreted and how the law will be enforced.

In addition to the CCPA, broad consumer privacy laws recently went into effect in Virginia on January 1, 2023 and in Colorado and Connecticut on
July 1, 2023 and new privacy laws will become effective in Utah on December 31, 2023, in Florida, Montana and Texas in 2024, in Tennessee and Iowa in
2025, and in Indiana in 2026 and numerous other states are considering new privacy laws. Furthermore, other U.S. states, such as New York,
Massachusetts, and Utah have enacted stringent data security laws and numerous other states have proposed similar privacy laws.

New privacy and data security laws have been proposed in more than half of the states in the U.S. and in the U.S. Congress, reflecting a trend toward
more stringent privacy legislation in the U.S., which trend may accelerate with increasing concerns about individual privacy. The existence of
comprehensive privacy laws in different states in the country will make our compliance obligations more complex and costly and may require us to modify
our data processing practices and policies and to incur substantial costs and potential liability in an effort to comply with such legislation.

In the EU and the U.K., we may also face particular privacy, data security, and data protection risks in connection with requirements of the General
Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 (GDPR), the GDPR as it existed on December 31, 2020 but subject to certain U.K. specific amendments
incorporated into U.K. law on January 1, 2021 under the U.K. GDPR and other data protection requirements. The GDPR applies to any company
established in the EU as well as to those outside the EU if they collect and use personal data in connection with the offering of goods or services to
individuals in the EU or the monitoring of their behavior. We currently conduct clinical trials and engage in regulatory and commercial operations in the
EEA and the U.K. As a result, we are subject to additional privacy laws, including the GDPR and U.K. GDPR (collectively referred to as "GDPR"). The
GDPR imposes a broad range of data protection obligations on companies subject to the GDPR, including, for example, imposing obligations on
companies around how they process personal data, stricter requirements relating to processing health and other sensitive data, ensuring there is a legal basis
to justify the processing of personal data, stricter requirements relating to obtaining consent of individuals, expanded disclosures about how personal
information is to be used, limitations on retention of information, mandatory data breach notification requirements, implementing safeguards to protect the
security and confidentiality of personal data, taking certain measures on engagement with third parties, restrictions on transfers outside of the EU to third
countries deemed to lack adequate privacy protections (such as the U.S.), and has created onerous new obligations and liabilities on services providers or
data processors. Non-compliance with the GDPR may result in monetary penalties of up to €20 million or 4% of worldwide revenue, whichever is higher.
Moreover, data subjects can claim damages resulting from infringement of the GDPR. The GDPR further grants non-profit organizations the right to bring
claims on behalf of data subjects. The GDPR and other changes in laws or regulations associated with the enhanced protection of certain types of personal
data, such as healthcare data or other sensitive information, could greatly increase our cost of providing our products and services or even prevent us from
offering certain services in jurisdictions that we may operate in. The GDPR may increase our responsibility and liability in relation to personal data that we
process where such processing is subject to the GDPR, and we may be required to put in place additional mechanisms to ensure compliance with the
GDPR, including as implemented by individual countries. Compliance with the GDPR will be a, rigorous and time-intensive process that may increase our
cost of doing business or require us to change our business practices, and despite those efforts, there is a risk that we may be subject to fines and penalties,
litigation, and reputational harm in connection with our European activities.

In addition, further to the U.K.'s exit from the EU on January 31, 2020, the GDPR ceased to apply in the U.K. at the end of the transition period on
December 31, 2020. However, as of January 1, 2021, the U.K.'s European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018
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incorporated the U.K. GDPR into U.K. law. The U.K. GDPR and the U.K. Data Protection Act 2018 set out the U.K.'s data protection regime, which is
independent from but, currently, aligned to the EU's data protection regime. Non-compliance with the U.K. GDPR may result in monetary penalties of up
to £17.5 million or 4% of worldwide revenue, whichever is higher. In addition, on June 28, 2021, the EC adopted an adequacy decision in respect of
transfers of personal data to the U.K. for a four-year period (until June 27, 2025). Similarly, the U.K. has determined that it considers all of the EEA to be
adequate for the purposes of data protection. This ensures that data flows between the U.K. and the EEA remain unaffected. The U.K. Government has also
now introduced a Data Protection and Digital Information Bill (or the UK Bill) into the UK legislative process with the intention for this bill to reform the
U.K.’s data protection regime following Brexit. If passed, the final version of the U.K. Bill may have the effect of further altering the similarities between
the U.K. and EU data protection regime and threaten the U.K. Adequacy Decision from the EU Commission. This may lead to additional compliance costs
and could increase our overall risk.

Over the past few years, the number of enforcement actions and the fines have both steadily increased. U.S. data privacy laws, such as the CCPA,
and others that may be passed, similarly introduce requirements with respect to personal information, and non-compliance with the CCPA may result in
liability through private actions (subject to defined statutory damages in the event of certain data breaches) and enforcement. Failure to comply with these
current and future laws, policies, industry standards, or legal obligations or any security incident resulting in the unauthorized access to, corruption of, or
acquisition, release, or transfer of personal information may result in government enforcement actions, litigation, fines, and penalties, or adverse publicity
and could cause our customers, business partners, and investors to lose trust in us which could have a material adverse impact on our business and results
of our operations. We continue to face uncertainty as to the exact interpretation of the new requirements on our trials and we may be unsuccessful in
implementing all measures required by data protection authorities or courts in interpretation of the new law.

In particular, Member States have implemented national laws which may partially deviate from the GDPR and impose different and more restrictive
obligations from country to country, so that we do not expect to operate in a uniform legal landscape in the EU. Also, as it relates to processing and transfer
of genetic data, the GDPR specifically allows the Member States to enact laws that impose additional and more specific requirements or restrictions, and
European laws have historically differed quite substantially in this field, leading to additional uncertainty.

In addition, we must also ensure that we maintain adequate safeguards to enable the transfer of personal data outside of the EEA or the U.K., in
particular to the U.S., in compliance with EEA and U.K. data protection laws . We expect that we will continue to face uncertainty as to whether our efforts
to comply with our obligations under European privacy laws will be sufficient. In some cases, we rely upon the recently updated standard contractual
clauses (new standard contractual clauses) to legitimize transfers of personal data out of the EEA from controllers or processors established outside the
EEA (and not subject to the GDPR). Transition to the new standard contractual clauses requires significant effort and cost particularly given the
burdensome requirements of transfer impact assessments and the substantial obligations that the new standard contractual clauses impose upon exporters.
The U.K. is not subject to the EC's new standard contractual clauses but has published its own transfer mechanism, the International Data Transfer
Agreement, which enables transfers from the U.K. On June 28, 2021, the EC announced a decision of "adequacy" concluding that the U.K. ensures an
equivalent level of data protection to the GDPR, which provides some relief regarding the legality of continued personal data flows from the EEA to the
U.K. Some uncertainty remains, however, as this adequacy determination must be renewed after four years and may be modified or revoked in the interim.
The U.K. Government has confirmed that transfers from the U.K. to the EEA may currently continue to flow freely. Changes with respect to any of these
matters may lead to additional costs and increase our overall risk exposure. The EU and U.S. have adopted its adequacy decision for the EU U.S. Data
Privacy Framework ("Framework"), which enters into force on July 11, 2023 This Framework provides that the protection of personal data transferred
between the EU and the U.S. is comparable to that offered in the EU. This provides a further avenue to ensuring transfers to the US are carried out in line
with GDPR. The Framework could be challenged like its predecessor frameworks.

If we are investigated by a European data protection authority, we may face fines and other penalties. Any such investigation or charges by European
data protection authorities could have a negative effect on our existing business and on our ability to attract and retain new clients or pharmaceutical
partners. We may also experience hesitancy, reluctance, or refusal by European or multi-national clients or pharmaceutical partners to continue to use our
products due to the potential risk exposure as a result of the current (and, in particular, future) data protection obligations imposed on them by certain data
protection authorities in interpretation of current law, including the GDPR. Such clients or pharmaceutical partners may also view any alternative
approaches to compliance as being too costly, too burdensome, too legally uncertain, or otherwise objectionable and therefore decide not to do business
with us. Any of the foregoing could materially harm our business, prospects, financial condition, and results of operations.
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In addition, many jurisdictions outside of Europe are also considering and/or enacting comprehensive data protection legislation. For example, as of
August 2020, the Brazilian General Data Protection Law imposes stringent requirements similar to GDPR with respect to personal information collected
from individuals in Brazil.

In China, there have also been recent significant developments concerning privacy and data security. The Data Security Law of the People’s
Republic of China (Data Security Law), which took effect on September 1, 2021, requires data processing (which includes the collection, storage, use,
processing, transmission, provision and publication of data), to be conducted in a legitimate and proper manner. The Data Security Law imposes data
security and privacy obligations on entities and individuals carrying out data processing activities and also introduces a data classification and hierarchical
protection system based on the importance of data in economic and social development and the degree of harm it may cause to national security, public
interests, or legitimate rights and interests of individuals or organizations if such data are tampered with, destroyed, leaked, illegally acquired or illegally
used. The appropriate level of protection measures is required to be taken for each respective category of data.

Also in China, the Personal Information Protection Law, which took effect on November 1, 2021, introduced stringent protection requirements for
processing personal information, which are in many ways akin to the requirements of the GDPR. We may be required to make further significant
adjustments to our business practices to comply with the personal information protection laws and regulations in China including the Personal Information
Protection Law.

We also continue to see jurisdictions imposing data localization laws. These regulations may interfere with our intended business activities, inhibit
our ability to expand into those markets or prohibit us from continuing to offer services in those markets without significant additional costs.

Because the interpretation and application of many privacy and data protection laws (including the GDPR), commercial frameworks, and standards
are uncertain, it is possible that these laws, frameworks, and standards may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent with our existing data
management practices and policies. If so, in addition to the possibility of fines, lawsuits, breach of contract claims, and other claims and penalties, we could
be required to fundamentally change our business activities and practices or modify our solutions, which could have an adverse effect on our business. Any
inability to adequately address privacy and security concerns, even if unfounded, or comply with applicable privacy and security or data security laws,
regulations, and policies, could result in additional cost and liability to us, damage our reputation, inhibit our ability to conduct trials, and adversely affect
our business.

Unfavorable global economic conditions, including exchange rate fluctuations, could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected by general conditions in the global economy and in the global financial markets. Portions of
our future clinical trials may be conducted outside of the U.S. and unfavorable economic conditions resulting in the weakening of the U.S. dollar would
make those clinical trials more costly to operate. Given the international scope of our operations, fluctuations in exchange rates, particularly between the
U.S. dollar and the Euro, may have a significant impact on our results of operations and cash flows from period to period and the price of our common
stock. Although we are based in the United States, we sell QINLOCK in the EU and we have also entered into exclusive distributor arrangements to
facilitate sales of QINLOCK in select geographies where we do not currently intend to distribute QINLOCK on our own. Currently, we do not have any
exchange rate hedging arrangements in place.

In addition, regarding the war in Ukraine, while we do not have any clinical trial sites or operations in Ukraine or Russia, if the war expands into the
surrounding region, resulting heightened economic sanctions from the U.S. and the international community could limit our ability to procure or use certain
materials or manufacturing slots for the products needed for our clinical trials, which could lead to delays in these trials. Furthermore, the most recent
global financial crisis caused extreme volatility and disruptions in the capital and credit markets. Similarly, the volatility associated with the COVID-19
pandemic has caused significant instability and disruptions in the capital and credit markets and, in recent months, the global economy has been impacted
by increasing interest rates and high inflation, as well as by the war in Ukraine and the possibility of a wider European or global conflict. A severe or
prolonged economic downturn (including inflation or uncertainty caused by political violence and chaos) could result in a variety of risks to our business,
including a reduced ability to raise additional capital when needed on acceptable terms, if at all. A weak or declining economy or international trade
disputes could also strain our suppliers, some of which are located outside of the U.S., possibly resulting in supply disruption. Any of the foregoing could
harm our business and we cannot anticipate all of the ways in which the current economic climate and financial market conditions could adversely impact
our business.
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Adverse developments affecting the financial services industry, such as actual events or concerns involving liquidity, defaults, or non-performance by
financial institutions or transactional counterparties, could adversely affect our current and projected business operations and our financial condition
and results of operations.

Actual events involving limited liquidity, defaults, non-performance or other adverse developments that affect financial institutions, transactional
counterparties or other companies in the financial services industry or the financial services industry generally, or concerns or rumors about any events of
these kinds or other similar risks, have in the past and may in the future lead to market-wide liquidity problems. For example, in March 2023, Silicon
Valley Bank (SVB) was closed by the California Department of Financial Protection and Innovation, which appointed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) as receiver. Similarly, in March 2023, Signature Bank and Silvergate Capital Corp. were each swept into receivership; since then,
additional financial institutions have experienced similar failures and have been placed into receivership. It is possible that other banks will face similar
difficulty in the future. Although a statement by the Department of the Treasury, the Federal Reserve, and the FDIC indicated that all depositors of SVB
would have access to all of their money after only one business day of closure, including funds held in uninsured deposit accounts, borrowers under credit
agreements, letters of credit, and certain other financial instruments with financial institutions that have been placed into receivership by the FDIC may be
unable to access undrawn amounts thereunder. Although we do not have investments with any financial institution currently in receivership, if any financial
institution with which we have a relationship were to be placed into receivership, we may be unable to access such funds. In addition, if any parties with
whom we conduct business are unable to access funds pursuant to instruments or lending arrangements with such a financial institution, such parties’
ability to pay their obligations to us or to enter into new commercial arrangements requiring additional payments to us could be adversely affected. In this
regard, counterparties to credit agreements and arrangements with banks in receivership or other financial difficulty, and third parties (such as beneficiaries
of letters of credit, among others), may experience direct impacts from the closure or reorganization of such financial institutions and uncertainty remains
over liquidity concerns in the broader financial services industry. Similar impacts have occurred in the past, such as during the 2008-2010 financial crisis.

Inflation and rapid increases in interest rates have led to a decline in the trading value of previously issued government securities with interest rates
below current market interest rates. Although the U.S. Department of Treasury, FDIC, and Federal Reserve Board have announced a program to provide up
to $25 billion of loans to financial institutions secured by certain government securities held by financial institutions to mitigate the risk of potential losses
on the sale of such instruments, widespread demands for customer withdrawals or other liquidity needs of financial institutions for immediate liquidity may
exceed the capacity of such program. Additionally, there is no guarantee that the U.S. Department of Treasury, FDIC, and Federal Reserve Board will
provide access to uninsured funds in the event of the closure of other banks or financial institutions in the future, or that they would do so in a timely
fashion.

Although we assess our banking relationships as we believe necessary or appropriate, our access to funding sources in amounts adequate to finance
or capitalize our current and projected future business operations could be significantly impaired by factors that affect us, the financial institutions with
which we have financial arrangements directly, or the financial services industry or economy in general. These factors could include, among others, events
such as liquidity constraints or failures, the ability to perform obligations under various types of financial, credit, or liquidity agreements or arrangements,
disruptions or instability in the financial services industry or financial markets, or concerns or negative expectations about the prospects for companies in
the financial services industry. These factors could involve financial institutions or financial services industry companies with which we have financial or
business relationships, but could also include factors involving financial markets or the financial services industry generally.

The results of events or concerns that involve one or more of these factors could include a variety of material and adverse impacts on our current and
projected business operations and our financial condition and results of operations. These could include, but may not be limited to, the following:

• delayed access to deposits or other financial assets or the uninsured loss of deposits or other financial assets;

• potential or actual breach of contractual obligations that require us to maintain letters of credit or other credit support arrangements; or

• termination of cash management arrangements and/or delays in accessing or actual loss of funds subject to cash management arrangements.

In addition, investor concerns regarding the U.S. or international financial systems could result in less favorable commercial financing terms,
including higher interest rates or costs and tighter financial and operating covenants, or systemic limitations on access to credit and liquidity sources,
thereby making it more difficult for us to acquire financing on acceptable terms or at all. Any decline in available funding or access to our cash and
liquidity resources could, among other risks, adversely
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impact our ability to meet our operating expenses, financial obligations, or fulfill our other obligations, result in breaches of our financial and/or contractual
obligations or result in violations of federal or state wage and hour laws. Any of these impacts, or any other impacts resulting from the factors described
above or other related or similar factors not described above, could have material adverse impacts on our liquidity and our current and/or projected business
operations and financial condition and results of operations.

Any further deterioration in the macroeconomic economy or financial services industry could lead to losses or defaults by any parties with whom we
conduct business, which in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our current and/or projected business operations and results of operations and
financial condition. For example, a third party with whom we conduct business may fail to make payments when due, default under their agreements with
us, become insolvent or declare bankruptcy. In addition, a third party with whom we conduct business could be adversely affected by any of the liquidity or
other risks that are described above as factors that could result in material adverse impacts on us, including but not limited to, delayed access or loss of
access to uninsured deposits or loss of the ability to draw on existing credit facilities involving a troubled or failed financial institution. Any bankruptcy or
insolvency by a third party with whom we conduct business, or the failure of such party to make payments when due, or any breach or default by such
party, or the loss of any significant relationships, could result in material losses to us and may have a material adverse impact on our business.

Our future success depends on our ability to retain key executives and to attract, retain, and motivate qualified personnel.

Our future operations will depend in large part on the efforts of our President and Chief Executive Officer, Steven L. Hoerter. In addition, we are
highly dependent on the research, development, and management expertise of the other principal members of our executive team. Although we have
entered into employment agreements with our executive officers, each of them may terminate their employment with us at any time.

Recruiting and retaining qualified scientific, clinical, manufacturing, and sales and marketing personnel will also be critical to our success. The loss
of the services of our executive officers or other key employees could impede the achievement of our research, development, and commercialization
objectives and seriously harm our ability to successfully implement our business strategy. Furthermore, replacing executive officers and key employees
may be difficult and may take an extended period of time because of the limited number of individuals in our industry with the breadth of skills and
experience required to successfully develop, gain marketing approval of, and commercialize products. Competition to hire from this limited pool is intense,
and we may be unable to hire, train, retain, or motivate these key personnel on acceptable terms given the competition among numerous pharmaceutical
and biotechnology companies for similar personnel. We also experience competition for the hiring of scientific and clinical personnel from universities and
research institutions. In addition, we rely on consultants and advisors, including scientific and clinical advisors, to assist us in formulating our research and
development and commercialization strategy. Our consultants and advisors may be employed by employers other than us and may have commitments
under consulting or advisory contracts with other entities that may limit their availability to us. If we are unable to continue to attract and retain high quality
personnel, our ability to pursue our growth strategy will be limited.

Risks Related to Sales, Marketing, and Competition

We face substantial competition, which may result in others discovering, developing, or commercializing products before or more successfully than we
do.

The development and commercialization of new pharmaceutical and biotechnology products is highly competitive. We face competition with respect
to our approved drug and current clinical-stage drug candidates and will face competition with respect to any drugs and drug candidates that we may seek
to develop or commercialize in the future, from major pharmaceutical companies, specialty pharmaceutical companies, and biotechnology companies
worldwide. There are a number of large pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies that currently market and sell products or are pursuing the
development of products for the treatment of the disease indications for which we are developing our drug candidates and commercializing our approved
drug. Some of these competitive products and therapies are based on scientific approaches that are similar to our approach, and others are based on entirely
different approaches. Potential competitors also include academic institutions, government agencies, and other public and private research organizations
that conduct research, seek patent protection, and establish collaborative arrangements for research, development, manufacturing, and commercialization.

Specifically, there are a large number of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies developing or marketing treatments for cancer that would be
competitive with QINLOCK and the drug candidates we are developing, if such drug candidates are approved. Many of these companies are developing
cancer therapeutics that are also kinase inhibitors. Although there are currently marketed drugs that have activity in GIST through their targeting of primary
and secondary KIT mutants, other than avapritinib for GIST PDGFRA exon 18 mutations only, no currently marketed drug directly targets certain
secondary resistance
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mutations in KIT and PDGFRA, and no currently marketed drug provides coverage of all KIT and PDGFRA mutants. With respect to QINLOCK, there are
a number of large pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies marketing small molecule drugs or biologic drugs for the treatment of GIST,
including Blueprint Medicines Corporation, Novartis AG (Novartis), Pfizer and Bayer AG. We are also aware of pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies developing drugs for the treatment of GIST including AB Sciences S.A., Ascentage Pharma Group Inc. (APGI), Arog Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(Arog), Chia Tai Tianqing Pharmaceutical Group CO., LTD (CTTPG), Cogent Biosciences, Inc. (Cogent), Immunicum AB (Immunicum), Jiangsu
HengRui, Inc. (Jiangsu), Ningbo Tai Kang Medical Technology Co. Ltd. (NTKMT), Novartis, Taiho Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd (Taiho), Theseus
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and IDRx, Inc. (IDRx). Several of these programs are in clinical studies, including but not limited to APGI, Arog, CTTPG, Cogent,
Immunicum, Jiangsu, NTKMT, and IDRx. Further, there are numerous companies marketing or developing antibodies and small molecules targeting
CSF1R for TGCT, including Abbisko Therapeutics Co., Ltd., AmMax Bio, Inc., Daiichi Sankyo Company, Limited, Dragonboat Biopharmaceutical
Company Limited, HXPharma, SynOx Therapeutics Ltd, and HUTCHMED (China) Limited. These programs are also in clinical studies for TGCT. In
addition, pexidartinib is the only FDA approved product, which is indicated for the treatment of adult patients with symptomatic TGCT associated with
severe morbidity or functional limitations and not amenable to improvement with surgery. With respect to DCC-3116, an ULK inhibitor designed to
address mutant RAS and RAF cancers being studied in a Phase 1/2 clinical study, we are aware of other companies that are advancing programs targeting
ULK, including Erasca, Inc. (Erasca), Txinno Bioscience Inc., and Ailon Pharma Oy. With respect to DCC-3084, we are also aware of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies developing pan-RAF development candidates, including Day One Biopharmaceuticals, Inc. (Day One), Jazz Pharma
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (Jazz Pharma), F. Hoffmann-La Roche AG (Roche), Kinnate Biopharma Inc. (Kinnate), Erasca, Pfizer, Black Diamond Therapeutics,
Inc. (Black Diamond), BeiGene, Inc. (BeiGene) Nested Therapeutics, METiS Therapeutics (METiS), and Verastem, Inc. (Verastem). Several of these
programs are in clinical studies, including but not limited to Day One, Jazz Pharma, Roche, Kinnate, Black Diamond, BeiGene, and Verastem.

Our commercial opportunity could be reduced or eliminated if our competitors develop and commercialize products that are safer, more effective,
have fewer or less severe side effects, are approved for broader indications or patient populations, are approved for specific sub-populations, are more
convenient, or are less expensive than QINLOCK or any other products that we may develop. Our competitors also may obtain FDA, EMA, or other
marketing approval for their products more rapidly than any approval we may obtain for ours, which could result in our competitors establishing a strong
market position before we are able to enter the market. In addition, our ability to compete may be affected in many cases by insurers or other third-party
payors seeking to encourage the use of generic products.

Many of the companies against which we are competing or against which we may compete in the future have significantly greater financial
resources and expertise in research and development, manufacturing, preclinical testing, conducting clinical trials, obtaining marketing approvals, and
marketing and selling approved products than we do. Mergers and acquisitions in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries may result in even more
resources being concentrated among a smaller number of our competitors. Smaller and other early-stage companies may also prove to be significant
competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements with large and established companies. These third parties compete with us in recruiting and
retaining qualified scientific, management, and sales and marketing personnel, establishing clinical trial sites and patient registration for clinical trials, as
well as in acquiring technologies complementary to, or necessary for, our programs.

If the FDA, EMA, or other foreign regulatory authorities approve generic versions of QINLOCK or any future approved products, or such authorities
do not grant any future approved products appropriate periods of exclusivity before approving generic versions of those products, the sales of our
products, if approved, could be adversely affected.

Once an NDA is approved, the product covered thereby becomes a “reference listed drug” in the FDA’s Orange Book. Manufacturers may seek
approval of generic versions of reference listed drugs through submission of an Abbreviated New Drug Application (ANDA) in the United States. In
support of an ANDA, a generic manufacturer need not conduct clinical trials to assess safety and efficacy. Rather, the applicant generally must show that its
product has the same active ingredient(s), dosage form, strength, route of administration, and conditions of use or labelling as the reference listed drug and
that the generic version is bioequivalent to the reference listed drug, meaning it is absorbed in the body at the same rate and to the same extent. Generic
products may be significantly less costly to bring to market than the reference listed drug and companies that produce generic products are generally able to
offer them at lower prices. Thus, following the introduction of a generic drug, a significant percentage of the sales of any branded product or reference
listed drug is typically lost to the generic product.

Generic products are currently on the market for some of the indications that we are pursuing, and additional products are expected to become
available on a generic basis over the coming years. Generic drug manufacturers may seek to launch generic products following the expiration of
QINLOCK’s exclusivity period or any exclusivity period we obtain for any future approved products even if we still have patent protection for such
products. We expect that QINLOCK, and any future approved products
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will be priced at a significant premium over any competitive generic products. Competition that QINLOCK or any future approved products could face
from generic versions could materially and adversely affect our future revenue, profitability, and cash flows and substantially limit our ability to obtain a
return on the investments we have made in those products.

The incidence and prevalence for target patient populations of our approved drug or drug candidates and any potential expanded market for our
approved drug or drug candidates have not been established with precision. If the market opportunities for our approved drug or any potential
expanded market for our approved drug or drug candidates are smaller than what we estimate or if any approval that we obtain is based on a narrower
definition of the patient population, our revenue potential and ability to achieve profitability will be adversely affected.

The precise incidence and prevalence for GIST, TGCT, specific mutant RAS and RAF cancers, and other indications we are exploring, are unknown.
Our projections of both the number of people who have these diseases, as well as the subset of people with these diseases who have the potential to benefit
from treatment with our drug or drug candidates, are based on estimates, which are inherently uncertain. For example, we have assumed the GIST patient
population in our INTRIGUE trial is representative of second-line GIST patients, and that the U.S. market opportunity in second-line GIST patients
previously treated with imatinib with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17 and/or 18 and the absence of mutations in KIT exon 9, 13, and/or 14 will be
consistent with the proportion we observed in the INTRIGUE study.

The total addressable market opportunity for QINLOCK, including in the sub-group of the second-line GIST population we are targeting in our
INSIGHT study, vimseltinib, and DCC-3116, and any other drug candidates we may develop will ultimately depend upon, among other things, the
diagnosis criteria included in the final label for our current and future drugs for sale for these indications, acceptance by the medical community, patient
access, drug pricing, and reimbursement. The number of patients in our targeted commercial markets and elsewhere may turn out to be lower than
expected, our expected duration of therapy or treatment may turn out to be lower than expected, patients may not be otherwise amenable to treatment with
our drug, or new patients may become increasingly difficult to identify or gain access to, all of which would adversely affect our results of operations and
our business.

The commercial success of QINLOCK, and of any future approved drugs, such as vimseltinib or DCC-3116, if approved, will depend upon the degree
of market acceptance by physicians, patients, third-party payors, and others in the medical community.

The commercial success of QINLOCK, and of any future approved drugs, such as vimseltinib or DCC-3116, if approved, will depend in part on
market acceptance by physicians, patients, third-party payors, and others in the medical community. For example, current cancer treatments, such as
surgery, existing targeted therapies, chemotherapy, and radiation therapy, are well established in the medical community, and doctors may continue to rely
on these treatments. If QINLOCK and any future approved drugs, such as vimseltinib or DCC-3116, if approved, do not achieve and maintain an adequate
level of acceptance, we may not generate significant product revenues and we may not become profitable. The degree of market acceptance of QINLOCK
and of any current drug candidates, such as vimseltinib and DCC-3116, or future drug candidates, if approved for commercial sale, will depend on a
number of factors, including:

• the availability, perceived advantages, and relative cost, safety, and efficacy of alternative and competing treatments;

• the prevalence and severity of any side effects, adverse reactions, misuse, or any unfavorable publicity in these areas, in particular compared to
alternative treatments;

• our ability (and the ability of our partners) to offer our products for sale at competitive prices;

• the convenience and ease of administration compared to alternative treatments;

• the willingness of the target patient population to try new therapies and of physicians to prescribe these therapies;

• the strength and effectiveness of our marketing, sales, and distribution strategy and efforts, including, without limitation, our own and that of our
licensees and distributors, and the degree to which the approved labeling supports promotional initiatives for commercial success;

• the existence of distribution and/or use restrictions, such as through a Risk Evaluation and Mitigation Strategy (REMS);

• the availability and timeliness of third-party payor coverage and adequate reimbursement;

• the inability of patients to afford the out-of-pocket costs of their drug therapy based on their insurance coverage and/or benefit design;
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• the timing of any marketing approval in relation to other product approvals;

• support from patient advocacy groups;

• maintaining an acceptable safety profile of our approved drug and drug candidates, if approved;

• the labeling of our products, including any significant use or distribution restrictions or safety warnings;

• any restrictions on the use of our products together with other medications; and

• the foregoing factors as they apply to any combination drug for which a drug candidate of ours, such as DCC-3116, may be approved to be
prescribed with as part of a combination therapy.

Even if a potential drug displays a favorable efficacy and safety profile in preclinical and clinical studies, market acceptance of the drug will not be
known until after it is launched. Our efforts to educate the medical community and third-party payors on the benefits of our drug may require significant
resources and may never be successful. Our efforts to educate the marketplace may require more resources than are required by the therapies marketed by
our competitors. In addition, even if our Phase 3 INSIGHT study yields positive results and we obtain regulatory approval for QINLOCK in a sub-group of
second-line GIST patients, the commercial success of QINLOCK in that indication depends on a number of additional factors, including the adoption of
ctDNA testing for GIST patients. Any of these factors may cause QINLOCK, or any future approved drugs, such as vimseltinib or DCC-3116, if approved,
to be unsuccessful or less successful than anticipated.

Our failure to obtain additional marketing approvals in other foreign jurisdictions would prevent QINLOCK and our drug candidates from being
marketed more extensively internationally, and any approval we are granted for QINLOCK or our drug candidates in the U.S. or key European
markets would not assure approval of QINLOCK or our drug candidates in other foreign jurisdictions.

Following the FDA approval of QINLOCK in May 2020, we commenced commercial sales of QINLOCK in the U.S. In addition, our partner, Zai,
obtained regulatory approval to market QINLOCK in the PRC, Hong Kong, and Taiwan in 2021 and Macau and Singapore in 2023. Following EC approval
in November 2021, we launched QINLOCK in Germany in January 2022 and have conducted the post-approval paid access program in France since April
2022. In addition, we plan to continue our geographic expansion of QINLOCK with commercial launches following the conclusion of pricing and
reimbursement negotiations in other key European markets.

In order to market and sell QINLOCK, or any future products in other jurisdictions, we or our partners must obtain separate marketing approvals in
applicable foreign jurisdictions and comply with numerous and varying regulatory requirements. The approval procedure varies among countries and can
involve additional testing as well as additional information and filings. The time required to obtain approval may differ substantially from that required to
obtain FDA approval. The regulatory approval process outside the U.S. generally includes all of the risks associated with obtaining FDA approval. In
addition, in many countries outside the U.S., it is required that the product be approved for reimbursement before the product can be approved for sale in
that country. We may not (and/or our partners, as applicable, may not) obtain approvals from regulatory authorities outside the U.S. on a timely basis, if at
all, or may not be successful in seeking and obtaining favorable local reimbursement and pricing approvals. Approval by the FDA does not ensure approval
by regulatory authorities in other countries or jurisdictions, and approval by one regulatory authority outside the U.S. does not ensure approval by
regulatory authorities in other countries or jurisdictions or by the FDA. Except for QINLOCK in select countries where we have received approval, we, or
our partners, may not be able to file for marketing approvals and may not receive necessary approvals to commercialize our products in any market outside
the U.S.

QINLOCK and any drug candidate for which we obtain marketing approval will be subject to ongoing enforcement of post-marketing requirements
and we could be subject to substantial penalties, including withdrawal of QINLOCK or any future approved product from the market, if we fail to
comply with all regulatory requirements. In addition, the terms of the marketing approval of QINLOCK, and any future approved products, and
ongoing regulation of our products, may limit how we manufacture and market our products and compliance with such requirements may involve
substantial resources, which could materially impair our ability to generate revenue.

QINLOCK and any drug candidate for which we obtain marketing approval, along with the manufacturing processes, post-approval clinical data,
labeling, advertising, and promotional activities for such products, will be subject to continual requirements of and review by the FDA and other regulatory
authorities. These requirements include, but are not limited to, restrictions governing promotion of an approved product, submissions of safety and other
post-marketing information and reports, registration and listing requirements, cGMP requirements relating to manufacturing, quality control, quality
assurance and corresponding maintenance of records and documents, and requirements regarding drug distribution and the distribution of samples to
physicians and recordkeeping. Additionally, under the Food and Drug Omnibus Reform Act of 2022, sponsors of approved drugs and
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biologics must provide 6 months’ notice to the FDA of any changes in marketing status, such as the withdrawal of a drug, and failure to do so could result
in the FDA placing the product on a list of discontinued products, which would revoke the product’s ability to be marketed.

The FDA and other federal and state agencies, including the Department of Justice, closely regulate compliance with all requirements governing
prescription drug products, including requirements pertaining to marketing and promotion of drugs in accordance with the provisions of the approved
labeling and manufacturing of products in accordance with cGMP requirements. Violations of such requirements may lead to investigations alleging
violations of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (FDCA) and other statutes, including the FCA and other federal and state healthcare fraud and
abuse laws as well as state consumer protection laws. Our failure to comply with all regulatory requirements, and later discovery of previously unknown
adverse events or other problems with our products, manufacturers, or manufacturing processes, may yield various results, including:

• litigation involving patients taking our products;

• restrictions on such products, manufacturers, or manufacturing processes;

• restrictions on the labeling or marketing of a product;

• restrictions on product distribution or use;

• requirements to conduct post-marketing studies or clinical trials;

• warning or untitled letters;

• withdrawal of the products from the market;

• refusal to approve pending applications or supplements to approved applications that we submit;

• voluntary recall of products;

• fines, restitution, or disgorgement of profits or revenues;

• suspension or withdrawal of marketing approvals;

• damage to relationships with any potential collaborators;

• unfavorable press coverage and damage to our reputation;

• refusal to permit the import or export of our products;

• product seizure; or

• injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminal penalties.

Non-compliance by us or any future collaborator with regulatory requirements, including safety monitoring or pharmacovigilance, and with
requirements related to the development of products for the pediatric population can also result in significant financial penalties. Similarly, failure to
comply with applicable regulatory requirements regarding the protection of personal information can also lead to significant penalties and sanctions.

In addition, we and our contract manufacturers will continue to expend time, money, and effort in all areas of regulatory compliance, including
manufacturing, production, product surveillance, and quality control. For certain commercial prescription drug products, manufacturers and other parties
involved in the supply chain must also meet chain of distribution requirements and build electronic, interoperable systems for product tracking and tracing
and for notifying the FDA of counterfeit, diverted, stolen, and intentionally adulterated products or other products that are otherwise unfit for distribution in
the U.S. If we are not able to comply with post-approval regulatory requirements, we could have the marketing approvals for QINLOCK or any future
approved products withdrawn by regulatory authorities and our ability to market QINLOCK or any future approved products could be limited, which could
adversely affect our ability to achieve or sustain profitability. As a result, the cost of compliance with post-approval regulations may have a negative effect
on our operating results and financial condition.

If we and/or our partners are unable to maintain and further develop sales and marketing capabilities, we or our partners may not be successful in
commercializing QINLOCK, or any of our drug candidates if and when they are approved, and we may not be able to generate sufficient revenues to
result in a profit.

We currently have only limited experience in the sale, marketing, or distribution of biopharmaceutical products. To achieve commercial success for
QINLOCK or any other product for which we obtain marketing approval, we will need to successfully
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maintain and expand our sales, marketing, and distribution capabilities, either ourselves or through collaboration, licensing, distribution, or other
arrangements with third parties. In addition, our licensee for QINLOCK for Greater China is building a sales and marketing infrastructure but currently has
limited experience in sales, marketing, and distribution of a commercial product.

We have built our own focused, specialized sales and marketing organization in the U.S. and commercial capabilities in key European markets. In
addition to our existing QINLOCK license to Zai for Greater China, we have executed, and intend to seek additional, distribution arrangements in select
geographies where we choose not to establish a sales presence to support the commercialization of QINLOCK or our drug candidates for which we obtain
marketing approval and that can be commercialized through such arrangements.

There are risks involved with establishing our own sales and marketing capabilities. For example, recruiting, training, and motivating a sales force is
expensive and time-consuming and could delay any product launch. We will need to commit significant management and other resources to maintain our
commercial organization. We may not be able to achieve the necessary development and growth in a cost-effective manner or realize a positive return on
our investment. We will also have to compete with other companies to recruit, hire, train, and retain sales and marketing personnel. We cannot be sure that
we will be able to recruit, hire, train, and retain a sufficient number of sales representatives or that they will be effective at promoting QINLOCK or any
future approved drugs.

Factors that may inhibit our efforts to commercialize QINLOCK or any future approved products on our own include:

• our inability to recruit, hire, train, and retain adequate numbers of effective sales and marketing personnel;

• our inability to raise financing necessary to maintain and grow our commercialization infrastructure;

• the inability of sales personnel to obtain access to physicians or educate physicians about the benefits, safety, and effectiveness of QINLOCK or
any future approved products;

• the lack of complementary products to be offered by sales personnel, which may put us at a competitive disadvantage relative to companies with
more extensive product lines; and

• unforeseen costs and expenses associated with creating an independent sales and marketing organization.

Our product revenues and profitability, if any, are likely to be lower as a result of any partnerships we choose to enter into in markets outside of the
U.S. or key European markets than if we were to market and sell the products ourselves in those markets. In addition, we may not be successful in entering
into arrangements with third parties to market and sell QINLOCK or any future approved products or may be unable to do so on terms that are acceptable
to us. We likely will have little control over such third parties, and any of these third parties may fail to devote the necessary resources and attention to
develop (as necessary in the relevant jurisdiction), sell, and market QINLOCK or any future approved products effectively. If we do not maintain and
expand our sales and marketing capabilities successfully, either on our own or in collaboration with third parties, we will not be successful in
commercializing QINLOCK or any of our drug candidates for which we may receive marketing approval. In the event that we are unable to effectively
deploy our sales organization or distribution strategy on a timely and efficient basis, if at all, the commercialization of QINLOCK and our drug candidates,
if approved, could be delayed which would negatively impact our ability to generate product revenues.

Other Risks Related to Our Business

Our business could be negatively affected by cyber security threats.

A cyberattack or similar incident could occur and result in information theft, data corruption, operational disruption, damage to our reputation, or
financial loss. We are dependent on information technology systems and infrastructure, including mobile technologies, to operate our business. Our
technologies, systems, networks, or other proprietary information, and those of our vendors, suppliers, and other business partners, may become the target
of cyberattacks or information security compromises or breaches that could result in the unauthorized release, gathering, monitoring, misuse, loss, or
destruction of private, proprietary, and other information, or could otherwise lead to the disruption of our business operations. Cyberattacks are becoming
more sophisticated and certain cyber incidents, such as surveillance, may remain undetected for an extended period and could lead to disruptions in critical
systems or the unauthorized release of confidential or otherwise protected information. These events could lead to financial loss due to remedial actions,
loss of business, disruption of operations, damage to our reputation, or potential liability, including litigation and regulatory investigations and enforcement
actions. Our systems and insurance coverage for protecting against cybersecurity risks may not be sufficient. Furthermore, as cyberattacks continue to
evolve, we may be required to expend significant additional resources to continue to modify or enhance our protective measures or to investigate and
remediate any vulnerability to cyberattacks.
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We are increasingly dependent on critical, complex, and interdependent information technology (IT) systems and data to operate our business. Any
failure, inadequacy, interruption, or security lapse of that technology, including security attacks, incidents, and/or breaches, could harm our ability to
operate our business effectively.

We have outsourced significant parts of our IT and business infrastructure to third-party providers, and we currently use these providers to perform
business critical IT and business services for us. We are therefore vulnerable to cybersecurity attacks and incidents on the associated networks and systems,
whether they are managed by us directly or by the third parties with whom we contract, and we have experienced and may in the future experience such
cybersecurity threats and attacks. The risk of such threats and attacks continues to increase as we are now operating in a hybrid working environment, and
sensitive data is accessed by employees working in less secure, home-based environments. The way we work continues to contain a significant remote
component in most aspects of the business and we will continue to factor this into our cybersecurity risk management strategy. In addition, due to our
reliance on third-party providers, we have experienced and may in the future experience interruptions, delays, or outages related to IT service availability
due to a variety of factors outside of our control, including technical failures, natural disasters, fraud, or security vulnerabilities, compromises, or attacks
experienced by or caused by these third-party providers. Interruptions in the service provided by these third-party providers could affect our ability to
perform critical tasks.

As a global pharmaceutical company, our systems are subject to frequent cyber-attacks. Due to the nature of some of these attacks, there is a risk that
they may remain undetected for a period of time. While we have invested in the protection of data and information technology, our efforts may not prevent
service interruptions or security compromises, incidents, or breaches (e.g., ransomware or phishing or other social engineering schemes). Any such
interruption, compromise, or breach of our systems or data could adversely affect our business operations and/or result in the loss of critical or sensitive
protected information, including confidential information, personal information, or intellectual property, and could result in financial, legal, business, and
reputational harm to us. We maintain cyber liability insurance; however, this insurance may not be sufficient to cover the financial, legal, business, or
reputational losses that may result from an interruption, compromise, or breach of our systems.

Despite the implementation of security technical and organizational measures, our internal computer systems, and those of third parties with which
we contract are vulnerable to damage from security incidents, compromises, breaches, and/or attacks (e.g., ransomware, computer viruses, worms, social
engineering schemes, and other destructive or disruptive software), unauthorized access or misuse, natural disasters, terrorism, war, and telecommunication
and electrical failures. System failures, accidents, or security attacks, compromises, and/or breaches of our systems or data could result in operational
interruptions and/or a material disruption of our clinical and commercialization activities and business operations, in addition to possibly requiring
substantial expenditures of resources to remedy. The loss, misuse, or compromised integrity of clinical trial data could result in delays in our regulatory
approval efforts and significantly increase our costs to recover or reproduce the data. To the extent that any systems disruptions, security compromises,
security incidents, or security breaches were to result in a loss of, damage to, or compromised integrity of our data or applications, or inappropriate
disclosure of protected information, including confidential, personal, or proprietary information, we could incur liability, and our product research,
development, and commercialization efforts could be disrupted or delayed. In addition, we may not have adequate insurance coverage to provide
compensation for any losses associated with such events.

We could be subject to risks caused by misappropriation, misuse, leakage, falsification, or intentional or accidental disclosure or loss of information
maintained in the information systems and networks of our company, including protected information, such as personal information of our employees and
personal health information of our patients. In addition, outside parties may attempt to penetrate our systems or those of our vendors or fraudulently induce
our employees or employees of our vendors to disclose sensitive information to gain access to our systems and data. Like other companies, we have on
occasion, and will continue to experience, threats to our data and systems, including malicious codes and viruses, and other security incidents, breaches,
and attacks. The number and complexity of these threats continue to increase over time. Although we have experienced some of the events described
above, to date, they have not had a material impact on our operations. Still, the occurrence of any of the events described above in the future could disrupt
our business operations and result in enforcement actions or liability, including potential fines and penalties, claims for damages, and/or shareholder
litigation.

Security incidents, compromises, and breaches could also include supply chain attacks which, if successful, could cause a delay in the manufacturing
and/or distribution of our product or drug candidates. Our key business partners face similar risks, and any security breach or compromise of their systems
or data could adversely affect our security posture. In addition, our increased use of cloud technologies could heighten these and other operational risks,
and any failure by cloud technology service providers to adequately safeguard their systems and prevent cyber-attacks could disrupt our operations and
result in misappropriation, corruption, or loss of protected information, including confidential, personal, or proprietary information.

Finally, as we increase our commercial activities and our brand becomes more widely known and recognized, we may become a more attractive
target for malicious third parties. If a material breach of our security or that of our third-party providers
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occurs, the market perception of the effectiveness of our security measures could be harmed, we could lose business, and our reputation and credibility
could be damaged. We could be required to expend significant amounts of money and other resources to repair or replace information assets, security
controls, and/or information systems. We could also be required to change third-party providers and/or products at significant cost. Although we develop
and maintain systems and controls designed to prevent these events from occurring, and we have a process to identify and mitigate threats, the development
and maintenance of these systems, controls, and processes is costly and requires ongoing monitoring and updating as technologies change and efforts to
overcome security measures become more sophisticated. Moreover, despite our efforts, the possibility of these events occurring cannot be eliminated
entirely. Any breach or compromise of our security measures by third-party actions, employee negligence, misconduct, and/or error, malfeasance, defects,
or compromise of the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of our data could result in:

• severe harm to our reputation or brand, or a material and adverse effect on the overall market perception of our technical and organizational
measures to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our information;

• individual and/or class action lawsuits, which could result in financial judgments against us potentially causing us to incur legal fees and costs;

• legal or regulatory investigations and enforcement action, which could result in fines and/or penalties and which would cause us to incur legal
fees and costs; and/or

• additional costs associated with responding to business interruption or security incidents, compromises, and/or breaches, such as investigative
and remediation costs, the costs of providing individuals and/or data owners with notice of the breach, legal fees, the costs of any additional
fraud or cyber detection activities, or the costs of prolonged system disruptions or shutdowns.

Any of these events could materially adversely impact our business and results of operations.

Artificial intelligence presents risks and challenges that can impact our business including by posing security risks to our confidential information,
proprietary information, and personal data.

Issues in the development and use of artificial intelligence, combined with an uncertain regulatory environment, may result in reputational harm,
liability, or other adverse consequences to our business operations. As with many technological innovations, artificial intelligence presents risks and
challenges that could impact our business. We may adopt and integrate generative artificial intelligence tools into our systems for specific use cases
reviewed by legal and information security. Our vendors may incorporate generative artificial intelligence tools into their offerings without disclosing this
use to us, and the providers of these generative artificial intelligence tools may not meet existing or rapidly evolving regulatory or industry standards with
respect to privacy and data protection and may inhibit our or our vendors’ ability to maintain an adequate level of service and experience. If we, our
vendors, or our third-party partners experience an actual or perceived breach or privacy or security incident because of the use of generative artificial
intelligence, we may lose valuable intellectual property and confidential information and our reputation and the public perception of the effectiveness of
our security measures could be harmed. Further, bad actors around the world use increasingly sophisticated methods, including the use of artificial
intelligence, to engage in illegal activities involving the theft and misuse of personal information, confidential information, and intellectual property. Any
of these outcomes could damage our reputation, result in the loss of valuable property and information, and adversely impact our business.

The increasing use of social media platforms presents new risks and challenges.

Social media is increasingly being used to communicate about our drug, clinical development programs, and the diseases our drug and drug
candidates are being developed to treat. We are utilizing what we believe is appropriate social media in connection with our commercialization efforts for
QINLOCK and we intend to do the same for our future products, if approved. Social media practices in the biopharmaceutical industry continue to evolve
and regulations relating to such use are not always clear. This evolution creates uncertainty and risk of noncompliance with regulations applicable to our
business, resulting in potential regulatory actions against us. For example, patients may use social media channels to comment on their experience in an
ongoing clinical study or to report an alleged adverse event. When such disclosures occur, there is a risk that we fail to monitor and comply with applicable
adverse event reporting obligations or we may not be able to defend our business or the public's legitimate interests in the face of the political and market
pressures generated by social media due to restrictions on what we may say about our investigational products. There is also a risk of inappropriate
disclosure of sensitive information or negative or inaccurate posts or comments about us on any social networking website. If any of these events were to
occur or we otherwise fail to comply with applicable regulations, we could incur liability, face regulatory actions, or incur other harm to our business.
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The effects of enacted tax legislation and other legislative, regulatory, and administrative developments to our business are uncertain. Increased costs
related to such developments could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

It cannot be predicted whether, when, in what form, or with what effective dates, tax laws, regulations, and rulings may be enacted, promulgated, or
issued, which could result in an increase in our or our shareholders' tax liability or require changes in the manner in which we operate in order to minimize
or mitigate any adverse effects of changes in tax law.

Our ability to utilize our net operating loss carryforwards and certain other tax attributes may be limited.

Under Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, if a corporation undergoes an "ownership change" (generally
defined as a greater than 50% change (by value) in its equity ownership over a three-year period), the corporation's ability to use its pre-change net
operating loss carryforwards and other pre-change tax attributes to offset its post-change taxable income may be limited. We may experience ownership
changes in the future as a result of subsequent shifts in our stock ownership. As of December 31, 2022, we had U.S. federal net operating loss
carryforwards and U.S. federal research and development tax credit carryforwards, which could be limited if we experience an "ownership change."

If we fail to comply with environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations, we could become subject to fines or penalties or incur costs that could
harm our business.

We are subject to numerous foreign, federal, state, and local environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations, including those governing
laboratory procedures and the handling, use, storage, treatment, and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes. Our operations involve the use of
hazardous and flammable materials, including chemicals and biological materials. Our operations also produce hazardous waste products. We generally
contract with third parties for the disposal of these materials and wastes. We cannot eliminate the risk of contamination or injury from these materials. In
the event of contamination or injury resulting from our use of hazardous materials, we could be held liable for any resulting damages, and any liability
could exceed our resources, including any available insurance.

In addition, our leasing and operation of real property may subject us to liability pursuant to certain of these laws or regulations. Under existing U.S.
environmental laws and regulations, current or previous owners or operators of real property and entities that disposed or arranged for the disposal of
hazardous substances may be held strictly, jointly, and severally liable for the cost of investigating or remediating contamination caused by hazardous
substance releases, even if they did not know of and were not responsible for the releases.

We could incur significant costs and liabilities which may adversely affect our financial condition and operating results for failure to comply with
such laws and regulations, including, among other things, civil or criminal fines and penalties, property damage, and personal injury claims, costs
associated with upgrades to our facilities or changes to our operating procedures, or injunctions limiting or altering our operations.

Although we maintain workers' compensation insurance to cover us for costs and expenses we may incur due to injuries to our employees resulting
from the use of hazardous materials, this insurance may not provide adequate coverage against potential liabilities. We do not maintain insurance for
environmental liability or toxic tort claims that may be asserted against us in connection with our storage or disposal of biological, hazardous, or
radioactive materials.

In addition, we may incur substantial costs in order to comply with current or future environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations. These
current or future laws and regulations, which are becoming increasingly more stringent, may impair our research, development, or manufacturing efforts.
Our failure to comply with these laws and regulations also may result in substantial fines, penalties, or other sanctions.

An outbreak of any highly infectious or contagious diseases, could seriously harm our research, development, and commercialization efforts, increase
our costs and expenses and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Broad-based business or economic disruptions could adversely affect our ongoing or planned research and development and commercialization
activities. For example, in December 2019, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus spread to the majority of countries around the world, including the
U.S. The extent to which an outbreak of any highly infectious or contagious diseases, such as COVID-19, impacts our operations will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with confidence, including the scope, severity, and duration of the pandemic, actions
taken to contain the pandemic or mitigate its impact, and the direct and indirect economic effects of the pandemic and containment measures, among
others.
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We or the third parties upon whom we depend may be adversely affected by natural disasters or global health crises and our business continuity and
disaster recovery plans may not adequately protect us from a serious disaster.

Natural disasters or global health crises could severely disrupt our operations, and have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and prospects. If a natural disaster, global health crisis, power outage, or other event occurred that prevented us from using
all or a significant portion of our headquarters, that damaged critical infrastructure, such as the manufacturing facilities of our third-party contract
manufacturers, or that otherwise disrupted our operations or the operations of our vendors, it may be difficult or, in certain cases, impossible for us to
continue our business for a substantial period of time. The disaster recovery and business continuity plans we have in place may prove inadequate in the
event of a serious disaster, health crisis, or similar event. We may incur substantial expenses as a result of the limited nature of our disaster recovery and
business continuity plans, which, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Risks Related to Clinical Development, Regulatory Review, and Approval of Our Drug and Drug Candidates

Risks Related to Clinical Development

Our pivotal Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK versus sunitinib in second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18 may not be
successful.

In January 2023, we announced results from an exploratory ctDNA analysis from the Phase 3 INTRIGUE study of QINLOCK in patients with GIST
previously treated with imatinib, which showed substantial clinical benefit of QINLOCK in second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and
17/18. Based on these exploratory results, we announced plans to initiate the pivotal Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK versus sunitinib in this patient
population in the second half of 2023. However, our Phase 3 INTRIGUE study for QINLOCK in second-line GIST patients did not meet its primary
endpoint and any results from preclinical studies or clinical trials to support the approval of QINLOCK for the treatment of certain second-line GIST
patients, including, without limitation, the Phase 3 INTRIGUE study or the exploratory analysis of sub-group mutational data from this study, may not be
predictive of results in future clinical trials, including our Phase 3 INSIGHT study.

We cannot be certain that the results from the Phase 3 INSIGHT study for QINLOCK in this population will be consistent with those observed in the
exploratory ctDNA analysis from the Phase 3 INTRIGUE study. There is no guarantee that the INSIGHT study will be successful or will generate results
that will support marketing approval or any additional revenue, and any revenue generated may be less than what we anticipate. Even if we receive positive
results from the Phase 3 INSIGHT study and obtain marketing approval, there is no guarantee that we will be successful in commercializing QINLOCK for
second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18, and we may encounter issues in commercializing QINLOCK, including, without
limitation, if physicians do not broadly adopt ctDNA testing of newly-diagnosed second-line GIST patients as a standard of care, and our ability to generate
sufficient revenues to result in a profit. In addition, we may experience difficulties or delays in study conduct and/or enrollment, including, without
limitation, study start-up, site initiation, and/or enrollment of patients in the Phase 3 INSIGHT study, which could delay our development plans for the
Phase 3 INSIGHT study, increase our costs and limit our ability to obtain marketing approval and successfully commercialize QINLOCK for second-line
GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18 and generate revenue.

In addition, although we plan to enter into an agreement to validate or develop a companion diagnostic for potential FDA clearance or approval and
use in potential marketing and commercialization, we may experience delays in reaching, or fail to reach, agreement on acceptable terms for these services.
Companion diagnostic tests are subject to regulation as medical devices and must themselves be cleared or approved for marketing by the FDA or certain
other foreign regulatory agencies specifically for use with QINLOCK before we may commercialize QINLOCK in the sub-group we intend to study. We or
any third parties whom we engage to validate or develop a companion diagnostic may not be able to validate or develop one that meets such requirements
on a timely basis or at all.

Clinical drug development involves a lengthy and expensive process. We may incur additional costs or experience delays in completing, or ultimately be
unable to complete, the development and commercialization of our drug and drug candidates.

We currently have several drug candidates in varying stages of clinical development, including vimseltinib and DCC-3116, and the risk of failure is
high. We are unable to predict when or if any of our drug candidates will prove effective or safe in humans or will obtain marketing approval. Before
obtaining marketing approval from regulatory authorities for the sale of any drug candidate, we must complete preclinical development and then conduct
extensive clinical trials to demonstrate the safety and efficacy of our drug candidates in humans. Clinical testing is expensive, difficult to design and
implement, and can take many years to complete and is uncertain as to the outcome. A failure of one or more clinical trials can occur at any stage of testing.
The
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outcome of preclinical testing and early clinical trials may not be predictive of the success of later clinical trials, interim or preliminary results of a clinical
trial do not necessarily predict final results, and results for one indication may not be predictive of the success in additional indications. In particular, the
small number of patients in our early clinical trials may make the results of these trials less predictive of the outcome of later clinical trials. For example, in
November 2021, we announced that the INTRIGUE study did not meet the primary endpoint of improved PFS compared with the standard of care sunitinib
despite initially observing encouraging preliminary data in our Phase 1 study of QINLOCK in second-line GIST. Such factors also apply to the earlier-stage
trials for our drug candidates, including the Phase 1/2 study of DCC-3116.

We may experience numerous unforeseen events during, or as a result of, clinical trials that could delay or prevent our ability to obtain marketing
approval or commercialize our drug or drug candidates, including:

• regulators may not authorize us to commence or continue a clinical trial or may impose a clinical hold or may limit the conduct of a clinical trial
through the imposition of a partial clinical hold;

• institutional review boards (IRBs) may not authorize us or our investigators to commence or continue a clinical trial at a prospective trial site or
an IRB may not approve a protocol amendment to an ongoing clinical trial;

• we may experience delays in reaching, or fail to reach, agreement on acceptable clinical trial contracts or clinical trial protocols with prospective
trial sites;

• clinical trials may produce negative or inconclusive results, and we may decide, or regulators may require us, to conduct additional clinical
trials, delay planned trials, or abandon product development programs;

• the number of patients required for clinical trials for our drug candidates may be larger than we anticipate, enrollment in these clinical trials may
be slower than we anticipate, participants may drop out of these clinical trials at a higher rate than we anticipate, or the duration of these clinical
trials may be longer than we anticipate;

• our third-party contractors, including investigators, may fail to meet their contractual obligations to us in a timely manner, or at all, due to
interruptions to their business or may fail to comply with regulatory requirements;

• we may have to suspend, change, or terminate clinical trials for various reasons, including a finding that the participants are being exposed to
unacceptable health risks;

• our drug or drug candidates may have undesirable side effects or other unexpected characteristics, causing us or our investigators, regulators, or
IRBs to suspend, change, or terminate the trials;

• unforeseen global instability, including political instability or instability from an outbreak of pandemic or contagious disease in or around the
countries in which we conduct our clinical trials or where our third-party contractors operate, could delay the commencement or rate of
completion of our clinical trials, or those that may be conducted in Greater China under our collaboration with Zai;

• the cost of clinical trials for our drug or drug candidates may be greater than we anticipate, including those caused by global economic and
political developments; and

• the supply or quality of our drug or drug candidates or other materials necessary to conduct clinical trials may be insufficient or inadequate and
result in delays or suspension of our clinical trials.

While we designed QINLOCK to inhibit the full spectrum of the known mutant or amplified KIT and PDGFRA kinases that drive cancers such as
GIST, we may find that patients treated with QINLOCK have or develop mutations that confer resistance to treatment. We are aware of a secondary
mutation in PDGFRA, in a patient not treated with QINLOCK, where the potency of inhibition determined in in vitro assays by QINLOCK suggests that
this mutation may confer resistance to QINLOCK in patients. We may identify additional mutations in PDGFRA or mutations in KIT that are resistant to
QINLOCK. For example, our Phase 3 INSIGHT study will evaluate a specific population of GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18. Our
INSIGHT study excludes patients with mutations in KIT exon 9, 13, and/or 14 because we observed that this sub-group of patients derived substantially
improved clinical benefit with sunitinib versus QINLOCK in our ctDNA analysis from the Phase 3 INTRIGUE study. If patients have or develop resistance
to treatment with our approved drug or drug candidates, we may be unable to successfully complete our clinical trials and may not be able to obtain
regulatory approval.

Our product development costs will increase if we experience delays in preclinical studies or clinical trials or in obtaining marketing approvals. We
do not know whether any of our planned preclinical studies or clinical trials will begin on a timely basis or at all, will need to be restructured, or will be
completed on schedule, or at all. Our ongoing trials continue to generate additional data that may be requested by the FDA or other regulatory agencies.
The FDA may request additional information or data or require us to conduct additional preclinical studies or clinical trials or to change our development
plans and any such requests or requirements could result in development delays. For example, the FDA recently published guidance on “Project Optimus”,
an
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initiative to reform dose selection in oncology drug development. If the FDA does not believe we have sufficiently demonstrated that the selected dose
maximizes not only the efficacy of the drug candidate, but the safety and tolerability as well, our ability to initiate new studies may be delayed. Even if we
conducted the additional studies or generated the additional information requested, the FDA could disagree that we have satisfied their requirements, all of
which will cause significant delays and expense to our programs. Furthermore, the FDA could place a clinical hold, either another partial clinical hold or a
full clinical hold, on our trials if they are not satisfied with the information we provide to them, which could result in delays for the trial. Significant
preclinical study or clinical trial delays also could shorten any periods during which we may have the exclusive right to commercialize our drug candidates
or allow our competitors to bring products to market before we do and impair our ability to successfully commercialize our drug candidates and may harm
our business and results of operations.

If we experience delays or difficulties in the enrollment of patients in clinical trials, including in our ongoing Phase 3 INSIGHT study and
Phase 1/2 study of DCC-3116, our receipt of necessary marketing approvals could be delayed or prevented.

We may not be able to continue clinical trials for our drug or drug candidates if we are unable to locate and enroll a sufficient number of eligible
patients to participate in these trials as required by the FDA or similar regulatory authorities outside of the U.S., or our clinical trials may be delayed if
enrollment is slowed or paused due to health considerations, access restrictions, or disruptions and shortages in the global supply chain resulting from
global economic and political developments or other factors. Because the target patient populations for some of our drug candidates and approved drug in
clinical development for additional indications are relatively small, it may be difficult to successfully identify patients.

For example, our enrollment for the INSIGHT study will require patients to have the specific KIT exon 11 primary and exon 17/18 secondary
mutations. We estimate that we will need to test numerous GIST patients for every one patient that meets the proposed trial criteria and this will require a
number of sites. We cannot be certain how many patients will have the requisite mutations for inclusion in the trial or that we will be able to successfully
enroll the number of patients required for regulatory approval. If we are unable to locate or identify a sufficient number of eligible patients, or if our vendor
for ctDNA analysis does not meet our expected timelines or quality standards, our clinical trial and development plans could be delayed, and our ability to
seek participation in the FDA’s expedited review and approval programs, including Breakthrough Therapy Designation (BTD) and fast track designation, or
otherwise to seek to accelerate clinical development and regulatory timelines could be compromised. In addition, some of our competitors have ongoing, or
planned, clinical trials for drug candidates that treat the same indications as our drug or drug candidates, and in additional indications for our existing drug,
and may simultaneously cover the same line of therapy and/or focus on sub-populations of a line of therapy, and patients who would otherwise be eligible
for our clinical trials may instead enroll in clinical trials for our competitors' drug candidates or patients may not be eligible for our trials, which could
potentially change the availability or number of patients from a particular sub-population. Patient enrollment and/or drop-out rate is affected by other
factors including:

• the severity of the disease under investigation;

• the size of the target patient population;

• the eligibility criteria for the trial in question;

• the perceived risks and benefits of the drugs or drug candidates under study;

• the efforts to facilitate timely enrollment in clinical trials; and

• the patient referral practices of physicians.

If we experience higher than expected drop-out rates for an event-driven study, as we previously experienced with our INTRIGUE study, we may
choose to increase the total number of patients in the study to strengthen the ability to achieve the pre-specified number of events. Other factors that could
result in slower than expected enrollment may include recruitment challenges for patients with a rare disease and/or a narrow sub-population of patients
with required mutations and competing trials recruiting simultaneously. Our inability to enroll a sufficient number of patients for our clinical trials would
result in significant delays and could require us to abandon one or more clinical trials altogether. Enrollment delays in our clinical trials may result in
increased development costs for our drug candidates, or for QINLOCK with respect to label expansion opportunities, which would cause significant harm
to our financial position, adversely impact our stock price, and impair our ability to raise capital. In addition, if patients have or develop resistance to
treatment with our approved drug or drug candidates, we may be unable to successfully complete our clinical trials and may not be able to obtain regulatory
approval.
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If serious adverse events or unacceptable side effects are identified during the development of our drug or drug candidates, we may need to abandon or
limit such development.

If our drug or drug candidates are associated with serious adverse events or undesirable side effects in clinical trials or have characteristics that are
unexpected, we may need to abandon their development, limit development to more narrow uses or sub-populations in which the serious adverse events,
undesirable side effects or other characteristics are less prevalent, less severe, or more acceptable from a risk-benefit perspective or highlight these risks,
side effects, or other characteristics in the approved product label. In pharmaceutical development, many drugs that initially show promise in early-stage
testing for treating cancer and other diseases may later be found to cause side effects that prevent further development of the drug. Currently marketed
therapies for the treatment of cancer are generally limited to some extent by their toxicity. In addition, some of our drug candidates would be chronic
therapies or be used in pediatric populations, for which safety concerns may be particularly important. Use of our drug candidates as monotherapies may
also result in adverse events consistent in nature with other marketed therapies. In addition, if used in combination with other therapies in the future, our
drug or drug candidates, such as DCC-3116, may exacerbate adverse events associated with the therapy as well as result in adverse events from drug-drug
interaction. If serious adverse events or unexpected side effects are identified during development, we may be required to develop a REMS to mitigate
those serious safety risks, which could impose significant distribution and/or use restrictions on our drug or drug candidates, if approved.

We currently have no products that are approved for sale with the exception of QINLOCK. Our drug and all of our drug candidates target key
interactions with kinase switch regions to inhibit kinase activity. If we are unable to successfully develop and commercialize QINLOCK or our drug
candidates, if approved, or experience significant delays in doing so, our business will be materially harmed.

We currently have no products that are approved for sale with the exception of QINLOCK for the treatment of fourth-line advanced GIST. All of our
drug candidates, including vimseltinib and DCC-3116, are still in varying stages of clinical development. In August 2023, we also announced that we
opened the first sites for enrollment in our Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK versus sunitinib in second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon
11 and 17/18.

Our drug and drug candidates target key interactions with kinase switch regions to inhibit kinase activity. We discontinued an earlier drug candidate
that also targeted key interactions with kinase switch regions to inhibit kinase activity. Its development was discontinued due to strategic and competitive
reasons. There can be no assurance that our current drug candidates will achieve success in their clinical trials or obtain regulatory approval.

Our ability to generate continued product revenues will depend heavily on the successful development and commercialization of our approved drug
and drug candidates, if approved. Our success in the development of our approved drug and drug candidates will depend on several factors, including the
following:

• successful completion of preclinical studies and clinical trials, including our ongoing Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK;

• receipt and related terms of marketing approvals from applicable regulatory authorities;

• raising additional funds necessary to complete clinical development of and commercialize any current or future drug candidates for which we
obtain marketing approval;

• obtaining and maintaining patent, trade secret, and other intellectual property protection and regulatory exclusivity for our drug and drug
candidates;

• making and maintaining timely and cost-effective arrangements with third-party manufacturers, or establishing manufacturing capabilities, for
both clinical and commercial supplies of our drug and drug candidates;

• successful development, clearance, and/or approval of any companion diagnostic tests for use with our drug and drug candidates, such as those
that we intend to develop for QINLOCK in order to identify second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18;

• attracting additional licensees and/or collaborators or distributors with development, regulatory, and commercialization expertise; and

• protecting and enforcing our rights in our intellectual property portfolio.

If we do not achieve one or more of these factors in a timely manner, or at all, we could experience significant delays or an inability to successfully
commercialize QINLOCK or any current or future drug candidates for which we receive approval, which
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would materially harm our business. For example, our business was materially impacted following the preliminary results of our ongoing Phase 3
INTRIGUE study of QINLOCK for second-line GIST, which failed to meet its primary endpoint.

In addition, we may be required or we may seek to develop companion diagnostic tests for our drug or drug candidates in order to select patients
most likely to respond to treatment, or to identify appropriate patients for our drug or drug candidates for which we obtain approval. Companion diagnostic
tests are subject to regulation as medical devices and must themselves be cleared or approved for marketing by the FDA or certain other foreign regulatory
agencies before we may commercialize our drug candidates for use with such companion diagnostics.

We may ultimately be unable to complete the development and commercialization of our drug candidates.

We may be required to conduct additional clinical trials or other testing of our drug or drug candidates beyond those that we currently contemplate if
we are unable to successfully complete clinical trials for our drug or drug candidates or other testing, obtain results of these trials or tests that are not
positive or are only modestly positive, or if there are safety concerns. While we plan to conduct only one pivotal Phase 3 trial of vimseltinib for patients
with TGCT and one pivotal Phase 3 trial of QINLOCK in second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18, for a single randomized trial
to support submission to the FDA of an NDA, the trial must be well-designed, well-conducted, with a favorable risk/benefit ratio, and provide statistically
persuasive efficacy findings so compelling that a second trial would be unethical or practically impossible to repeat. In addition, certain data that we have
presented to date have been generated and reviewed at the clinical sites and are preliminary. The data may be subject to subsequent central review, and
based on that review, there may be changes to these data which may not be favorable. For example, in our ongoing Phase 1 study of QINLOCK, there were
differences observed between imaging data assessed at the clinical sites in accordance with the Phase 1 protocol and by central review, including some
instances where central review's findings regarding the number of objective responses were less favorable than those previously reported. Moreover,
preclinical and clinical data are often susceptible to varying interpretations and analyses, and many companies that have believed their drug candidates
performed satisfactorily in preclinical studies and clinical trials have nonetheless failed to obtain marketing approval of their products. In addition, we, or
our licensees, such as Zai in Greater China, may be required to conduct additional clinical trials in the local region or regions where the licensees seek to
commercialize our drug or drug candidates before a local regulatory authority will approve any marketing application. These local studies may involve,
among other things, exploration of the effect our drug or drug candidates may have on a local population, which could be different than our clinical trial
results or experience to date and subject these trials and our development efforts to the risk that they do not support regional approval.

We may in the future change the manufacturing process we are using to make clinical supplies of any approved drug from that used in our ongoing
clinical trials to satisfy greater drug requirements for commercialization. In that event, we will be required to demonstrate comparability, which will include
conducting a bioequivalence study, of our approved drug made with the new process from what we have used in clinical trials to date. If we are unable to
establish comparability or bioequivalency, or are unable to agree with FDA on a timely basis regarding the study design necessary to do so, the
commercialization of our approved drug may be substantially delayed or constrained by supply. If we are unable to manufacture sufficient quantities of our
approved drug to meet commercial demand, our business and results of operations will be harmed.

In addition, we may:

• be delayed in obtaining marketing approval for our drug or drug candidates;

• not obtain marketing approval at all;

• obtain approval for indications or patient populations that are not as broad as intended or desired;

• obtain approval with labeling that includes significant use or distribution restrictions or safety warnings;

• be subject to additional post-marketing testing requirements; or

• have the product, including QINLOCK, removed from the market after obtaining marketing approval.
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Risks Related to the Industry

With the exception of QINLOCK, we have not received approval or authorization to market any of our drug candidates from regulatory authorities in
any jurisdiction. Even if we complete the necessary clinical trials, the marketing approval process is expensive, time-consuming, and uncertain, which
may prevent us from obtaining approvals for the commercialization of some or all of our drug candidates or expand our marketing for QINLOCK in
additional geographies. If we are not able to obtain, or if there are delays in obtaining, required regulatory approvals for our drug and drug candidates
and, if applicable, including by a third party, for any related companion diagnostic tests, or if we experience a delay in drug supply, we will not be able
to commercialize our drug candidates or continue our European geographic expansion of QINLOCK, and our ability to generate revenue will be
materially impaired.

Our drug candidates and any companion diagnostic tests related to our approved drug or drug candidates, and the activities associated with their
development and commercialization, including their design, testing, manufacture, safety, efficacy, recordkeeping, labeling, storage, approval, advertising,
promotion, sale, and distribution are subject to comprehensive regulation by the FDA and other regulatory agencies in the U.S., the EMA and national
competent authorities of the Member States in the EU, and the China NMPA and similar regulatory authorities outside the U.S. Before we can
commercialize any of our drug candidates, we must obtain marketing approval. We or a third party may also need marketing clearance or approval for any
related companion diagnostic tests, including the companion diagnostic tests that we intend to develop for QINLOCK in order to identify second-line GIST
patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18.

Failure to obtain marketing approval for a drug candidate will prevent us from commercializing the drug candidate. Our drug candidates are in
varying stages of clinical development and are subject to the risks of failure inherent in drug development. We have only received marketing authorization
for QINLOCK in the U.S., Europe, and other select jurisdictions, and have not received marketing authorization for any of our drug candidates from
regulatory authorities in any jurisdiction. We have only limited experience in conducting and managing clinical trials, and in submitting and supporting the
applications necessary to seek marketing approvals and expect to rely on third-party CROs to assist us in this process. Securing marketing approval
requires the submission of extensive nonclinical and clinical data and supporting information to regulatory authorities for each therapeutic indication to
establish the drug candidate's safety and efficacy. Securing marketing approval also requires the submission of information about the product
manufacturing process to, and inspection of manufacturing facilities by, the regulatory authorities. Our drug candidates may not be effective, may be only
moderately effective, or may prove to have undesirable or unintended side effects, toxicities, or other characteristics that may preclude our obtaining
marketing approval or prevent or limit commercial use.

The process of obtaining marketing approvals, both in the U.S. and internationally, is expensive, may take many years if additional clinical trials are
required, if approval is obtained at all, and can vary substantially based upon a variety of factors, including the type, complexity, and novelty of the drug
candidates involved. Further, changes in marketing approval policies during the development period, changes in or the enactment of additional statutes or
regulations, changes in regulatory review for each submitted product application, or pre-market approval application for a companion diagnostic test or
equivalent application types, may cause delays in the approval or rejection of an application. For example, now that the UK has left the EU, a separate
marketing authorization application is required in order to market a product in the UK and the requirements and procedures for obtaining marketing
approval in the UK and the EU could diverge further now that the regulatory system in the UK is independent from the EU. Regulatory authorities have
substantial discretion in the approval process and may refuse to accept any application or may decide that our data are insufficient for approval and require
additional nonclinical, clinical, or other studies. In addition, varying interpretations of the data obtained from nonclinical and clinical testing could delay,
limit, or prevent marketing approval of a drug candidate. Any marketing approval we ultimately obtain may be limited or subject to restrictions or post-
approval commitments that render the approved product not commercially viable. If we experience delays in obtaining approval or if we fail to obtain
approval of our drug candidates and we or a third party fails to obtain approval of companion diagnostic tests related to our approved drug and drug
candidates, or we fail to expand the approval for QINLOCK in additional geographies, the commercial prospects for our drug or drug candidates may be
harmed and our ability to generate further revenues will be materially impaired.

We may not be able to obtain or retain orphan drug exclusivity for our drug or drug candidates.

Regulatory authorities in some jurisdictions, including the U.S. and Europe, may in response to a request from the sponsor designate drugs for
relatively small patient populations as orphan drugs. Under the Orphan Drug Act, the FDA may designate a product as an orphan drug if it is a drug
intended to treat a rare disease or condition, which is generally defined as a patient population of fewer than 200,000 individuals annually in the U.S. For
example, we have received orphan drug designation for ripretinib for the treatment of GIST in the U.S. In the EU, a medicinal product may be designated
as orphan if (1) it is intended for the diagnosis, prevention, or treatment of a life-threatening or chronically debilitating condition; (2) either (i) such
condition
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affects no more than five in 10,000 persons in the EU when the application is made, or (ii) it is unlikely that the product, without the benefits derived from
orphan status, would generate sufficient return in the EU to justify the necessary investment in its development; and (3) there exists no satisfactory method
of diagnosis, prevention, or treatment of such condition authorized for marketing in the EU or, if such a method exists, the product will be of significant
benefit to those affected by the condition, as defined in Regulation (EC) 847/2000.

Generally, if a product with an orphan drug designation subsequently receives the first marketing approval for the indication for which it has such
designation, the product is entitled to a period of marketing exclusivity, which precludes the approval of another marketing application for the same drug
for the same indication for that time period. The applicable period is seven years in the U.S. and ten years in the EU. Orphan drug exclusivity may be lost if
the FDA or the EMA determines that the request for designation was materially defective or if the manufacturer is unable to assure sufficient quantity of
the drug to meet the needs of patients with the rare disease or condition. In addition, the FDA can subsequently approve a marketing application for the
same drug, or a product with the same active moiety, for treatment of the same disease or condition if it concludes that the later drug is clinically superior in
that it is shown to be safer, more effective or makes a major contribution to patient care. Similarly, the EMA may grant a marketing authorization to a
similar medicinal product for the same indication as an authorized orphan product at any time if it is established that the second product, although similar,
is safer, more effective or otherwise clinically superior to the authorized product. The FDA and EMA also can approve a different drug for the same orphan
indication, or the same drug for a different indication, during the orphan exclusivity period.

The FDA Reauthorization Act of 2017 (the FDARA), among other things, codified the FDA's preexisting regulatory interpretation, to require that a
drug sponsor demonstrate the clinical superiority of an orphan drug that is otherwise the same as a previously approved drug for the same rare disease in
order to receive orphan drug exclusivity. The law reverses prior precedent holding that the Orphan Drug Act unambiguously requires that the FDA
recognize the orphan exclusivity period regardless of a showing of clinical superiority. Moreover, in the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021,
Congress did not further change this interpretation when it clarified that the interpretation codified in the FDARA would apply in cases where FDA issued
an orphan designation before the enactment of the FDARA but where product approval came after the enactment of the FDARA. The FDA may further
reevaluate its regulations and policies under the Orphan Drug Act. We do not know if, when, or how the FDA may change the orphan drug regulations and
policies in the future, and it is uncertain how any changes might affect our business. Depending on what changes the FDA may make to its orphan drug
regulations and policies, our business could be adversely impacted.

Even if we obtain orphan drug exclusivity for a product's use in a specific indication, that exclusivity may not effectively protect the product from
competition.

Interim, "top-line" and preliminary data from our clinical trials that we announce or publish from time to time may change as more patient data
become available, may be interpreted differently if additional data are disclosed, and are subject to audit and verification procedures that could result in
material changes in the final data.

From time to time, we may publicly disclose preliminary or "top-line" data from our clinical trials, which may be based on a preliminary analysis of
then-available data in a summary or "top-line" format, and the results and related findings may change as more patient data become available, may be
interpreted differently if additional data are disclosed at a later time and are subject to audit and verification procedures that could result in material changes
in the final data. If additional results from our clinical trials are not viewed favorably, our ability to obtain approval for and commercialize our approved
drug and drug candidates, our business, operating results, prospects, or financial condition may be harmed and our stock price may decrease.

We also make assumptions, estimates, calculations, and conclusions as part of our analyses of data, and we may not have received or had the
opportunity to fully and carefully evaluate all data. As a result, the preliminary or "top-line" results that we report may differ from future results of the same
trials, or different conclusions or considerations may qualify such results, once additional data have been disclosed and/or are received and fully evaluated.
Such data also remain subject to audit and verification procedures that may result in the final data being materially different from the preliminary data we
previously published. As a result, preliminary and "top-line" data should be viewed with caution until the final data are available. We may also disclose
interim data from our clinical trials. Interim data from clinical trials that we may complete are subject to the risk that one or more of the clinical outcomes
may materially change as patient enrollment continues and more patient data become available. Adverse differences between preliminary or interim data
and final data could significantly harm our business prospects.

Further, others, including regulatory agencies, may not accept or agree with our assumptions, estimates, calculations, conclusions, or analyses or
may interpret or weigh the importance of data differently, which could impact the value of the particular program, the approvability or commercialization
of the particular drug candidate or product, and our business in
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general. In addition, in regards to the information we publicly disclose regarding a particular study or clinical trial, such as "top-line" data, you or others
may not agree with what we determine is the material or otherwise appropriate information to include in such disclosure, and any information we determine
not to disclose, or to disclose at a later date, such as at a medical meeting may ultimately be deemed significant with respect to future decisions,
conclusions, views, activities, or otherwise regarding a particular drug, drug candidate, or our business. If the "top-line" data that we report differ from
actual results or are interpreted differently once additional data are disclosed at a later date, or if others, including regulatory authorities, disagree with the
conclusions reached, our ability to obtain approval for and commercialize our drug candidates, our business, operating results, prospects, or financial
condition may be harmed or our stock price may decline.

If we are unable to successfully develop companion diagnostic tests for our drug candidates that require such tests, or experience significant delays in
doing so, we may not realize the full commercial potential of these drug candidates.

We may develop, either by ourselves or with collaborators, in vitro companion diagnostic tests for our drug candidates for certain indications,
including the companion diagnostic test that we intend to develop for QINLOCK in order to identify second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon
11 and 17/18. To be successful, we or our collaborators will need to address a number of scientific, technical, regulatory, and logistical challenges. The
FDA regulates in vitro companion diagnostic tests as medical devices that will likely be subject to clinical trials in conjunction with the clinical trials for
our drug candidates, and which will require regulatory clearance or approval prior to commercialization. We will and may in the future rely on third parties
for the design, development, and manufacture of companion diagnostic tests for our therapeutic drug candidates that require such tests. We have limited
experience in the development and commercialization of companion diagnostic tests with third parties and may not be successful in developing and
commercializing appropriate companion diagnostic tests with third parties to pair with our drug candidates that receive marketing approval. If these parties
are unable to successfully develop companion diagnostic tests for these therapeutic drug candidates, or experience delays in doing so, the development of
these therapeutic drug candidates may be adversely affected, these therapeutic drug candidates may not obtain marketing approval, and we may not realize
the full commercial potential of any of these therapeutics that obtain marketing approval. As a result, our business, results of operations, and financial
condition could be materially harmed.

The failure to obtain required regulatory clearances or approvals for any companion diagnostic tests that we may pursue may prevent or delay approval
of any of our drug candidates. Moreover, the commercial success of any of our drug candidates that require a companion diagnostic will be tied to the
receipt of any required regulatory clearances or approvals and the continued availability of such tests.

In connection with the clinical development of our drug candidates for certain indications, we may work with collaborators to develop or obtain
access to in vitro companion diagnostic tests to identify appropriate patients for our drug candidates, including the companion diagnostic tests that we
intend to develop for QINLOCK in order to identify second-line GIST patients with mutations in KIT exon 11 and 17/18. We will and may in the future
rely on third parties for the development, testing, and manufacturing of these companion diagnostic tests, the application for and receipt of any required
regulatory clearances or approvals, and the commercial supply of these companion diagnostic tests. Our third-party collaborators may fail to obtain the
required regulatory clearances or approvals, which could prevent or delay approval of our drug candidates. In addition, the commercial success of any of
our drug candidates that require a companion diagnostic will be tied to and dependent upon the receipt of required regulatory clearances or approvals and
the continued ability of such third parties to make the companion diagnostic commercially available on reasonable terms in the relevant geographies.
Current commercially available diagnostic tests may become unavailable in the future.

A fast track designation by the FDA for our drug candidates may not actually lead to a faster development or regulatory review or approval process.

In November 2021, we announced that vimseltinib had been granted fast track designation by the FDA for the treatment of patients with TGCT who
are not amenable to surgery. We intend to and may in the future seek fast track designation for some of our other drug candidates. If a drug is intended for
the treatment of a serious or life-threatening condition and the drug demonstrates the potential to address an unmet medical need for this condition, the drug
sponsor may apply for FDA fast track designation. The FDA has broad discretion whether or not to grant this designation, so even if we believe a particular
drug candidate is eligible for this designation, we cannot assure you that the FDA would decide to grant it. Even if we do receive fast track designation, we
may not experience a faster development process, review, or approval compared to conventional FDA procedures. The FDA may rescind fast track
designation if the drug candidate no longer meets the qualifying criteria for fast track designation, such as if the drug: (1) no longer demonstrates a potential
to address unmet medical need or (2) is not being studied in a manner that shows the drug can treat a serious condition and meets an unmet medical need. A
drug candidate may no longer demonstrate a potential to address an unmet medical need if a new product was approved under a traditional approval that
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addressed the same need or if emerging clinical data failed to show that the fast track designated drug candidate had the anticipated advantage over
available therapy.

A BTD by the FDA for our drug candidates may not lead to a faster development or regulatory review or approval process, and it does not increase the
likelihood that our drug candidates will obtain marketing approval.

In March 2023, the FDA granted BTD for QINLOCK for the treatment of adult patients with unresectable or metastatic GIST who received prior
treatment with imatinib, and who harbor a KIT exon 11 mutation and co-occurring KIT exon 17 and/or 18 mutations (KIT exon 11+17/17 mutations). We
have in the past received and may in the future seek a BTD for some of our drug candidates.

A breakthrough therapy is defined as a drug that is intended, alone or in combination with one or more other drugs, to treat a serious or life-
threatening disease or condition, and preliminary clinical evidence indicates that the drug may demonstrate substantial improvement over existing therapies
on one or more clinically significant endpoints, such as substantial treatment effects observed early in clinical development. For drugs and biologics that
have been designated as breakthrough therapies, interaction and communication between the FDA and the sponsor of the trial can help to identify the most
efficient path for clinical development while minimizing the number of patients placed in ineffective control regimens. Drugs designated as breakthrough
therapies by the FDA may also be eligible for accelerated approval.

Designation as a breakthrough therapy is within the discretion of the FDA. Accordingly, even if we believe one of our drug candidates meets the
criteria for designation as a breakthrough therapy, the FDA may disagree and instead determine not to make such designation. In any event, the receipt of a
BTD for a drug candidate may not result in a faster development process, review, or approval compared to drugs considered for approval under
conventional FDA procedures and does not assure ultimate approval by the FDA. In addition, even if one or more of our drug candidates qualify as
breakthrough therapies, the FDA may later decide that the products no longer meet the conditions for qualification or decide that the time period for the
FDA review or approval will not be shortened.

Risks Related to Drug Discovery

Results of preclinical studies and early clinical trials of drug candidates may not be predictive of results of later studies or trials. Our drug candidates
may not have favorable results in later clinical trials, if any, or receive regulatory approval.

Preclinical and clinical drug development is expensive and can take many years to complete, and its outcome is inherently uncertain. Failure can
occur at any time during the preclinical study or clinical trial process. Despite promising preclinical or clinical results, any program or drug candidate can
unexpectedly fail at any stage of preclinical or clinical development. The historical failure rate for programs or drug candidates in our industry is high. The
results from preclinical studies or early clinical trials may not be predictive of the results from later preclinical studies or clinical trials, and interim results
of a clinical trial are not necessarily indicative of final results. Drug candidates in later stages of clinical trials may fail to show the desired safety and
efficacy characteristics despite having progressed through preclinical studies and initial clinical trials.

Many companies in the biopharmaceutical industry have suffered significant setbacks at later stages of development after achieving positive results
in early stages of development. Moreover, non-clinical and clinical data are often susceptible to varying interpretations and analyses, and many companies
that believed their drug candidates performed satisfactorily in preclinical studies and clinical trials nonetheless failed to obtain regulatory approval. A
program may fail to result in a designated compound for many reasons, including inability to achieve desired candidate profile properties, chemistry or
patent challenges, or inconclusive or conflicting in vitro and/or in vivo studies. Designated compounds undergoing IND-enabling studies, including animal
toxicity studies, may fail at that stage. Moreover, even if an IND is filed, regulatory authorities may not clear the candidate as safe to proceed for human
studies. Even if any drug candidates progress to clinical trials, these drug candidates may fail to achieve clinical-proof-of-concept or show the safety and
efficacy in clinical development required to obtain regulatory approval, despite the observation of positive results in animal studies. Our or our
collaborators’ failure to replicate positive results from early research programs and preclinical studies may prevent us from further developing and
commercializing those or other drug candidates, which would limit our potential to generate revenues from them and harm our business and prospects.

For the foregoing reasons, we cannot be certain that any ongoing or future preclinical studies or clinical trials, including our ongoing Phase 1/2 study
of DCC-3116, our Phase 3 INSIGHT study, or our pan-RAF research program, will be successful. Any safety or efficacy concerns observed in any one of
our preclinical studies or clinical trials in a targeted area could limit the prospects for regulatory approval of drug candidates in that and other areas, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business and prospects.
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We may expend our limited resources to pursue a particular drug candidate or indication and fail to capitalize on drug candidates or indications that
may be more profitable or for which there is a greater likelihood of success.

Because we have limited financial and managerial resources, we focus on research programs and drug candidates that we identify for specific
indications. As a result, we may forego or delay pursuit of opportunities with other drug candidates or for other indications that later prove to have greater
commercial potential. Our resource allocation decisions may cause us to fail to capitalize on viable commercial products or profitable market opportunities.
Our spending on current and future research and development programs and drug candidates for specific indications may not yield any other commercially
viable products. If we do not accurately evaluate the commercial potential or target market for a particular drug candidate, we may relinquish valuable
rights to that drug candidate through collaboration, distributor, licensing, or other royalty arrangements in cases in which it would have been more
advantageous for us to retain sole development and commercialization rights to such drug candidate.

We may not be successful in our efforts to discover additional potential drug candidates.

A key element of our strategy is to apply our proprietary knowledge and our understanding of the structure, biology, and activity of kinase inhibitors
that target the switch control mechanism to develop drug candidates. The therapeutic discovery activities that we are conducting may not be successful in
identifying additional drug candidates that are useful in treating cancer or other diseases. Our research programs may initially show promise in identifying
potential drug candidates, yet fail to yield drug candidates for clinical development for a number of reasons, including:

• the research methodology used may not be successful in identifying potential drug candidates;

• potential drug candidates may, on further study, be shown to have harmful side effects or other characteristics that indicate that they are unlikely
to be drugs that will obtain marketing approval or achieve market acceptance; or

• potential drug candidates may not be effective in treating their targeted diseases.

Research programs to identify new drug candidates require substantial technical, financial, and human resources. We may choose to focus our efforts
and resources on a potential drug candidate that ultimately proves to be unsuccessful. If we are unable to identify suitable drug candidates for preclinical
and clinical development, we will not be able to obtain revenues from the sale of products in future periods, which likely would result in significant harm to
our financial position and adversely impact our stock price.

Risks Related to Litigation

Product liability lawsuits against us could cause us to incur substantial liabilities and to limit commercialization of our approved drug or any of our
drug candidates that we may develop.

We face an inherent risk of product liability exposure related to the sale and use of our approved drug and the testing of drug candidates in human
clinical trials and use of our drug candidates through compassionate use and expanded access programs, and an even greater risk in connection with our
commercialization of our current and future drugs. If we cannot successfully defend ourselves against any claims that our approved drug or any of our drug
candidates caused injuries, we will incur substantial liabilities. Regardless of merit or eventual outcome, liability claims may result in:

• decreased demand for our approved drug or any of our drug candidates or products that we may develop and commercialize;

• injury to our reputation and significant negative media attention;

• withdrawal of clinical trial participants;

• significant costs to defend the related litigation;

• substantial monetary awards to trial participants or patients;

• loss of revenue or royalties;

• reduced resources of our management to pursue our business strategy; and

• the inability to commercialize our approved drug or any of our drug candidates that we may develop.

We currently hold $20.0 million in product liability insurance coverage in the aggregate for the U.S. and certain other jurisdictions, with a per
incident limit of $20.0 million, which may not be adequate to cover all liabilities that we may incur or may be responsible for with respect to
indemnification obligations. We anticipate that we may need to further increase our
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insurance coverage as we expand our clinical trials or if we successfully commercialize additional drugs or drug candidates. Insurance coverage is
increasingly expensive. We may not be able to maintain insurance coverage at a reasonable cost or in an amount adequate to satisfy any liability that may
arise.

We could be subject to securities class action litigation.

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following a decline in the market price of its securities. This
risk is especially relevant for us because pharmaceutical companies have experienced significant stock price volatility in recent years. If we face such
litigation, it could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management's attention and resources, which could harm our business.

Risks Related to Intellectual Property Litigation

We may become involved in lawsuits or administrative disputes to protect or enforce our patents or other intellectual property, which could be
expensive, time consuming, and unsuccessful.

Our commercial success depends on obtaining and maintaining intellectual property rights to our products and drug candidates, as well as
successfully defending these rights against third-party challenges. Competitors may infringe our patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets, or other
intellectual property. To counter infringement or unauthorized use, we may be required to file infringement claims, which can be expensive and time
consuming and divert the time and attention of our management and scientific personnel. Any claims we assert against perceived infringers could provoke
these parties to assert counterclaims against us alleging that we infringe their patents or their intellectual property, in addition to counterclaims asserting
that our patents are invalid or unenforceable, or both. In any patent infringement proceeding, there is a risk that a court will decide that a patent of ours is
invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, and that we do not have the right to stop the other party from using the invention at issue. There is also a risk
that, even if the validity of such patents is upheld, the court will construe the patent's claims narrowly or decide that we do not have the right to stop the
other party from using the invention at issue on the grounds that our patent claims do not cover the invention. An adverse outcome in a litigation or
proceeding involving our patents could limit our ability to assert our patents against those parties or other competitors and may curtail or preclude our
ability to exclude third parties from making and selling similar or competitive products. Any of these occurrences could adversely affect our competitive
business position, business prospects, and financial condition. Similarly, if we assert trademark infringement claims, a court may determine that the marks
we have asserted are invalid or unenforceable, or that the party against whom we have asserted trademark infringement has superior rights to the marks in
question. In this case, we could ultimately be forced to cease use of such trademarks.

Even if we establish infringement, the court may decide not to grant an injunction against further infringing activity and instead award only
monetary damages, which may or may not be an adequate remedy. Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of discovery required in connection with
intellectual property litigation, there is a risk that some of our confidential information could be compromised by disclosure during litigation. There could
also be public announcements of the results of hearings, motions, or other interim proceedings or developments. If securities analysts or investors perceive
these results to be negative, it could have a material adverse effect on the price of shares of our common stock. Moreover, there can be no assurance that we
will have sufficient financial or other resources to file and pursue such infringement claims, which typically last for years before they are concluded. Even
if we ultimately prevail in such claims, the monetary cost of such litigation and the diversion of the attention of our management and scientific personnel
could outweigh any benefit we receive as a result of the proceedings.

Furthermore, third parties may also raise invalidity or unenforceability claims before administrative bodies in the U.S. or comparable foreign
authorities, even outside the context of litigation. Such mechanisms include re-examination, inter partes review, post-grant review, interference
proceedings, derivation proceedings, and equivalent proceedings in foreign jurisdictions (e.g., opposition proceedings). Such proceedings could result in
revocation, cancellation, or amendment to our patents in such a way that they no longer cover and protect our drug or drug candidates. The outcome
following legal assertions of invalidity and unenforceability is unpredictable. With respect to the validity of our patents, for example, we cannot be certain
that there is no invalidating prior art of which we, our licensors, our patent counsel, and the patent examiner were unaware during prosecution. If a third
party were to prevail on a legal assertion of invalidity or unenforceability, we would lose at least part, and perhaps all, of the patent protection on one or
more of our drug or drug candidates. Any such loss of patent protection could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results
of operations, and prospects.
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If we are sued for infringing, misappropriating, or otherwise violating intellectual property rights of third parties, such litigation or disputes could be
costly and time consuming and could prevent or delay us from developing or commercializing our drug and drug candidates, and an unfavorable
outcome could harm our business.

Our commercial success depends, in part, on our ability to develop, manufacture, market, and sell our drug and drug candidates without infringing,
misappropriating, or otherwise violating the intellectual property and other proprietary rights of third parties. If any third-party patents or patent
applications are found to cover our drug or drug candidates or their methods of use, or manufacturing, we may be required to pay damages, which could be
substantial, and we would not be free to manufacture or market our drug or drug candidates without obtaining a license, which may not be available on
commercially reasonable terms, or at all.

There is a substantial amount of intellectual property litigation in the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries, and we may become party to, or
threatened with, litigation or other adversarial proceedings regarding intellectual property rights with respect to our drug or drug candidates, including
interference proceedings before the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO).

Third parties may assert infringement, misappropriation, or other claims against us based on existing or future intellectual property rights. The
outcome of intellectual property litigation and other disputes is subject to uncertainties that cannot be adequately quantified in advance. The pharmaceutical
and biotechnology industries have produced a significant number of patents, and it may not always be clear to industry participants, including us, which
patents cover various types of products or methods of using or manufacturing products. The coverage of patents is subject to interpretation by the courts,
and the interpretation is not always uniform. If we were sued for patent infringement, we would need to demonstrate that our drug candidates, drug, or
methods of use, manufacturing, or other applicable activities either do not infringe the patent claims of the relevant patent or that the patent claims are
invalid or unenforceable, and we may not be successful in doing so. Proving invalidity is difficult. For example, in the U.S., proving invalidity requires a
showing of clear and convincing evidence to overcome the presumption of validity enjoyed by issued patents. Even if we believe third-party intellectual
property claims are without merit, there is no assurance that a court would find in our favor on questions of infringement, validity, or enforceability. Even if
we are successful in these proceedings, we may incur substantial costs and the time and attention of our management and scientific personnel could be
diverted in pursuing these proceedings, which could significantly harm our business and operating results. In addition, we may not have sufficient resources
to bring these actions to a successful conclusion.

If we are found to infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise violate a third party's intellectual property rights and we are unsuccessful in demonstrating
that such intellectual property rights are invalid or unenforceable, we could be forced, including by court order, to cease developing, manufacturing, or
commercializing the infringing drug candidate or drug. Alternatively, we may be required to obtain a license from such third party in order to use the
infringing technology and continue developing, manufacturing, or marketing the infringing drug or drug candidate. However, we may not be able to obtain
any required license on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Even if we were able to obtain a license, it could be non-exclusive, thereby giving our
competitors access to the same technologies licensed to us. In addition, we could be found liable for monetary damages, including treble damages, and
attorneys' fees if we are found to have willfully infringed a patent. We cannot provide any assurances that third-party patents do not exist which might be
enforced against our drug or drug candidates, and a finding of infringement could prevent us from commercializing our drug or drug candidates or force us
to cease some of our business operations, which could materially harm our business. Claims that we have misappropriated the confidential information or
trade secrets of third parties could have a similar negative impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.

We may be subject to claims by third parties asserting that our employees or consultants or we have misappropriated their intellectual property, or
claiming ownership of what we regard as our own intellectual property.

Some of our employees and consultants are currently or have been previously employed at universities or at other biotechnology or pharmaceutical
companies, including our competitors or potential competitors. These employees and consultants may have executed proprietary rights, non-disclosure and
non-competition agreements, or similar agreements, in connection with such other current or previous employment. Although we try to ensure that our
employees and consultants do not use the proprietary information or know-how of others in their work for us, we may be subject to claims that we or these
individuals have used or disclosed intellectual property, including trade secrets, or other proprietary information, of third parties. Litigation may be
necessary to defend against such claims. If we fail in defending any such claims, in addition to paying monetary damages, we may lose valuable intellectual
property rights or personnel or sustain damages. Such intellectual property rights could be awarded to a third party, and we could be required to obtain a
license from such third party to commercialize our technology or products. Such a license may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.
Even if we are successful in defending against such claims, litigation could result in substantial costs and be a distraction to our management. Any of the
foregoing would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.
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In addition, while we typically require our employees, consultants, and contractors who may be involved in the development of intellectual property
to execute agreements assigning such intellectual property to us, we may be unsuccessful in executing such an agreement with each party who in fact
develops intellectual property that we regard as our own. In addition, such agreements may not be self-executing such that the intellectual property subject
to such agreements may not be assigned to us without additional assignments being executed, and we may fail to obtain such assignments. In addition, such
agreements may be breached. Accordingly, we may be forced to bring claims against third parties, or defend claims that they may bring against us related
to the ownership of such intellectual property. If we fail in prosecuting or defending any such claims, in addition to paying monetary damages, we may lose
valuable intellectual property rights. Even if we are successful in prosecuting or defending against such claims, litigation could result in substantial costs
and be a distraction to our senior management and scientific personnel, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations, and prospects.

Risks Related to Our Financial Position, and Capital Needs, and Ownership of Our Common Stock

Risks Related to Our Financial Position

We have incurred significant operating losses since our inception and have not generated sufficient revenue to result in a profit from product sales. We
expect to incur continued losses for the foreseeable future and may never achieve or maintain profitability.

Investment in pharmaceutical product development is a highly speculative undertaking and involves a substantial degree of risk. We were formed
and commenced operations in 2003. Other than QINLOCK, we have no approved products for commercial sale and have not generated sufficient revenue
to result in a profit from product sales. We continue to incur significant research and development and other expenses related to our ongoing operations. As
a result, we have never been profitable and have incurred losses in each year since inception. For the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and the year
ended December 31, 2022, we reported net losses of $147.8 million and $178.9 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2023, we had an accumulated
deficit of $1.4 billion.

Since our inception, we have focused substantially all of our efforts and financial resources on developing our proprietary compound library,
including, without limitation, the preclinical and clinical development of QINLOCK and our drug candidates and, more recently, establishing a commercial
infrastructure. On May 15, 2020, QINLOCK was approved by the FDA for the treatment of adult patients with advanced GIST who have received prior
treatment with three or more kinase inhibitors, including imatinib. Except for QINLOCK, all of our drug candidates, including vimseltinib and DCC-3116,
are still in clinical stages of development. To date, we have not generated sufficient revenue to result in a profit from the product sales of QINLOCK and
have funded our operations primarily with proceeds from the sales of our common stock in public offerings and under the Sales Agreement, sales of
preferred shares, proceeds from the issuance of convertible notes, payments received under a concluded collaboration agreement, upfront and milestones
received under our license agreement with Zai, borrowings under a repaid construction loan, and research and development grants from the Kansas
Bioscience Authority. Since our inception, we received an aggregate of $1.6 billion in net proceeds from such transactions. As of September 30, 2023, our
cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities were $376.9 million.

We expect to incur operating losses for the foreseeable future, particularly as we commercialize QINLOCK and advance development of our drug
and drug candidates. Our prior losses, combined with expected future losses, have had, and will continue to have, an adverse effect on our stockholders'
equity and working capital. We expect to incur significant research and development expenses in connection with our ongoing and future clinical trials of
QINLOCK in the Phase 3 INSIGHT study, vimseltinib, and DCC-3116, and development of any other future drug candidates we may choose to pursue. In
addition, we will incur significant sales, marketing, and outsourced manufacturing costs and expenses in connection with the commercialization of
QINLOCK and any other approved drugs in the future. We expect to incur costs associated with preparations for commercial activities in Europe in
connection with the marketing approval for QINLOCK in select countries in Europe. We have and will also continue to incur additional costs associated
with operating as a public company. As a result, we expect to continue to incur operating losses for the foreseeable future. Because of the numerous risks
and uncertainties associated with developing and commercializing pharmaceutical products, we are unable to predict the extent of any future losses or when
we will become profitable, if at all. Even if we do become profitable, we may not be able to sustain or increase our profitability on a quarterly or annual
basis.

Our ability to become profitable depends upon our ability to generate revenue. To date, we have not generated sufficient revenue to result in a profit
and we do not know when, or if, we will generate profits or positive operating cash flows. We also have only obtained marketing approval for QINLOCK
for the treatment of fourth-line advanced GIST in the U.S. and other select jurisdictions, and have not obtained marketing approval for any other indications
or drug candidates. We do not expect to generate significant revenue from our drug candidates unless and until we obtain marketing approval for, and begin
to sell, such drug
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candidates. Our ability to generate further revenue from sales of QINLOCK or revenue from sales of our drug candidates depends on a number of factors,
including, but not limited to, our ability to:

• successfully commercialize or otherwise provide access to QINLOCK for the treatment of fourth-line advanced GIST in the U.S., key European
markets, and any other jurisdictions where we may receive marketing approval in the future;

• successfully complete our Phase 3 INSIGHT study of QINLOCK, advance our DCC-3116 program through clinical development, and nominate
additional drug candidates from our switch control inhibitor platform;

• initiate and successfully complete other later-stage clinical trials that meet their clinical endpoints;

• initiate and successfully complete all safety studies and related reports required to obtain U.S. and foreign marketing approval for our drug
candidates;

• continue to maintain and expand commercial manufacturing capabilities or make further arrangements with third-party manufacturers for
clinical supply and commercial manufacturing of QINLOCK and our drug candidates;

• obtain, maintain, protect, and defend our intellectual property portfolio; and

• achieve and maintain market acceptance of QINLOCK, or any current or future drug candidate for which we may receive marketing approval,
in the medical community and with third-party payors.

To become and remain profitable, we must succeed in developing, and commercializing, products that generate significant revenue. This will require
us to be successful in a range of challenging activities, including completing preclinical testing and clinical trials for our drug candidates, discovering
additional drug candidates, establishing arrangements with third parties for the manufacture of clinical and commercial supplies of our drug and drug
candidates, obtaining marketing approval for our drug candidates, and manufacturing, marketing, and selling any products for which we obtain marketing
approval, including QINLOCK. We are in early stages of many of these activities. We may never succeed in these activities and, even if we do, may never
generate revenues that are significant enough to achieve profitability.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with pharmaceutical product development, we are unable to accurately predict the timing
or amount of increased expenses we will incur or when, or if, we will be able to achieve profitability. Our expenses could increase materially if we are
required by the FDA, the EMA, or other regulatory authorities to perform studies in addition to those currently expected, if there are any delays in
establishing appropriate manufacturing arrangements for, or in completing our clinical trials for, the development of any of our drug candidates, or as a
result of impacts from global economic instability or global political developments, including historically high inflation, rising interest rates, and political
unrest.

Even if we do achieve profitability, we may not be able to sustain or increase profitability on a quarterly or annual basis. Our failure to become and
remain profitable would cause significant harm to our financial position, adversely impact our stock price, and impair our ability to raise capital, expand
our business, maintain our research and development efforts, diversify our product offerings, or even continue our operations. A decline in the value of our
company could also cause you to lose all or part of your investment.

We have a limited operating history, have not successfully completed late-stage clinical trials for any drug candidate other than QINLOCK and
vimseltinib, and have not generated sufficient revenue to result in a profit from product sales or profits from our operations. We may never achieve or
sustain profitability.

We commenced operations in 2003. Our operations to date have been limited to organizing and staffing our company, business planning, raising
capital, conducting research and development, filing patents, identifying potential drug candidates, undertaking preclinical studies, initiating and
conducting clinical trials, establishing arrangements with third parties for the manufacture of our drug and drug candidates, and establishing a commercial
infrastructure in the U.S. and key European markets. On May 15, 2020, QINLOCK was approved by the FDA for the treatment of adult patients with
advanced GIST who have received prior treatment with three or more kinase inhibitors, including imatinib. Except for QINLOCK, all of our drug
candidates, including vimseltinib and DCC-3116, are still in clinical stages of development.

We have not yet demonstrated our ability to complete Phase 3 clinical trials other than for QINLOCK for the treatment of fourth-line GIST and
vimseltinib for the potential treatment of TGCT, or the ability to complete the development of any companion diagnostic tests, and we have not generated
sufficient revenue to result in a profit from product sales or our operations. Consequently, we may never achieve or sustain profitability and any predictions
you make about our future success or viability may not be as accurate as they could be if we had an operating history with these activities.
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In addition, as a growing business entering into new stages of pharmaceutical development, we may encounter unforeseen expenses, difficulties,
complications, delays, and other known or unknown factors. While we have transitioned from a company with a research and development focus to a
company supporting commercial activities, we continue to have limited experience with activities designed to conduct large-scale sales, marketing, and
distribution activities necessary for continued successful product commercialization.

We may engage in strategic transactions that could impact our liquidity, increase our expenses, and present significant distractions to our management.

From time to time, we may consider strategic transactions, such as acquisitions of companies, businesses or assets, and out-licensing or in-licensing
of products, drug candidates, or technologies. Additional potential transactions that we may consider include a variety of different business arrangements,
including spin-offs, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, restructurings, divestitures, business combinations, and investments. Any such transaction may
require us to incur non-recurring or other charges, may increase our near term or long-term expenditures, and may pose significant integration challenges or
disrupt our management or business, which could adversely affect our operations and financial results. For example, these transactions may entail
numerous operational and financial risks, including:

• exposure to unknown liabilities;

• disruption of our business and diversion of our management's time and attention in order to develop acquired products, drug candidates, or
technologies;

• incurrence of substantial debt or dilutive issuances of equity securities to pay for acquisitions;

• higher than expected acquisition and integration costs;

• write-downs of assets or goodwill or impairment charges;

• increased amortization expenses;

• difficulty and cost in combining the operations, systems, and personnel of any acquired businesses with our operations, systems, and personnel;

• impairment of relationships with key suppliers or customers of any acquired businesses due to changes in management and ownership; and

• inability to retain key employees of any acquired businesses.

We have broad discretion in the use of working capital and may not use it effectively.

Our management has broad discretion in the application of working capital, and stockholders do not have the opportunity to assess whether working
capital is being used appropriately. Because of the number and variability of factors that will determine our use of our working capital, its ultimate use may
vary substantially from its currently intended use. Management might not apply working capital in ways that ultimately increase stockholder value. Failure
by us to apply working capital effectively could harm our business. Pending its use, we may invest our working capital in short-term, investment-grade,
interest-bearing securities. These investments may not yield a favorable return to our stockholders. In addition, the fair value of such investments is subject
to change as a result of potential market fluctuations, including resulting from global economic and political developments. If we do not invest or apply our
working capital in ways that enhance stockholder value, we may fail to achieve expected financial results, which could cause our stock price to decline.

Risks Related to Our Capital Needs

We will require substantial additional funding. If we are unable to raise capital when needed, or on attractive terms, we could be forced to delay,
reduce, or eliminate our research or drug development programs or commercialization efforts.

We expect to incur significant expenses in connection with our ongoing activities, particularly as we commercialize QINLOCK and conduct our
Phase 3 INSIGHT study, and advance our drug candidates, vimseltinib and DCC-3116, and seek to identify lead drug candidates in our research programs.
We expect increased expenses as we continue our research and development and initiate additional clinical trials and establish arrangements with third
parties for the manufacture of clinical supplies of and seek marketing approval for our drug candidates. In addition, we expect to incur significant
commercialization costs and expenses related to product manufacturing, marketing, sales, and distribution of QINLOCK, including related to our
commercial launch in key European markets and any current or future drug candidate for which we may receive marketing approval. Furthermore, we
expect to continue to incur costs associated with operating as a public company.
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Accordingly, we will need to obtain substantial additional funding in connection with our continuing operations. If we are unable to raise capital
when needed, or on attractive terms, we could be forced to delay, reduce, or eliminate our research or drug development programs or our commercialization
efforts.

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities as of September 30, 2023, together with anticipated product, royalty, and
supply revenues, but excluding any potential future milestones received under our collaboration or license agreements will enable us to fund our operating
expenses and capital expenditure requirements into 2026. We have based this estimate on assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and we could use our
capital resources sooner than we currently expect.

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including:

• the scope, progress, costs, and results of drug discovery, preclinical development, and clinical trials for our drug candidates;

• the cost of maintaining, expanding, or contracting out sales, marketing, and distribution capabilities in connection with commercialization of
QINLOCK or any future drugs for which we may receive marketing approval;

• the success of our commercialization efforts and market acceptance for QINLOCK or any of our future approved drugs;

• the number and development requirements of drug candidates that we pursue, including ones we may acquire from third parties;

• the costs and timing of arrangements with third parties for the manufacture of clinical and commercial supplies of QINLOCK and our drug
candidates;

• the costs, timing, and outcome of regulatory review of our drug candidates and for QINLOCK in additional geographies, including in key
European markets;

• the costs and timing of commercialization activities, including product manufacturing, marketing, sales, and distribution, for QINLOCK and
any of our drug candidates for which we obtain marketing approval, as well as infrastructure costs in the U.S. and key European markets, and in
other jurisdictions where we may seek marketing approval and choose to sell or enter into distribution arrangements;

• the revenue received from commercial sales of QINLOCK and our drug candidates for which we obtain marketing approval, if any;

• the achievement of milestones or occurrence of other developments that trigger payments, including, without limitation, milestone or royalty
payments, to us under our license agreement with Zai or any collaboration, distribution, or other license agreements that we have entered into or
may enter into in the future, if any;

• the costs and timing of preparing, filing, and prosecuting any patent applications, maintaining and enforcing our intellectual property rights, and
defending any intellectual property-related claims;

• our ability to establish additional license, distributor, and/or collaboration arrangements with other biotechnology or pharmaceutical companies
on favorable terms, if at all, for the development or commercialization of our drug candidates; and

• the extent to which we acquire or in-license drug candidates, technologies, and associated intellectual property rights, which may require up-
front, milestone and/or royalty payments to the seller or licensor.

Identifying potential drug candidates and conducting preclinical testing and clinical trials and, for any drug candidates that receive marketing
approval, establishing and maintaining a commercial infrastructure, is a time-consuming, expensive, and uncertain process that takes years to complete, and
we may never generate the necessary data or results required to obtain additional marketing approvals, including for QINLOCK in additional geographies,
and achieve sufficient revenues to result in a profit for QINLOCK or any of our drug candidates that receive marketing approval. In addition, QINLOCK
and any of our drug candidates that receive marketing approval may not achieve commercial success. Accordingly, we will need to obtain substantial
additional funds to achieve our business objectives. Adequate additional funds may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all.
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Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to our stockholders, restrict our operations, or require us to relinquish rights to our technologies or drug
candidates.

Until at least such time, if ever, as we can generate sufficient product revenues to result in a profit, we expect to finance our cash needs primarily
through a combination of equity, debt, or other financings, collaborations, strategic alliances, and marketing, distribution, or licensing arrangements. We do
not currently have any committed external source of funds. In addition, we may seek additional capital due to favorable market conditions or strategic
considerations, even if we believe we have sufficient funds for our current or future operating plans. To the extent that we raise additional capital through
the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, your ownership interest will be diluted, and the terms of our securities may include liquidation or other
preferences that adversely affect your rights as a common stockholder. Debt financing and preferred equity financing, if available, may involve agreements
that include covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making acquisitions or capital
expenditures, or declaring dividends.

If we raise additional funds through collaborations, strategic alliances, or marketing, distribution, or licensing arrangements with third parties, we
may have to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies, future revenue streams, research programs, drug or drug candidates, or grant licenses on terms
that may not be favorable to us. If we are unable to raise additional funds through equity or debt financings or other arrangements when needed, we may be
required to delay, limit, reduce, or terminate our research, product development, or commercialization efforts, or grant rights to develop and market drugs
and drug candidates that we would otherwise prefer to develop and market ourselves.

We expect our operating results to fluctuate in future periods, which may adversely affect our stock price.

Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated in the past, and we believe they will continue to do so in the future. Our operating results may
fluctuate due to the level of success of our commercial efforts, as well as the variable nature of our operating expenses as a result of the timing and
magnitude of expenditures. In one or more future periods, our results of operations may fall below the expectations of securities analysts and investors. In
that event, the market price of our common stock could decline.

Our executive officers, directors, and principal stockholders, if they choose to act together, will continue to have the ability to significantly influence all
matters submitted to stockholders for approval.

As of September 30, 2023, our executive officers and directors, combined with our stockholders who own more than 10% of our outstanding capital
stock, beneficially own shares, in the aggregate, representing approximately 32% of our capital stock. As a result, if these stockholders were to choose to
act together, they would be able to exert significant influence over all matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, as well as our management and
affairs. For example, these persons, if they choose to act together, would have significant influence over the election of directors and approval of any
merger, consolidation, or sale of all or substantially all of our assets. This concentration of ownership control may:

• delay, defer, or prevent a change in control;

• entrench our management and the board of directors; or

• impede a merger, consolidation, takeover, or other business combination involving us that other stockholders may desire.

Provisions in our corporate charter, under Delaware law, and in certain of our contractual agreements could make an acquisition of our company,
which may be beneficial to our stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current
management.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated by-laws may discourage, delay, or prevent a
merger, acquisition, or other change in control of our company that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which you might
otherwise receive a premium for your shares. These provisions could also limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of
our common stock, thereby depressing the market price of our common stock. In addition, because our board of directors is responsible for appointing the
members of our management team, these provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current
management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our board of directors. Among other things, these provisions:

• establish a classified board of directors such that only one of three classes of directors is elected each year;
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• allow the authorized number of our directors to be changed only by resolution of our board of directors;

• limit the manner in which stockholders can remove directors from our board of directors;

• establish advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals that can be acted on at stockholder meetings and nominations to our board of
directors;

• require that stockholder actions must be effected at a duly called stockholder meeting and prohibit actions by our stockholders by written
consent;

• limit who may call stockholder meetings;

• authorize our board of directors to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval, which could be used to institute a "poison pill" that would
work to dilute the stock ownership of a potential hostile acquirer, effectively preventing acquisitions that have not been approved by our board
of directors; and

• require the approval of the holders of at least 75% of the votes that all our stockholders would be entitled to cast to amend or repeal specified
provisions of our charter or by-laws.

Moreover, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law,
which prohibits a person who owns in excess of 15% of our outstanding voting stock from merging or combining with us for a period of three years after
the date of the transaction in which the person acquired in excess of 15% of our outstanding voting stock, unless the merger or combination is approved in a
prescribed manner.

Our amended and restated by-laws designate specific courts as the exclusive forum for certain types of actions and proceedings that may be initiated by
our stockholders, which could limit our stockholders' ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers, or
employees.

Our amended and restated by-laws provide that, unless we consent in writing to an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware
will be the sole and exclusive forum for any state law claims for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a
claim of breach of or based on a breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our current or former directors, officers, and employees to us or our
stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim against us or any of our current or former directors, officers, employees, or stockholders arising pursuant to
any provision of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated by-laws, or
(iv) any action asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine (collectively, the Delaware Forum Provision). The Delaware Forum Provision will
not apply to any causes of action arising under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act. Our amended and restated by-laws further provide that unless we
consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts shall be the exclusive forum for
resolving any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act, or the Federal Forum Provision, as our principal executive offices are
located in Waltham, Massachusetts. In addition, any person purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in any shares of our capital stock shall be
deemed to have notice of and to have consented to the Delaware Forum Provision and the Federal Forum Provision; provided, however, that stockholders
cannot and will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder.

We recognize that the Delaware Forum Provision and the Federal Forum Provision may impose additional litigation costs on stockholders who assert
the provision is not enforceable and may impose more general litigation costs in pursuing any such claims, particularly if the stockholders do not reside in
or near the State of Delaware or the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Additionally, these forum selection clauses in our amended and restated by-laws
may limit a stockholder's ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with us or our directors, officers, or employees,
which may discourage the filing of such lawsuits against us and our directors, officers, and employees even though an action, if successful, might benefit
our stockholders. While the Delaware Supreme Court ruled in March 2020 that federal forum selection provisions purporting to require claims under the
Securities Act be brought in federal court are "facially valid" under Delaware law, there is uncertainty as to whether other courts will enforce our Federal
Forum Provision. The Federal Forum Provision may also impose additional litigation costs on stockholders who assert that the provision is unenforceable,
and if the Federal Forum Provision is found to be unenforceable, we may incur additional costs with resolving such matters. The Court of Chancery of the
State of Delaware and the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts may also reach different judgments or results than would other
courts, including courts where a stockholder considering an action may be located or would otherwise choose to bring the action, and such judgments or
results may be more favorable to us than to our stockholders.
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The market price of our common stock may be volatile and fluctuate substantially upon the occurrence of future events, which could result in
substantial losses for purchasers of our common stock.

Our stock price is likely to be volatile. The stock market in general and the market for smaller biopharmaceutical companies in particular have
experienced extreme volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. Our common stock is currently quoted
on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "DCPH." Since our common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on
September 28, 2017, our stock has traded at prices as low as $6.51 per share and as high as $71.11 per share through September 30, 2023. Market prices for
our common stock will be influenced by a number of factors, including:

• the issuance of new equity securities pursuant to a future offering, including issuances of preferred stock;

• changes in interest rates;

• significant dilution caused by the anti-dilutive clauses in our financial agreements;

• the success of commercialization of our drug and drug candidates, if approved;

• competitive developments, including announcements by competitors of new products or services or significant contracts, acquisitions, strategic
partnerships, joint ventures, or capital commitments;

• variations in quarterly operating results or those of companies that are perceived to be similar to us;

• the depth and liquidity of the market for our common stock;

• investor perceptions of our company and the pharmaceutical and biotech industries generally;

• the degree of success of competitive products or technologies;

• results of clinical trials and preclinical studies, of our drug or drug candidates or those of our competitors;

• regulatory or legal developments in the U.S. and other countries;

• receipt of, or failure to obtain, regulatory approvals;

• developments or disputes concerning patent applications, issued patents, or other proprietary rights;

• the recruitment or departure of key personnel;

• the success of our corporate strategy and goals;

• the level of expenses related to our drug or any of our drug candidates or clinical development programs;

• the results of our efforts to discover, develop, acquire, or in-license additional technologies or drug candidates, including our combination
strategy with DCC-3116;

• actual or anticipated changes in estimates as to financial results, development timelines, or recommendations by securities analysts;

• rumors or announcements regarding transactions involving our company or our drug or drug candidates;

• changes in the structure of healthcare payment systems;

• market conditions in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology sectors;

• general economic, industry, and market conditions and other national or global conditions; and

• the other factors described in this "Risk Factors" section.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective internal control over financial reporting, our ability to produce accurate and timely financial statements
could be impaired, which could harm our operating results, investors' views of us and, as a result, the value of our common stock.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (Section 404), our independent registered public accounting firm is required to attest to the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Preparing such attestation report and the cost of compliance with reporting requirements that
we had not previously implemented has and will continue to increase our expenses and require significant management time. Investors may find our
common stock less attractive because of the additional compliance costs. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a
less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile.
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The rules governing the standards that must be met for management and our independent registered public accounting firm to assess our internal
control over financial reporting are complex and require significant documentation, testing, and possible remediation. In connection with our and our
independent registered public accounting firm's evaluations of our internal control over financial reporting, we may need to upgrade systems, including
information technology, implement additional financial and management controls, reporting systems, and procedures, and hire additional accounting and
finance staff.

Any failure to implement required new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation, could cause us to fail to meet our
reporting obligations. In addition, any testing by us or our independent registered public accounting firm conducted in connection with Section 404 may
reveal deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting that are deemed to be material weaknesses or that may require prospective or retroactive
changes to our financial statements or identify other areas for further attention or improvement. Inferior internal controls could also cause investors to lose
confidence in our reported financial information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of our common stock. Internal control deficiencies
could also result in a restatement of our financial results in the future. We could become subject to stockholder or other third-party litigation, as well as
investigations by the SEC, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, or other regulatory authorities, which could require additional financial and management
resources and could result in fines, trading suspensions, payment of damages or other remedies. Further, any delay in compliance with the auditor
attestation provisions of Section 404 could subject us to a variety of administrative sanctions, including ineligibility for short-form resale registration,
action by the SEC and the suspension or delisting of our common stock, which could reduce the trading price of our common stock and could harm our
business.

Because we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our capital stock in the foreseeable future, capital appreciation, if any, will be your sole
source of gain.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain all of our future earnings, if any, to finance the
growth and development of our business. In addition, the terms of any future debt agreements we may enter into may preclude us from paying dividends.
As a result, capital appreciation, if any, of our common stock will be your sole source of gain for the foreseeable future.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on Third Parties

We rely, and expect to continue to rely, on third parties to conduct our clinical trials and preclinical studies, and those third parties may not perform
satisfactorily, or may experience delays in performing these services, including failing to meet deadlines for the completion of such trials or studies,
which may harm our ability to obtain regulatory approval for or commercialize our approved drug and drug candidates and our business could be
substantially harmed.

We currently rely on various third-party CROs to conduct our ongoing clinical trials for QINLOCK, vimseltinib, and DCC-3116, and do not plan to
independently conduct any clinical trials for our future drug candidates. We expect to continue to rely on third parties, such as CROs, clinical data
management organizations, medical institutions, and clinical investigators, to conduct our clinical trials. We also rely on CROs, including third-party
laboratories, to conduct some of our preclinical studies. Agreements with these third parties might terminate or be amended for a variety of reasons,
including a failure to perform by the third parties. If we need to enter into alternative arrangements, that would delay our product development and
commercialization activities.

Our reliance on these third parties for research and development activities will reduce our control over these activities but will not relieve us of our
responsibilities. For example, we will remain responsible for ensuring that each of our clinical trials is conducted in accordance with the general
investigational plan and protocols for the trial. Moreover, the FDA requires us to comply with requirements, commonly referred to as good clinical
practices, for conducting, recording, and reporting the results of clinical trials to assure that data and reported results are credible and accurate and that the
rights, integrity, and confidentiality of trial participants are protected.

Furthermore, these third parties may have relationships with other entities, some of which may be our competitors, and have substantial other
contractual obligations with their other clients. In addition, these third parties could experience business interruptions, for example in connection with
global economic and political developments, that could hinder their ability to meet their contractual obligations to us or may delay their performance of the
services they conduct for us. If these third parties do not successfully carry out their contractual duties, meet expected deadlines or conduct our clinical
trials in accordance with regulatory requirements, applicable laws, rules and regulations, and our stated protocols, we will not be able to obtain, or may be
delayed in obtaining, marketing approvals for our drug candidates and will not be able to, or may be delayed in our efforts to, successfully commercialize
our drug candidates, if approved.
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Manufacturing pharmaceutical products is complex and subject to product loss for a variety of reasons. We contract with third parties for the
manufacture of our drug candidates for preclinical testing, clinical trials, and for the manufacture of QINLOCK. This reliance on third parties
increases the risk that we will not have sufficient quantities of our drug or drug candidates or such quantities at an acceptable cost or quality, which
could delay, prevent, or impair our development or commercialization efforts.

We do not own any manufacturing facilities. We produce in our research laboratories very small quantities of drug substance for evaluation in our
research programs. We rely, and expect to continue to rely, on third parties for the manufacture of our drug candidates for preclinical and clinical testing,
and for the commercial manufacture of any of our current and future drugs. As a general matter, our manufacturers represent our sole source of supply. This
reliance on third parties increases the risk that we will not have sufficient quantities of our drug or drug candidates or such quantities at an acceptable cost
or quality or in a timely manner, which could delay, prevent, or impair our development or commercialization efforts, or those of our partners. Although we
actively manage these third-party relationships to ensure continuity, quality, and compliance with regulations, some events beyond our control, including
global economic or political developments, could result in supply chain disruptions or the complete or partial failure of these manufacturing services. Any
such failure or disruptions could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations.

We may be unable to establish any agreements with third-party manufacturers or to do so on acceptable terms. Even if we are able to establish
agreements with third-party manufacturers, reliance on third-party manufacturers entails additional risks, including:

• reliance on the third party for regulatory, compliance, and quality assurance;

• the possible breach of the manufacturing agreement by the third party;

• if the third party ceases its operations for any reason;

• our relative importance as a customer to the third party and whether the third party subordinates our needs to its other customers;

• the possible misappropriation of our proprietary information, including our trade secrets and know how; and

• the possible termination or nonrenewal of the agreement by the third party, including sole source suppliers, at a time that is costly or
inconvenient for us.

We have only limited supply arrangements in place with respect to our drug candidates and sole source supplier arrangements for our commercial
supply of drug substance, and finished drug product for QINLOCK. We acquire many key materials on a purchase order basis. As a result, while we have
commercial supply arrangements for our drug substance and finished drug product for QINLOCK, we do not have long term supply arrangements with
respect to our drug candidates and other materials. We do not currently have arrangements in place for redundant supply or a second source for drug
substance or drug product. We rely on our sole source suppliers to manufacture all of our drug substance and finished drug product for commercialization
of QINLOCK unless and until we add additional sources. Any performance failure on the part of our existing or future manufacturers could delay clinical
development, marketing approval, or commercial supply, including with respect to QINLOCK. If our current sole source suppliers, or future third-party
manufacturers, cannot perform as agreed, or if such contract manufacturers choose to terminate their agreements with us, we would be required to replace
such manufacturers. We may incur added costs, delays, and difficulties in identifying and qualifying any such replacement manufacturer or in reaching an
agreement with any such alternative manufacturers. In addition, we depend on the proprietary technology of our third-party manufacturers for QINLOCK
and certain of our drug candidates and we may have difficulty, or there may be contractual restrictions prohibiting us from, transferring such skills to a
back-up or alternate supplier, or we may be unable to transfer such skills at all. We will also need to verify, such as through a manufacturing comparability
study, that any new supplier will produce our drug candidate or product according to the specifications previously submitted to the FDA or another
regulatory authority. In addition, changes in suppliers often involve changes in manufacturing procedures and processes, which could require that we
conduct bridging studies between our prior clinical supply used in our clinical trials and that of any new supplier. The delays associated with the
verification of a new supplier or comparability of new manufacturing processes could negatively affect our ability to develop drug candidates or
commercialize our product in a timely manner or within budget.

If any supplier facility does not pass a pre-approval inspection by the FDA or if the FDA finds significant deficiencies at any such facility as part of
any NDA approval process for any drug candidate, we will not be able to commercialize this drug candidate until the third-party manufacturer comes into
compliance or we secure an agreement for another facility, which is determined to be adequate by the FDA. If the FDA requires changes to our
manufacturing process or the conditions, processes, or other matters at any supplier facility as part of its response to any NDA we may submit for a drug
candidate, it will delay our approval. We have limited control over our third-party manufacturers' ability to make changes or respond to address any FDA
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concerns. Moreover, the facility that our supplier of QINLOCK uses to manufacture commercial supply has limited experience manufacturing a
commercial drug product.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the CARES Act), drafted in response to the U.S. COVID-19
pandemic, became law. Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, there has been public concern over the availability and accessibility of critical medical
products, and the CARES Act enhanced the FDA's existing authority with respect to drug shortage measures. Under the CARES Act, we must have in
place a risk management plan that identifies and evaluates the risks to the supply of approved drugs for certain serious diseases or conditions for each
establishment where the drug or active pharmaceutical ingredient is manufactured. The risk management plan will be subject to FDA review during an
inspection. If we experience shortages in the supply of our marketed product, our results could be materially impacted.

For our other drug candidates, if approved, if we are not able to negotiate commercial supply terms with any third-party manufacturers, we may be
unable to commercialize our drug candidates if they were to be approved, and our business and financial condition would be materially harmed. If we are
forced to accept unfavorable terms for our relationships with any such third-party manufacturer, our business and financial condition would be materially
harmed.

Third-party manufacturers may not be able to comply with the FDA's cGMP regulations or similar regulatory requirements outside of the U.S.,
including in Europe. Our failure, or the failure of our third-party manufacturers, to comply with applicable regulations could result in sanctions being
imposed on us, including clinical holds, fines, injunctions, civil penalties, delays, suspension or withdrawal of approvals, seizures or voluntary recalls of
drug candidates or products, operating restrictions, and criminal prosecutions, any of which could significantly and adversely affect supplies of our drug or
drug candidates. Third-party manufacturers' failure to achieve and maintain high manufacturing standards, in accordance with applicable regulatory
requirements, or the incidence of manufacturing errors, also could result in patient injury or death, product shortages, delays or failures in product testing or
delivery, cost overruns, or other problems that could seriously harm our business. Third-party manufacturers often encounter difficulties involving
production yields, quality control, and quality assurance, as well as shortages of qualified personnel.

Our drug and drug candidates may compete with other drugs and drug candidates for access to manufacturing facilities. As a result, we may not
obtain access to these facilities on a priority basis or at all. There are a limited number of manufacturers that operate under cGMP regulations and that
might be capable of manufacturing for us.

We have not yet scaled up the commercial manufacturing process for any of our drug candidates, other than our approved drug, QINLOCK. Even
minor deviations from normal manufacturing processes could result in reduced production yields, product defects, and other supply disruptions. If
microbial, viral, or other contaminations are discovered in our drug or drug candidates or in the manufacturing facilities in which our drug or drug
candidates are made, such manufacturing facilities may need to be closed for an extended period of time to investigate and remedy the contamination.

Our current and anticipated future dependence upon others for the manufacture of our drug or drug candidates may adversely affect our future profit
margins and our ability to commercialize our approved products on a timely and competitive basis.

We may enter into license and/or collaborations with third parties for the development and commercialization of our approved drug or drug candidates.
If those license and/or collaborations, including, without limitation, our license arrangement with Zai for the development and commercialization of
QINLOCK in Greater China, are not successful, we may not be able to capitalize on the market potential of our approved drug or drug candidates.

We have in the past, currently have, and may in the future, seek third-party licensees and/or collaborators for the development and
commercialization of certain approved drugs or drug candidates on a selective basis. Our likely licensees and/or collaborators for any arrangements include
large and mid-size pharmaceutical companies, regional and national pharmaceutical companies, and biotechnology companies. For example, in 2019, we
licensed QINLOCK for development and commercialization in Greater China to Zai, a China and U.S.-based commercial stage biopharmaceutical
company. Zai received regulatory approval to market QINLOCK in the PRC, Hong Kong, and Taiwan in 2021 and Macau and Singapore in 2023. We will
not derive product revenue from Zai's sales of QINLOCK in Greater China and will in return for the license rights granted receive specified payments in
the form of an upfront payment, certain milestone payments, if achieved, and royalties on the licensee's sales of QINLOCK in Greater China during a
specified period. In addition, our clinical development plan for DCC-3116 will initially focus on combination strategies for patients with documented RAS
and RAF cancer mutations. We currently have and may in the future choose to enter into collaboration arrangements with other pharmaceutical companies
for arrangements with DCC-3116.

74



Table of Contents

To the extent we have, and if we do enter into any further such arrangements with any third parties, we will likely have, limited control over the
amount and timing of resources that our licensees and/or collaborators dedicate to the development or commercialization of our drug or drug candidates.
Our ability to generate revenues from these arrangements will depend on our licensees' and/or collaborators' abilities and efforts to successfully perform the
functions assigned to them in these arrangements. License and collaborations involving our drug or drug candidates would pose numerous risks to us,
including the following:

• licensees and/or collaborators have significant discretion in determining the efforts and resources that they will apply to these arrangements and
may not perform their obligations as expected;

• licensees and/or collaborators may deemphasize or not pursue development and commercialization of our approved drug or drug candidates or
may elect not to continue or renew development or commercialization programs based on clinical trial results, changes in their strategic focus,
including as a result of a sale or disposition of a business unit or development function, or available funding or external factors such as an
acquisition that diverts resources or creates competing priorities;

• licensees and/or collaborators may delay clinical trials, provide insufficient funding for a clinical trial program, stop a clinical trial, or abandon
an approved drug or drug candidate, repeat, or conduct new clinical trials, or require a new formulation of a drug candidate for clinical testing;

• licensees and/or collaborators could independently develop, or develop with third parties, products that compete directly or indirectly with our
approved drug or drug candidates if they believe that competitive products are more likely to be successfully developed or can be
commercialized under terms that are more economically attractive than ours;

• license and/or collaboration arrangements may subject us to exclusivity provisions which could restrict our ability to compete in certain
territories, including those licensed to the licensee and/or collaborator;

• a licensee and/or collaborator with marketing and distribution rights to multiple products may not commit sufficient resources to the marketing
and distribution of our product relative to other products;

• licensees and/or collaborators may not properly obtain, maintain, defend, or enforce our intellectual property rights or may use our proprietary
information and intellectual property in such a way as to invite litigation or other intellectual property related proceedings that could jeopardize
or invalidate our proprietary information and intellectual property or expose us to potential litigation or other intellectual property related
proceedings;

• disputes may arise between the licensees and/or collaborators and us that result in the delay or termination of the research, development, or
commercialization of our approved drug or drug candidates or that result in costly litigation or arbitration that diverts management attention and
resources;

• licenses and/or collaborations may be terminated and, if terminated, may result in a need for additional capital to pursue further development or
commercialization of our approved drug or drug candidates;

• license or collaboration agreements may not lead to development or commercialization of our approved drug or drug candidates in the most
efficient manner, or at all; and

• if a licensee and/or collaborator of ours were to be involved in a business combination, the continued pursuit and emphasis on our product
development or commercialization program could be delayed, diminished, or terminated.

If our license arrangement with Zai, or any future license or collaboration we may enter into, if any, is not successful, our business, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects, and development and commercialization efforts may be adversely affected. Any termination or expiration of our
license agreement with Zai, or any future license or collaboration we may enter into, if any, could adversely affect us financially or harm our business
reputation, development, and commercialization efforts.

If we are not able to establish licenses and/or collaborations, or distribution arrangements with distributors, we may have to alter our development and
commercialization plans.

Our drug development programs and the commercialization of QINLOCK and any drug candidates for which we obtain marketing approval will
require substantial additional cash to fund expenses. In the past, we have been party to a collaboration agreement, which was concluded before completion
because our collaboration partner elected not to pursue the development of the drug candidate beyond Phase 1 clinical trials. We have entered into a license
transaction for development and commercialization of QINLOCK in Greater China. We may in the future decide to enter into additional licenses for
QINLOCK or license to or collaborate with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies for the development and potential commercialization of our drug
candidates, including DCC-3116. We currently have, and may in the future choose to enter into distribution
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arrangements with local distributors in jurisdictions where we gain marketing authorization but do not wish to invest in our own local sales and commercial
support infrastructure.

We face significant competition in seeking appropriate licensees and/or collaborators or distributors. Our ability to reach a definitive agreement for a
license, collaboration, or distribution agreement will depend, among other things, upon our assessment of the licensee/collaborator/distributor's resources
and expertise, the terms and conditions of the proposed transaction, and the proposed licensee/collaborator/distributor's evaluation of a number of factors.
Those factors may include the following:

• the design or results of clinical trials;

• the likelihood of approval by the FDA or similar regulatory authorities outside of the U.S.;

• the potential market for the subject drug or drug candidate;

• the costs and complexities of manufacturing and delivering such drug or drug candidate to patients;

• the potential of competing products;

• the ability of our intellectual property portfolio to exclude others from marketing competing products that could read on our rights, including,
without limitation, generic products;

• the existence of uncertainty with respect to our ownership of technology or other rights, which can exist if there is a challenge to such ownership
without regard to the merits of the challenge; and

• industry and market conditions generally, including due to the impact of global economic instability.

The licensee/collaborator/distributor may also consider alternative drug candidates or technologies for similar indications that may be available to
collaborate on and whether such a collaboration could be more attractive than the one with us for our drug or drug candidate. We may also be restricted
under any license agreements, including, without limitation, our license agreement with Zai, from entering into agreements on certain terms or at all with
potential licensees, collaborators, or distributors. Licenses or collaborations are complex and time-consuming to negotiate and document. In addition, there
have been a significant number of recent business combinations among large pharmaceutical companies that have resulted in a reduced number of potential
future licensees/collaborators and changes to the strategies of the combined company.

We may not be able to negotiate licenses, collaborations, or distribution arrangements on a timely basis, on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are
unable to do so, we may have to curtail the development of such drug candidate, reduce, or delay one or more of our other development programs, delay
the commercialization of such drug or drug candidate, if approved, or reduce the scope of any sales or marketing activities for such drug or drug candidate,
or increase our expenditures and undertake development, manufacturing, or commercialization activities at our own expense. If we elect to increase our
expenditures to fund development, manufacturing, or commercialization activities on our own, we may need to obtain additional capital, which may not be
available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we do not have sufficient funds, we may not be able to further develop our drug candidates or bring them to
market and generate product revenue.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

We may not be able to enforce our intellectual property rights throughout the world.

Filing, prosecuting, and defending patents with respect to our drug and drug candidates in all countries throughout the world would be prohibitively
expensive, and the laws of foreign countries may not protect our rights to the same extent as the laws of the U.S. The requirements for patentability may
differ in certain countries, particularly in developing countries. In addition, our intellectual property license agreements may not always include worldwide
rights. Consequently, competitors and other third parties may use our technologies in jurisdictions where we have not obtained patent protection to develop
their own products and, further, may export otherwise infringing products to territories where we may obtain patent protection, but where patent
enforcement is not as strong as that in the U.S. These products may compete with our products in jurisdictions where we do not have any issued or licensed
patents or where any future patent claims or other intellectual property rights may not be effective or sufficient to prevent them from competing with us,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.

Moreover, our ability to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights may be adversely affected by unforeseen changes in foreign intellectual
property laws. Additionally, laws of some countries outside of the U.S. and Europe do not afford intellectual property protection to the same extent as the
laws of the U.S. and Europe. Many companies have encountered significant problems in protecting and defending intellectual property rights in certain
foreign jurisdictions. The legal systems of
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some countries, including India, China, and Russia do not favor the enforcement of patents and other intellectual property rights, particularly those relating
to biotechnology products and/or intellectual property rights owned by U.S. entities, which could make it difficult for us to stop the infringement,
misappropriation, or other violation of our patents or other intellectual property rights. For example, many foreign countries have compulsory licensing
laws under which a patent owner must grant licenses to third parties. Consequently, we may not be able to prevent third parties from practicing our
inventions in certain countries outside the U.S. and Europe. In addition, many countries limit the enforceability of patents against government agencies or
government contractors. In these countries, the patent owner may have limited remedies, which could materially diminish the value of such patent. If we
are forced to grant a license to third parties with respect to any patents relevant to our business, our competitive position may be impaired, and our
business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects may be adversely affected.

Proceedings to enforce our patent rights in foreign jurisdictions, whether or not successful, could result in substantial costs and divert our efforts and
resources from other aspects of our business, could put our patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrowly, could put our patent applications at
risk of not issuing, and could provoke third parties to assert claims against us. We may not prevail in any lawsuits that we initiate, and the damages or other
remedies awarded, if any, may not be commercially meaningful. Furthermore, while we intend to protect our intellectual property rights in major markets
for our products, we cannot ensure that we will be able to initiate or maintain similar efforts in all jurisdictions in which we may wish to market our
products. Accordingly, our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights in such countries may be inadequate.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality of our trade secrets, the value of our technology could be materially adversely affected and our business
would be harmed.

While we have obtained composition of matter patents with respect to our drug and certain of our drug candidates, we also rely on proprietary know-
how and trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to protect proprietary know-how or trade secrets that are not patentable or that we elect not
to patent. For example, we have elected to not patent our proprietary switch-control kinase inhibitor platform and therefore rely on protecting the
proprietary aspects of our platform as a trade secret. We seek to protect our trade secrets and proprietary know-how in part, by entering into non-disclosure
and confidentiality agreements with parties who have access to them, such as our employees, consultants, independent contractors, advisors, contract
manufacturers, suppliers, collaborators, and other third parties. We also enter into confidentiality and invention or patent assignment agreements with
employees and certain consultants. However, we cannot guarantee that we have entered into such agreements with each party that may have or have had
access to our trade secrets or proprietary know-how. Additionally, our confidentiality agreements and other contractual protections may not be adequate to
protect our intellectual property from unauthorized disclosure, third-party infringement, or misappropriation. Any party with whom we have executed such
an agreement may breach that agreement and disclose our proprietary information, including our trade secrets, and we may not be able to obtain adequate
remedies for such breaches. Enforcing a claim that a party illegally disclosed or misappropriated a trade secret is difficult, expensive, and time-consuming,
and the outcome is unpredictable. In addition, if any of our trade secrets were to be lawfully obtained or independently developed by a competitor, we
would have no right to prevent such third party, or those to whom they communicate such technology or information, from using that technology or
information to compete with us. If any of our trade secrets, including with respect to our proprietary switch-control kinase inhibitor platform, were to be
disclosed to or independently developed by a competitor or other third party, our business, financial condition, results of operations, and our business
prospects and competitive position could be materially harmed.

If we fail to comply with our obligations under any license, collaboration, or other agreement, we may be required to pay damages and could lose
intellectual property rights that are necessary for developing and protecting our drug or drug candidates.

We rely, in part, on license, collaboration, and other agreements. We may need to obtain additional licenses from others to advance our research or
allow commercialization of our drug and drug candidates and it is possible that we may be unable to obtain additional licenses at a reasonable cost or on
reasonable terms, if at all. The licensing or acquisition of third-party intellectual property rights is a competitive area, and several more established
companies may pursue strategies to license or acquire third-party intellectual property rights that we may consider attractive. These established companies
may have a competitive advantage over us due to their size, capital resources, and greater clinical development and commercialization capabilities. In
addition, companies that perceive us to be a competitor may be unwilling to assign or license rights to use. We also may be unable to license or acquire
third party intellectual property rights on terms that would allow us to make an appropriate return on our investment.

In addition, our present and future licenses, collaborations, and other intellectual property related agreements, are likely to impose various
development, commercialization, funding, milestone, royalty, diligence, sublicensing, insurance, patent prosecution and enforcement, or other obligations
on us. If we breach any of these obligations, or use the intellectual property
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licensed to us in an unauthorized manner, we may be required to pay damages and our licensors may have the right to terminate the license. If our license
or other intellectual property related agreements are terminated, we may be required to cease developing and commercializing drugs or drug candidates that
are covered by the licensed intellectual property. Disputes may arise regarding intellectual property subject to a licensing, collaboration, or other agreement,
including:

• the scope of rights granted under the agreement and other interpretation related issues;

• the extent to which our technology and processes infringe on intellectual property of the licensor that is not subject to the agreement;

• the sublicensing of patent and other rights under our collaborative development relationships;

• our diligence obligations under the agreement and what activities satisfy those diligence obligations;

• the inventorship and ownership of inventions and know-how resulting from the joint creation or use of intellectual property by our licensors and
us and our collaborators; and

• the priority of invention of patented technology.

In addition, the agreements under which we license intellectual property or technology to or from third parties are complex, and certain provisions in
such agreements may be susceptible to multiple interpretations. The resolution of any contract interpretation disagreement that may arise could narrow
what we believe to be the scope of our rights to the relevant intellectual property or technology, or increase what we believe to be our financial or other
obligations under the relevant agreement, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
and prospects. Moreover, if disputes over intellectual property that we have licensed prevent or impair our ability to maintain our current licensing
arrangements on commercially acceptable terms, we may be unable to successfully develop and commercialize the affected drug or drug candidates.

In some circumstances, we may not have the right to control the preparation, filing, and prosecution of patent applications, or to maintain the patents,
covering the technology that we license from third parties. Therefore, we cannot be certain that these patents and applications will be prosecuted,
maintained, and enforced in a manner consistent with the best interests of our business. If our licensors fail to obtain or maintain such intellectual property,
or lose rights to such intellectual property, the rights we have licensed and our exclusivity may be reduced or eliminated and our right to develop and
commercialize any of our products that are subject to such licensed rights could be adversely affected.

Moreover, our rights to our in-licensed patents and patent applications may depend, in part, on inter-institutional or other operating agreements
between the joint owners of such in-licensed patents and patent applications. If one or more of such joint owners breaches such inter-institutional or
operating agreements, our rights to such in-licensed patents and patent applications may be adversely affected. In addition, while we cannot currently
determine the amount of the royalty obligations we would be required to pay on sales of future products, if any, the amounts may be significant. The
amount of our future royalty obligations will depend on the technology and intellectual property we use in products that we successfully develop and
commercialize, if any. Therefore, even if we successfully develop and commercialize products, we may be unable to achieve or maintain profitability. Any
of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our competitive position, business, financial conditions, results of operations, and prospects.

If we are unable to successfully obtain rights to required third party intellectual property rights or maintain the existing intellectual property rights
we have, we may have to abandon commercialization of the relevant drug, or development of the relevant program or drug candidate, and our business,
financial condition, results of operations, and prospects could suffer.

Intellectual property rights do not necessarily address all potential threats.

The degree of future protection afforded by our intellectual property rights is uncertain because intellectual property rights have limitations and may
not adequately protect our business or permit us to maintain our competitive advantage. For example:

• others may be able to make products similar to our approved drug or any of our drug candidates we may develop or utilize similarly related
technologies that are not covered by the claims of the patents that we license or may own in the future;

• we, or our license partners or current or future collaborators, might not have been the first to make the inventions covered by the issued patent or
pending patent application that we license or may own in the future;

• we, or our license partners or current or future collaborators, might not have been the first to file patent applications covering certain of our or
their inventions;
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• others may independently develop similar or alternative technologies or duplicate any of our technologies without infringing, misappropriating,
or otherwise violating any of our owned or licensed intellectual property rights;

• it is possible that our pending licensed patent applications or those that we may own in the future will not lead to issued patents;

• issued patents that we hold rights to may be held invalid or unenforceable, including as a result of legal challenges by our competitors or other
third parties;

• our competitors or other third parties might conduct research and development activities in countries where we do not have patent rights and
then use the information learned from such activities to develop competitive products for sale in our major commercial markets;

• we may not develop additional proprietary technologies that are patentable;

• the patents of others may harm our business; and

• we may choose not to file a patent in order to maintain certain trade secrets or know how, and a third party may subsequently file a patent
covering such intellectual property.

Should any of these events occur, they could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.

Risks Related to Patents

If we are unable to obtain and maintain sufficient patent protection for our approved drug or drug candidates, or if the scope of the patent protection is
not sufficiently broad, third parties, including our competitors, could develop and commercialize products similar or identical to ours, and our ability to
commercialize our approved drug or drug candidates successfully may be adversely affected.

Our success depends in large part on our ability to protect our proprietary technologies that we believe are important to our business, including
pursuing and maintaining patent protection intended to cover the composition of matter of our approved drug and drug candidates, for example,
QINLOCK, vimseltinib, and DCC-3116, their methods of use, related technologies, and other inventions that are important to our business. In addition to
patent protection, we also rely on trade secrets to protect aspects of our business that are not amenable to, or that we do not consider appropriate for, patent
protection, including our proprietary switch-control kinase inhibitor platform. If we do not adequately obtain, maintain, protect, or enforce our intellectual
property, third parties, including our competitors, may be able to erode or negate any competitive advantage we may have and market competition may
increase, which could harm our business, reduce our potential revenues, and adversely affect our ability to achieve profitability.

The patent application and approval process is expensive, time-consuming, and complex. We may not be able to file and prosecute all necessary or
desirable patent applications at a reasonable cost or in a timely manner. It is also possible that we fail to identify patentable aspects of our research and
development output before it is too late to obtain patent protection.

Furthermore, the patent position of biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies generally is highly uncertain. No consistent policy regarding the
breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology and pharmaceutical patents has emerged to date in the U.S. or in many foreign jurisdictions. The standards
applied by the USPTO and foreign patent offices in granting patents are not always applied uniformly or predictably. In addition, the determination of
patent rights with respect to pharmaceutical compounds commonly involves complex legal and factual questions, which has in recent years been the subject
of much litigation. As a result, the issuance, scope, validity, enforceability, and commercial value of our patent rights are highly uncertain. Thus, we cannot
offer any assurances about which, if any, patents will issue, the breadth of any such patents, whether any issued patents will be found invalid and
unenforceable or will be threatened by third parties or whether any issued patents will effectively prevent others from commercializing competing
technologies and drug candidates.

Our pending patent applications cannot be enforced against third parties practicing the technology claimed in such applications unless and until a
patent issues from such applications. Assuming the other requirements for patentability are met, currently, the first to file a patent application is generally
entitled to the patent. However, prior to March 16, 2013, in the U.S., the first to invent was entitled to the patent. Publications of discoveries in the
scientific literature often lag behind the actual discoveries, and patent applications in the U.S. and other jurisdictions are typically not published until
18 months after filing, or in some cases not at all. Since patent applications in the U.S. and most other countries are confidential for a period of time after
filing, and some remain so until issued, we cannot be certain that we were the first to file or invent (prior to March 16, 2013) any
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patent application related to our approved drug or drug candidates. In addition, we enter into non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements with parties
who have access to confidential or patentable aspects of our research and development output, such as our employees, collaborators, consultants, advisors,
and other third parties; however, any of these parties may breach the agreements and disclose such output before a patent application is filed, thereby
jeopardizing our ability to seek patent protection. Furthermore, if third parties have filed patent applications related to our approved drug, drug candidates,
or technology, an interference proceeding in the U.S. can be initiated by the USPTO or a third party to determine who was the first to invent any of the
subject matter covered by the patent claims of our applications. Therefore, we cannot be certain that we were the first to make the inventions claimed in our
patents or pending patent applications, or that we were the first to file for patent protection of such inventions.

Moreover, because the issuance of a patent is not conclusive as to its inventorship, scope, validity, or enforceability, our patents or pending patent
applications may be challenged in the courts or patent offices in the U.S. and abroad. There is no assurance that all of the potentially relevant prior art
relating to our patents and patent applications has been found, which could be used by a third party to challenge validity of our patents, to prevent a patent
from issuing from a pending patent application. For example, we may be subject to a third-party preissuance submission of prior art to the USPTO or
become involved in post-grant review procedures, oppositions, derivations, revocation, reexaminations, inter partes review, or interference proceedings, in
the U.S. or elsewhere, challenging our patent rights or the patent rights of others. An adverse determination in any such challenge may result in loss of
exclusivity or in our patent claims being narrowed, invalidated, or held unenforceable, in whole or in part, which could limit our ability to stop others from
using or commercializing similar or identical technology and products or limit the duration of the patent protection of our technology and products. Such
challenges also may result in substantial cost and require significant time from our scientists and management, even if the eventual outcome is favorable to
us. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.

In addition, given the amount of time required for the development, testing, and regulatory review of new drug candidates, our patents protecting
such drugs or drug candidates might expire before or shortly after such drugs or drug candidates are commercialized. As a result, our intellectual property
may not provide us with sufficient rights to exclude others from commercializing products similar or identical to ours, including generic versions of such
products. Moreover, some of our patents may in the future be co-owned with third parties. If we are unable to obtain an exclusive license to any such third-
party co-owners' interest in such patents or patent applications, such co-owners may be able to license their rights to other third parties, including our
competitors, and our competitors could market competing products and technology. In addition, we may need the cooperation of any such co-owners of our
patents in order to enforce such patents against third parties, and such cooperation may not be provided to us. Any of the foregoing could have a material
adverse effect on our competitive position, business, financial conditions, results of operations, and prospects.

Our pending and future patent applications may not result in patents being issued that protect our approved drug or drug candidates, in whole or in
part, or which effectively prevent others from commercializing competitive products. Changes in either the patent laws or interpretation of the patent laws
in the U.S. and other countries may diminish the value of our patents or narrow the scope of our patent protection. In addition, the laws of foreign countries
may not protect our rights to the same extent or in the same manner as the laws of the U.S. For example, European patent law restricts the patentability of
methods of treatment of the human body more than U.S. law does.

Even if our patent applications issue as patents, they may not issue in a form that will provide us with any meaningful protection, prevent
competitors from competing with us or otherwise provide us with any competitive advantage. Moreover, the coverage claimed in a patent application can
be significantly reduced before the patent is issued and its scope can be reinterpreted after issuance. Our competitors and other third parties may be able to
circumvent our patents by developing similar or alternative technologies or products in a non-infringing manner. Our competitors and other third parties
may also seek approval to market their own products similar to or otherwise competitive with our products. Alternatively, our competitors or other third
parties may seek to market generic or biosimilar versions of any approved products and in so doing, claim that patents owned or licensed by us are invalid,
unenforceable, or not infringed. In these circumstances, we may need to defend or assert our patents, or both, including by filing lawsuits alleging patent
infringement. In any of these types of proceedings, a court or other agency with jurisdiction may find our patents invalid or unenforceable, or that our
competitors are competing in a non-infringing manner. Thus, even if we have valid and enforceable patents, these patents still may not provide protection
against competing products or processes sufficient to achieve our business objectives.

Furthermore, our patents may be subject to a reservation of rights by one or more third parties. For example, if any of our technologies are developed
in the future with government funding, the government may obtain certain rights in any resulting patents, including a non-exclusive license authorizing the
government to use the invention or to have others use the invention on its behalf. If the U.S. government then decides to exercise these rights, it is not
required to engage us as its contractor in
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connection with doing so. These rights may also permit the government to disclose our confidential information to third parties and to exercise march-in
rights to use or allow third parties to use our licensed technology. The government may also exercise its march-in rights if it determines that action is
necessary because we failed to achieve practical application of the government-funded technology, because action is necessary to alleviate health or safety
needs, to meet requirements of federal regulations, or to give preference to U.S. industry. In addition, our rights in such government-funded inventions may
be subject to certain requirements to manufacture products embodying such inventions in the U.S. Any exercise by the government of aforementioned
proprietary rights could harm our competitive position, business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.

We will incur significant ongoing expenses in maintaining our patent portfolio. Should we lack the funds to maintain our patent portfolio or to
enforce our rights against infringers, we could be adversely impacted. Moreover, the failure of any patents that may issue to us or our licensors to
adequately protect our drug, drug candidates, or technology could have an adverse impact on our business.

The term of our patents may be inadequate to protect our competitive position on our products.

Given the amount of time required for the development, testing, and regulatory review of new drug candidates, patents protecting such candidates
might expire before or shortly after such candidates are commercialized. Depending upon the timing, duration, and other factors relating to any FDA
marketing approval we receive for our approved drug or any of our drug candidates, one or more of our U.S. patents may be eligible for limited patent term
extension under the Drug Price Competition and Patent Term Restoration Act of 1984, commonly referred to as the Hatch-Waxman Act. A patent term
extension application was granted in the U.S. on a patent covering QINLOCK and we expect to seek extensions of patent terms in the U.S. for other drug
candidates and, if available, in other countries where we are prosecuting patents. In the U.S., the Hatch-Waxman Act permits a patent term extension of up
to five years beyond the normal expiration of the patent as compensation for patent term lost during the regulatory review process. A patent term extension
cannot extend the remaining term of a patent beyond a total of 14 years from the date of product approval, only one patent may be extended and only those
claims covering the approved drug, a method for using it, or a method for manufacturing it may be extended, and the application for the extension must be
submitted prior to the expiration of the patent. However, the applicable authorities, including the FDA and the USPTO in the U.S., and any equivalent
regulatory authority in other countries, may not agree with our assessment of whether such extensions are available for our patents, may refuse to grant
extensions to our patents, or may grant more limited extensions than we request. We may not be granted an extension because of, for example, failing to
exercise due diligence during the testing phase or regulatory review process, failing to apply within applicable deadlines, failing to apply prior to expiration
of relevant patents, or otherwise failing to satisfy applicable requirements. If we are unable to obtain patent term extension or the term of any such
extension is less than we request, our competitors and other third parties may be able to obtain approval of competing products following our patent
expiration and take advantage of our investment in development and clinical trials by referencing our clinical and preclinical data and launch their product
earlier than might otherwise be the case. Any of the foregoing would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, and prospects.

Obtaining and maintaining our patent protection depends on compliance with various procedural, documentary, fee payment, and other requirements
imposed by governmental patent offices, and our patent protection could be reduced or eliminated for non-compliance with these requirements.

Periodic maintenance fees on any issued patent are due to be paid to the USPTO and patent offices in foreign countries in several stages over the
lifetime of the patent. The USPTO and patent offices in foreign countries require compliance with a number of procedural, documentary, fee payment, and
other requirements during the patent application process. In certain circumstances, we rely on our licensing partners to pay these fees due to U.S. and non-
U.S. patent agencies and to comply with these other requirements with respect to our licensed patents and patent applications. While an inadvertent lapse
can be cured by payment of a late fee or by other means in accordance with the applicable rules, there are situations in which non-compliance can result in
abandonment or lapse of the patent or patent application, resulting in partial or complete loss of a patent or patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. Non-
compliance events that could result in abandonment or lapse of a patent or patent application include, but are not limited to, failure to file non-provisional
applications claiming priority to our provisional applications by the statutory deadlines, failure to timely file national and regional stage patent applications
based on an international patent application, failure to respond to official actions within prescribed time limits, non-payment of fees, and failure to properly
legalize and submit formal documents. In such an event, our competitors and other third parties might be able to enter the market with similar or identical
products or technology, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.
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Changes to the patent law in the U.S. and other jurisdictions could diminish the value of patents in general, thereby impairing our ability to protect our
products.

As is the case with other biopharmaceutical companies, our success is heavily dependent on intellectual property, particularly patents. Obtaining and
enforcing patents in the biopharmaceutical industry involves both technological and legal complexity and is therefore costly, time consuming, and
inherently uncertain. Changes in either the patent laws or interpretation of the patent laws in the U.S. could increase the uncertainties and costs surrounding
the prosecution of patent applications and the enforcement or defense of issued patents. Recent patent reform legislation in the U.S. and other countries,
including the Leahy-Smith America Invents Act (the Leahy-Smith Act), signed into law in September 2011, could increase those uncertainties and costs.
The Leahy-Smith Act includes a number of significant changes to U.S. patent law. These include provisions that affect the way patent applications are
prosecuted, redefine prior art, and provide more efficient and cost-effective avenues for competitors to challenge the validity of patents. For example, the
Leahy-Smith Act allows third-party submission of prior art to the USPTO during patent prosecution and additional procedures to attack the validity of a
patent by USPTO administered post-grant proceedings, including post-grant review, inter partes review, and derivation proceedings. In addition, the Leahy-
Smith Act has transformed the U.S. patent system from a "first-to-invent" system to a "first-to-file" system in which, assuming that other requirements for
patentability are met, the first inventor to file a patent application will be entitled to the patent on an invention regardless of whether a third party was the
first to invent the claimed invention. The first-to-file provisions, however, only became effective on March 16, 2013. Accordingly, it is not yet clear what, if
any, impact the Leahy-Smith Act will have on the operation of our business. However, the Leahy-Smith Act and its implementation could make it more
difficult to obtain patent protection for our inventions and increase the uncertainties and costs surrounding the prosecution of our or our collaboration
partners' patent applications and the enforcement or defense of our or our collaboration partners' issued patents, all of which could harm our business,
results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.

The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled on several patent cases in recent years, either narrowing the scope of patent protection available in certain
circumstances or weakening the rights of patent owners in certain situations. Additionally, there have been recent proposals for additional changes to the
patent laws of the U.S. and other countries that, if adopted, could impact our ability to enforce our proprietary technology. Depending on future actions by
the United States Congress, the United States courts, the USPTO, and the relevant law-making bodies in other countries, the laws and regulations
governing patents could change in unpredictable ways that would weaken our ability to obtain new patents or to enforce our existing patents and patents
that we might obtain in the future.

Our issued European patents could be subject to the jurisdiction of the recently formed Unified Patent Court (UPC).

Our European patents and patent applications could be challenged in the recently created UPC for the EU. We decided to remove, i.e., opt out, our
European patents and European patent applications from the jurisdiction of the UPC. However, if certain formalities and requirements were not met, our
European patents and patent applications could be challenged for non-compliance and brought under the jurisdiction of the UPC. We cannot be certain that
our European patents and patent applications will avoid falling under the jurisdiction of the UPC, even after we decided to opt out of the UPC. Under the
UPC, a granted European patent would be valid and enforceable in numerous European countries. Although such patent rights would apply to numerous
European countries, a successful challenge to a European patent under the UPC could result in loss of patent protection in numerous European countries.
Accordingly, a single proceeding under the UPC addressing the validity and infringement of the European patent could result in loss of patent protection in
numerous European countries rather than in each validated country separately as such patents always have been adjudicated. Such a loss of patent
protection could have a material adverse impact on our business and our ability to commercialize or license our technology and product candidates.

Our intellectual property licenses from third parties could limit our ability to control certain decisions relating to our licensed European patents and
applications.

Under our current license agreements, we may not have the final or sole decision on whether we are able to opt out certain of our in-licensed
European patents and patent applications from the recently created UPC for the European Union. While our licensors have decided to opt out of the UPC,
we cannot guarantee that our in-licensed European patents and patent applications will be challenged for non-compliance during the opt-out procedure and
if successful, brought under the jurisdiction of the UPC, nor that our licensors will decide to opt back into the UPC at a later time. Thus, we cannot be
certain that our in-licensed European patents and patent applications will not fall under the jurisdiction of the UPC. Under the UPC, a single European
patent would be valid and enforceable in numerous European countries. A challenge to the validity of a European patent under the UPC, if successful,
could result in a loss of patent protection in numerous European countries which could have a material adverse impact on our business and our ability to
commercialize or license our technology and product candidates.
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Item 2.    Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3.    Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4.    Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Item 5.    Other Information.

No Rule 10b5-1 plans or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangements were adopted, modified, or terminated by officers or directors of the Company, nor were
there any material changes to the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to the Company's board of directors, during the quarter
ended September 30, 2023.

Item 6.    Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number Description

2.1 Reorganization Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Registrant, Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, LLC and the other
parties named therein, dated October 2, 2017. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2017) (1).

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 5, 2017).

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2020).

10.1* Transition Agreement between Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, LLC and Daniel L. Flynn, Ph.D., dated August 1, 2023.
10.2* Consulting Agreement between Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, LLC and Daniel L. Flynn, Ph.D., dated August 1, 2023
31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1† Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2† Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags
are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document.
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File – the cover page interactive data file does not appear in the Interactive Data File because

XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

______________
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*    Filed herewith.
†    This certification will not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or

otherwise subject to the liability of that section. Such certification will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent specifically incorporated by reference into such filing.

(1)     Schedules and exhibits have been omitted from this filing pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The Registrant agrees to furnish
supplementally a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon its request; provided, however, that the Registrant may request
confidential treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Exchange Act for any schedule or exhibit so furnished.

84



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DECIPHERA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
Date: October 30, 2023 By: /s/ Thomas P. Kelly

Thomas P. Kelly
Chief Financial Officer


(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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August 1, 2023

BY DOCUSIGN

Daniel L. Flynn, Ph.D.

Re: Transition Agreement

Dear Dan:

I am writing to confirm arrangements with you concerning your retirement from employment with Deciphera Pharmaceuticals,
LLC (the “Company”) and your anticipated continued engagement with the Company as a consultant after your retirement. The
Company is deeply indebted to you for founding the Company and for your leadership and vision throughout its existence. We
are grateful that there will be an opportunity for continued engagement with you after you retire as an employee.

This letter is the agreement between you and the Company concerning your transition to your voluntary retirement (the
“Transition Agreement”). Attached as Exhibit A is the form of the Consulting Agreement between you and the Company (the
“Consulting Agreement” and, together with the “Transition Agreement”). Your rights and obligations under each of the
Agreements are contingent on your execution of both Agreements.

You are currently employed by the Company pursuant to an Employment Agreement dated October 13, 2017 as amended by
Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 10, 2020 (the “Employment Agreement”). The Employment Agreement remains in effect,
subject to the modifications below.

In consideration of the exchange of promises below, you and the Company agree as follows:

1. Transition to Senior Advisor. For the time being, you shall continue to serve as the Executive Vice President,
Chief Scientific Officer of the Company pursuant to Section 1(b) of the Employment Agreement and subject to all other terms of
the Employment Agreement as currently in effect. You will also continue for the time being to serve as an officer of Deciphera
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Parent”), with the same title. Effective as of the date of commencement of employment of a new
Chief Scientific Officer of the Company (the “Transition Date”), you shall transition from Chief Scientific Officer to Senior
Advisor of the Company and shall resign from your officer position as Executive Vice President, Chief Scientific Officer of the
Parent. Accordingly, effective as of the Transition Date, Section 1(b) of the Employment Agreement shall be amended by
replacing the first sentence of Section 1(b) with the following:

During the Term, the Executive shall serve as a Senior Advisor. As Senior Advisor, the Executive shall report to
the Company’s Chief Scientific Officer (“CSO”) and shall have such duties as may be prescribed by the CSO,
which are
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expected to include transitional services as requested by the CSO or the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (the
“CEO”), and may include one or more of the following duties: (i) To the extent requested by the Chair of Parent’s
Board of Directors or the Chair Parent’s Board of Directors’ Science & Technology Committee, provide scientific
consulting advice to such bodies; (ii) to the extent requested by the CSO, provide scientific consulting advice
and/or consulting advice with respect to the Company’s research organization; (iii) to the extent requested by the
Company’s General Counsel (or designee), provide consulting services in respect of patent matters, including,
without limitation, as a witness or an expert; and (iv) to the extent requested by the CSO or the CEO, provide any
additional services that are in the nature of consulting services.

For the avoidance of doubt, neither the transition to Senior Advisor nor the reduction in duties, authority or responsibilities
related to such transition shall be a “Good Reason Condition” for purposes of the Employment Agreement. Also for the
avoidance of doubt, your transition to Senior Advisor shall not affect your salary, benefit or equity rights pursuant to the
Employment Agreement and previously granted equity awards.

2. Retirement. This confirms that you have voluntarily given a “Notice of Termination” for purposes of the Employment
Agreement and that, notwithstanding the thirty (30) day notice period specified in Section 3(g)(v) of the Employment Agreement,
your “Date of Termination” for purposes of the Employment Agreement shall be December 31, 2023. Such agreed Date of
Termination shall not affect either your right or the Company’s right to terminate your employment on an earlier date pursuant to
the Employment Agreement.

3. Bonus. Subject to your continued employment to December 31, 2023 and notwithstanding the eligibility requirement
in Section 2(b) of the Employment Agreement of continued employment on an incentive compensation payment date, the
Company shall pay you an incentive compensation amount with respect to 2023 equal to 100% of your Target Annual Cash
Incentive Compensation, as defined in Section 2(b) of the Employment Agreement, on the same date in 2024 as incentive
compensation payments are generally made to eligible employees. Such payment to you shall be in the amount of $225,886.50,
less applicable tax deductions and withholdings.


4. Consulting Agreement. You shall execute a Consulting Agreement in the form of Exhibit A contemporaneous with
your execution of this Transition Agreement. The effectiveness of the Consulting Agreement shall be subject to your continued
employment with the Company to December 31, 2023. Your immediate commencement of your service to the Company as a
Consultant pursuant to the Consulting Agreement following the termination of your employment on December 31, 2023 shall
result in the continuation of your service relationship with the Company pursuant to the 2017 Stock Option and Incentive Plan of
the Parent and/or the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (collectively, the “Plans”) and therefore equity rights previously granted to you
pursuant to the Plans shall continue to vest during the period where you serve as a Consultant pursuant to the Consulting
Agreement.


5. Entire Agreement. By signing below, you acknowledge that this Transition Agreement, the Employment Agreement,
the Consulting Agreement, the Proprietary Information
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Agreement between you and the Company dated October 30, 2003 and all grants of equity rights to you pursuant to either of the
Plans constitute all agreements between you and either the Company or the Parent and supersede all other agreements between
you and either the Company or the Parent.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Thank you once again for all you have done for Deciphera. I look forward to the next chapter for you and Deciphera. To confirm
these arrangements, please sign and date this Transition Agreement in the space below.

Sincerely,

DECIPHERA PHARMACEUTICALS, LLC

By: /s/ _ Steven Hoerter _____________ August 1, 2023
Steven Hoerter Date
President and Chief Executive Officer

Accepted and Agreed:

/s/ Daniel L. Flynn, Ph.D.________________ August 1, 2023
Daniel L. Flynn, Ph.D. Date

Attachment (Exhibit A)
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Exhibit A

CONSULTING AGREEMENT

THIS CONSULTING AGREEMENT (together with the attached Business Terms Exhibit, the “Agreement”), is made as of January 1,
2024 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with a principal
business address at 200 Smith Street, Waltham, MA 02451 (“Deciphera”), and Daniel L. Flynn (“Consultant”). Deciphera desires to have
the benefit of Consultant’s knowledge and experience, and Consultant desires to provide services to Deciphera, all as provided in this
Agreement. Deciphera and Consultant are referred to herein collectively as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party”.


1. Condition to Effectiveness. The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent on the continuation of Consultant’s employment with
Deciphera pursuant to the October 13, 2017 Employment Agreement between Consultant and Deciphera as amended by Amendment
No. 1 dated as of June 10, 2020 (the “Employment Agreement”) to and including December 31, 2023 and the voluntary termination
of Consultant’s employment with the Company on that date. If such condition is not satisfied, this Agreement shall not take effect.


2. Consulting Services. Deciphera retains Consultant, and Consultant agrees to provide, consulting and advisory services to Deciphera
as Deciphera may from time to time reasonably request and as specified in the attached Business Terms Exhibit (the “Consulting
Services”). Any changes to the Consulting Services (and any related compensation adjustments) must be agreed to in writing
between Consultant and Deciphera prior to implementation of the changes. 


3. Compensation. As full consideration for Consulting Services provided under this Agreement, Deciphera or its designee agree to pay
Consultant and reimburse expenses as described in the Business Terms Exhibit (the “Compensation”). For the avoidance of doubt,
Consultant shall not be entitled to new equity grants; provided that the Parties intend that the transition from Consultant’s status as an
employee pursuant to the Employment Agreement to his status as Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall not affect the
continuation of the Parties’ service relationship for purposes of Consultant’s previously granted equity rights.


4. Expenses. Except for expenses for travel, all expenses relating to the Consulting Services are to be borne by Consultant in exchange
for the Compensation and will not be reimbursed by Deciphera unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Deciphera in advance. If
Deciphera agrees to reimburse Consultant for any reasonable, necessary, and prior-approved out-of-pocket expenditures, that are
incurred directly in connection with the Consulting Services and are in accordance with Deciphera’s travel and expense policy for
non-employee travel, the actual costs will be passed through to Deciphera with no markup.


5. Performance. Consultant agrees to provide the Consulting Services to Deciphera in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations and the highest professional standards. Consultant represents and covenants that Consultant has not been, and is not under
consideration to be (a) debarred from providing services pursuant to Section 306 of the United States Federal Food Drug and
Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. § 335a; (b) excluded, debarred or suspended from, or otherwise ineligible to participate in, any federal or
state health care program or federal procurement or non-procurement programs (as that term is defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(f));
(c) disqualified by any government or regulatory agencies from performing specific services, and is not subject to a pending
disqualification proceeding; or (d) convicted of a criminal offense related to the provision of health care items or services, or under
investigation or subject to any such action that
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is pending.
6. Compliance with Obligations to Third Parties. Consultant represents and warrants to Deciphera that the terms of this Agreement

and Consultant’s performance of Consulting Services do not and will not conflict with any of Consultant’s obligations to any third
parties. Consultant agrees not to use any trade secrets or other confidential information of any other person, firm, corporation,
institution or other third party in connection with any of the Consulting Services. Consultant agrees not to make any use of any funds,
space, personnel, facilities, equipment or other resources of a third party in performing the Consulting Services, nor take any other
action that would result in a third party asserting ownership of, or other rights in, any Work Product (defined in Section 6), unless
agreed upon in writing in advance by Deciphera.


7. Work Product. Consultant will promptly and fully disclose in confidence to Deciphera and its affiliates all inventions, discoveries,
improvements, ideas, concepts, designs, processes, formulations, products, computer programs, works of authorship, databases, mask
works, processes, methodologies, trade secrets, know-how, information, data, documentation, reports, research, creations, copyrights,
derivative works and copyrightable works, and other products arising from or made in the performance of (solely or jointly with
others) the Consulting Services (whether or not patentable or subject to copyright or subject to trade secret protection) (collectively,
the “Work Product”). Consultant will assign and does hereby assign to Deciphera and its affiliates all rights, in the United States
and throughout the world, whether existing under statute or at common law or equity, now or hereafter in force or recognized to
Work Product. Consultant will keep and maintain adequate and current written records of all Work Product, and such records will be
available to and remain the sole property of Deciphera at all times. For purposes of the copyright laws of the United States, Work
Product shall be considered specifically ordered for Deciphera and its affiliates, and constitute “works made for hire” under the
United States Copyright Laws (17 U.S.C. § 101 et seq., and any amendments) or similar law of any other jurisdiction, except to the
extent such Work Product cannot by law be “works made for hire.” If for any reason Work Product cannot by law be “works made
for hire,” Consultant will assign and does hereby assign all right, title, and interest in the Work Product to Deciphera and its affiliates
in perpetuity. Consultant represents and covenants that Consultant has and will have the right to transfer and assign to Deciphera
ownership of all Work Product. Consultant will execute all documents, and take any and all actions needed, all without further
consideration, in order to confirm Deciphera’s rights as outlined above. In the event that Consultant should fail or refuse to execute
such documents within a reasonable time, Consultant appoints Deciphera as attorney to execute and deliver any such documents on
Consultant’s behalf.


8. Confidentiality.

8.1 “Confidential Information” means (a) any and all non-public scientific, technical, business, regulatory, intellectual property or
financial information or data or trade secrets in whatever form (written, oral or visual) that is furnished or made available to
Consultant by or on behalf of Deciphera, (b) all information contained in or comprised of Deciphera Materials (defined in
Section 9); and (c) all Work Product. Confidential Information is, and will remain, the sole property of Deciphera. 

8.2 Obligations. During and at all times following the Term (as defined in Section 12), Consultant agrees to (a) hold in confidence all
Confidential Information, and not disclose Confidential Information without the prior written consent of Deciphera; (b) use
Confidential Information solely in connection with the Consulting Services; (c) treat Confidential Information with no less
than a reasonable degree of care; (d) reproduce Confidential Information solely to the extent necessary to provide the
Consulting
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Services, with all such reproductions being considered Confidential Information; and (e) notify Deciphera of any
unauthorized disclosure of Confidential Information promptly upon becoming aware of such disclosure. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the non-disclosure and non-use obligations imposed by this Agreement with respect to trade secrets included in
the Confidential Information will continue for as long as Deciphera continues to treat such Confidential Information as a
trade secret. If Consultant is required by a governmental authority or by order of a court of competent jurisdiction to disclose
any Confidential Information, Consultant will give Deciphera prompt written notice thereof and Consultant will take all
reasonable and lawful actions to avoid or minimize the degree of such disclosure. Consultant will cooperate reasonably with
Deciphera in any efforts to seek a protective order.


8.3 Exceptions. Consultant’s obligations of non-disclosure and non-use under this Agreement will not apply to any portion of
Confidential Information that Consultant can demonstrate, by competent proof:


(a) is generally known to the public at the time of disclosure or becomes generally known through no wrongful act on the
part of Consultant;


(b) becomes known to Consultant on a non-confidential basis through disclosure by sources other than Deciphera that have
no fiduciary, contractual or other legal duty to maintain the confidentiality of such Confidential Information and that
have the legal right to disclose such Confidential Information without restriction; or


(c) is independently developed by Consultant without reference to or reliance upon Confidential Information and unrelated to
the performance of Consulting Services.


8.4 Defend Trade Secrets Act. Deciphera provides notice to Consultant that pursuant to the United States Defend Trade Secrets Act
of 2016:
(a) An individual will not be held criminally or civilly liable under any United States federal or state trade secret law for the

disclosure of a trade secret that is made (i) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official or to an
attorney, and solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (ii) in a complaint or
other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal; and


(b) An individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose
the trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the
individual (i) files any document containing the trade secret under seal; and (ii) does not disclose the trade secret, except
pursuant to court order.


In addition, this Agreement does not prohibit Consultant from participating in or cooperating with any government
investigation or proceeding, nor does this Agreement restrict Consultant from disclosing Confidential Information to
government agencies in a reasonable manner when permitted by applicable state or federal “whistleblower” or other laws.

8.5 Personal Identifiable Information.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 8, (a) Consultant will not disclose to any third party nor use any protected
health information, personal identifiable data, or
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biological samples of subjects enrolled in clinical studies that are the subject of services, or any other information that could
be used to identify an individual (collectively, “Personal Data”) except as expressly required in the Agreement and as long as
such disclosure and use is in compliance with applicable law; and (b) such restrictions on the disclosure and use of Personal
Data will remain in place for as long as such restrictions are required under applicable law. Deciphera’s use and disclosure of
Personal Data will be in accordance with applicable Laws and regulations and the relevant consent documents.

9. Deciphera Materials. Confidential Information of Deciphera and its affiliates includes (a) materials, Work Product, intellectual property
rights, records , documents, data, records, materials, compounds, apparatus, equipment and other physical property furnished
scientific and medical data, investigator brochures, protocols and correspondence with or from institutional review boards and other
entities with oversight responsibilities for clinical studies that are the subject of Consulting Services, including ethics committees
and data safety monitoring committees; (b) development and marketing plans, regulatory and business strategies, financial
information, and forecasts of Deciphera; and (c) all information of third parties that Deciphera has an obligation to keep
confidential, whether or not, in each case, such materials or information are marked or identified as confidential, furnished or made
available by or on behalf of Deciphera and its affiliates to Consultant in connection with this Agreement (“Deciphera Materials”)
are and will remain the sole property of Deciphera and its affiliates. Consultant will use Deciphera Materials only as necessary to
perform the Consulting Services and will not transfer or make available to any third party the Deciphera Materials without the
express prior written consent of Deciphera and its affiliates. Consultant will return to Deciphera and its affiliates any and all
Deciphera Materials upon request.

10. Publication; Publicity. Consultant may not publish or refer to Work Product, in whole or in part, without the prior express written
consent of Deciphera and its affiliates. Consultant will not use the name, logo, trade name, service mark, or trademark, or any other
identifiers including but not limited to any simulation, abbreviation, or adaptation of same, or the name of Deciphera or any of its
affiliates for publicity, promotion, or other uses without Deciphera’s prior written consent.


11. Notice of Other Service. Consultant shall notify Deciphera in writing of any employment or engagement as an independent contractor
for any other party before undertaking any such commitment or otherwise commencing any such employment or engagement during
the Term, as defined below. Such notice shall set forth the identity of the employer or other contracting party, the nature of
Consultant’s services and the anticipated time commitment of Consultant. Consultant shall share any other information that
Deciphera may reasonably request regarding any such employment or engagement and otherwise confer with Deciphera regarding
any such anticipated employment or engagement; provided that Consultant shall not be obligated to violate any confidentiality
obligations to any other party. Nothing in this Section 11 or otherwise in this Agreement shall be construed to modify any of
Consultant’s obligations under any other surviving agreement between Consultant and either Deciphera or Deciphera
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., including without limitation Consultant’s obligations under Section 7 of the Employment Agreement, entitled
“Nondisclosure/Confidentiality.”

12. Expiration/Termination. The term of Deciphera’s engagement of Consultant pursuant to this Agreement (the “Engagement”) will
commence on the Effective Date and expire at the end of the period specified in the “Term” Section of Business Terms Exhibit,
unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Section 12 or extended by mutual written agreement of the parties (the
“Term”). Deciphera may terminate the Engagement at any time with or without cause upon not less than ten (10) days’ prior written
notice to Consultant. Consultant may terminate the Engagement at any time with or without cause upon not less than sixty (60)
days’
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prior written notice to Deciphera. Any expiration or other termination of the Term shall be without prejudice to any obligation of
either party that has accrued prior to the effective date of expiration or termination. Upon expiration or other termination of the
Term, neither Consultant nor Deciphera will have any further obligations under this Agreement, except that (a) Consultant will
terminate all Consulting Services in progress in an orderly manner as soon as practicable and in accordance with a schedule agreed
to by Deciphera, unless Deciphera specifies in the notice of termination that Consulting Services in progress should be completed;
(b) Consultant will deliver to Deciphera all Work Product made through expiration or other termination of the Term; (c) Deciphera
will pay Consultant any monies due and owing Consultant, up to the time of expiration or other termination of the Term, for
Consulting Services properly performed and all authorized expenses actually incurred; (d) Consultant will immediately return to
Deciphera all Deciphera Materials and other Confidential Information and copies thereof provided to Consultant under this
Agreement; and (e) the terms, conditions and obligations under Sections 7, 8, 9, 10 and 13.2 to 13.11 inclusive will survive
expiration or other termination of the Term.

13. Miscellaneous.

13.1 Independent Contractor. The parties understand and agree that Consultant is an independent contractor and not an agent or

employee of Deciphera. Consultant has no authority to obligate Deciphera by contract or otherwise. Consultant will not be
eligible for any employee benefits of Deciphera and expressly waives any rights to any employee benefits. Consultant will
bear sole responsibility for paying and reporting Consultant’s own applicable federal and state income taxes, social security
taxes, unemployment insurance, workers’ compensation, and health or disability insurance, retirement benefits, and other
welfare or pension benefits, if any, and indemnifies and holds Deciphera harmless from and against any liability with respect
to such taxes, benefits and other matters. Consultant further acknowledges and agrees to the following:


(a) Deciphera shall treat payments to Consultant as Internal Revenue Service Form 1099 income and shall not withhold any
employment taxes on Consultant’s behalf; 


(b) while Consultant will receive instruction on the objects and goals for which Consultant is responsible, Deciphera has no
right to control the manner in which Consultant performs services under this Agreement and Consultant is free to
perform such services in the manner Consultant deems fit; provided that such performance is consistent with
recognized standards for performing such services; 


(c) Consultant shall not use Deciphera’s trade names, trademarks, service names or service marks without the prior written
approval of the Company; and


(d) if, at any time, Consultant’s status with Deciphera as an independent contractor changes or Consultant is ever deemed to
be an employee of Deciphera for any period during the Term, each of the covenants set forth above and this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in their entirety until and unless replaced with a subsequent and
superseding agreement.


13.2 Use of Name. Consultant consents to the use by Deciphera of Consultant’s name on its website, in press releases, company
brochures, offering documents, presentations, reports or other documents in printed or electronic form, and any documents
filed with or submitted to any governmental or regulatory agency or any securities exchange or listing



Exhibit 10.1

entity; provided, that such materials or presentations accurately describe the nature of Consultant’s relationship with or
contribution to Deciphera.


13.3 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with regard to its subject matter and supersedes
all prior or contemporaneous written or oral representations, agreements and understandings between the parties relating to
that subject matter; provided that this Agreement shall not be construed to supersede any ongoing obligations under the
Employment Agreement (including without limitation Consultant’s continuing obligations under Section 7 of the
Employment Agreement, entitled “Nondisclosure/Confidentiality”), under the Transition Agreement between Deciphera and
Consultant (the “Transition Agreement”) or under any other agreement that is expressly preserved in Section 5 of the
Transition Agreement. This Agreement may be modified only by a writing signed by Consultant and an authorized
representative of Deciphera.


13.4 Assignment and Binding Effect. The Consulting Services to be provided by Consultant are personal in nature. Consultant may
not assign or transfer this Agreement or assign, transfer or subcontract any of Consultant’s rights or obligations under this
Agreement. In no event will Consultant assign or delegate responsibility for actual performance of the Consulting Services to
any third party. Deciphera may transfer or assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of
Consultant. Any purported assignment or transfer in violation of this Section is void. This Agreement will be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective legal representatives, heirs, successors and permitted assigns.


13.5 Notices. All notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and must be given by directing the notice to
the address for the receiving party set forth in this Agreement or at such other address as the receiving party may specify in
writing under this procedure. Notices to Deciphera will be marked “Attention: Chief Scientific Officer” with a copy to
“Attention: General Counsel”. All notices must be given (a) by personal delivery, with receipt acknowledged; (b) by prepaid
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; or (c) by prepaid recognized next business day delivery service. Notices
will be effective upon receipt or at a later date stated in the notice.


13.6 Governing Law. This Agreement and any disputes relating to or arising out of this Agreement will be governed by, construed,
and interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Kansas, without regard to any choice of law principle that
would require the application of the law of another jurisdiction. The parties agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of
the state and federal courts located in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and waive any defense of inconvenient forum to
the maintenance of any action or proceeding in such courts.


13.7 Severability; Reformation. Each provision in this Agreement is independent and severable from the others, and no provision
will be rendered unenforceable because any other provision is found by a proper authority to be invalid or unenforceable in
whole or in part. If any provision of this Agreement is found by such an authority to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or
in part, such provision shall be changed and interpreted so as to best accomplish the objectives of such unenforceable or
invalid provision and the intent of the parties, within the limits of applicable law.


13.8 No Strict Construction; Headings. This Agreement has been prepared jointly and will not be strictly construed against either
party. The section headings are included solely for
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convenience of reference and will not control or affect the meaning or interpretation of any of the provisions of this
Agreement.


13.9 Waivers. Any delay in enforcing a party’s rights under this Agreement, or any waiver as to a particular default or other matter,
will not constitute a waiver of such party’s rights to the future enforcement of its rights under this Agreement, except with
respect to an express written waiver relating to a particular matter for a particular period of time signed by Consultant and an
authorized representative of the waiving party, as applicable.


13.10 Remedies. Consultant agrees that (a) Deciphera may be irreparably injured by a breach of this Agreement by Consultant; (b)
money damages would not be an adequate remedy for any such breach; (c) as a remedy for any such breach Deciphera will
be entitled to seek equitable relief, including injunctive relief and specific performance, without being required by Consultant
to post a bond; and (d) such remedy will not be the exclusive remedy for any breach of this Agreement.


13.11 Material Nonpublic Information. Consultant hereby acknowledges that it is aware that United States and other applicable
securities laws prohibit any person who has material, non-public information about a company from purchasing or selling
securities of such company or from communicating such information to any person under circumstances in which it is
reasonably foreseeable that such person is likely to purchase or sell such securities. Consultant agrees that it will not use or
cause any third party to use, any of Deciphera’s Confidential Information in contravention of U.S. securities laws.


13.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but
all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. A facsimile or portable document format (“.pdf”) copy of
this Agreement, including the signature pages, will be deemed an original.

[Signature page immediately follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized representative as of the Effective
Date.

DECIPHERA PHARMACEUTICALS, LLC
By:_______________________________________
Name: Steven Hoerter
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: _________________________________

DANIEL L. FLYNN
__________________________________________
Date:_____________________________________
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BUSINESS TERMS EXHIBIT

CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH DANIEL L. FLYNN

Dated: January 1, 2024

1. Consulting Services:

Consultant will provide the following Consulting Services to Deciphera:

During the period January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 (the “2024 Consulting Period”)

To the extent requested by the Chair of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors or the Chair of the Parent Company Board of
Directors’ Science & Technology Committee, provide scientific consulting advice to such bodies. The “Parent Company” means
Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.


To the extent requested by Deciphera’s Chief Scientific Officer (“CSO”), provide transition services, scientific consulting advice
and/or consulting advice with respect to Deciphera’s research organization.

To the extent requested by Deciphera’s General Counsel (or designee), provide consulting services in respect of patent matters,
including, without limitation, as a witness or an expert.

To the extent requested by Deciphera’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) or CSO, provide any additional services that are in the
nature of consulting services.

During the period January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2027 (the “2025-2027 Consulting Period”):

To the extent requested by the Deciphera’s General Counsel (or designee), provide consulting services in respect of patent matters,
including, without limitation, as a witness or an expert.

Consultant shall perform consulting services at reasonable times consistent with the timely completion of services and with any particular
scheduling needs associated with the performance of services. Consultant and Deciphera shall strive to reach mutual agreement on timing and
scheduling. In order to facilitate the provision of consulting services, Deciphera will provide Consultant with Deciphera equipment and
materials as determined by the CSO and CEO. In the event the Board of Directors of the Parent Company forms a Scientific Advisory Board
(“SAB”) and invites Consultant to be a member thereof, service on any such SAB shall be covered by a separate agreement for such purpose.

It is anticipated that Deciphera’s needs for Consultant’s services will be no greater than 80 hours per month for the 2024 Consulting Period. It
is further anticipated that in most months in the 2025-2027 Consulting Period, Deciphera’s needs for Consultant’s services shall not exceed
20 hours per month; provided that it is anticipated that for isolated months, such needs may require up to 150 hours in a month. Consultant
shall not perform services for Deciphera in any month of the 2024 Consulting Period exceeding 80 hours and shall not perform services for
Deciphera in any month of the 2025-2027 Consulting Period exceeding 150 hours except, in either case, if the CEO or the CSO specifically
approves in writing in advance the performance of additional services beyond 80 hours or 150 hours in a month, as applicable.
Consultant shall perform consulting services from his residence or other locations of his choosing outside Deciphera, except when Deciphera
reasonably determines that the nature of requested services requires
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performance of services at a particular location. 
2. Compensation:


Fees: As full consideration for all requested and authorized Consulting Services performed by Consultant, Deciphera or its designee
will pay to Consultant a fee of $500 per hour.

Invoicing: No later than the last day of each calendar month, Consultant will invoice Deciphera for all requested and authorized
Consulting Services rendered and related approved expenses incurred during the preceding month. Invoices should reference this
Agreement and should be submitted to Deciphera to the attention of apinvoices@deciphera.com referencing the PO #. Invoices will
set forth the time spent (expressed in hours to the nearest tenth of an hour) in each day, a summary of the activities performed in each
day and any other detail as Deciphera may reasonably require. Invoices will be payable in U.S. Dollars. Undisputed payments will be
made by Deciphera within forty-five (45) days after Deciphera’s receipt of Consultant’s invoice, request for reimbursement and all
supporting documentation.


3. Term:

The Engagement will begin on the Effective Date and will continue to and end on December 31, 2027 unless earlier terminated

pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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CONSULTING AGREEMENT

THIS CONSULTING AGREEMENT (together with the attached Business Terms Exhibit, the “Agreement”), is made as of January 1,
2024 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with a principal
business address at 200 Smith Street, Waltham, MA 02451 (“Deciphera”), and Daniel L. Flynn (“Consultant”). Deciphera desires to have
the benefit of Consultant’s knowledge and experience, and Consultant desires to provide services to Deciphera, all as provided in this
Agreement. Deciphera and Consultant are referred to herein collectively as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party”.

1. Condition to Effectiveness. The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent on the continuation of Consultant’s employment with
Deciphera pursuant to the October 13, 2017 Employment Agreement between Consultant and Deciphera as amended by Amendment
No. 1 dated as of June 10, 2020 (the “Employment Agreement”) to and including December 31, 2023 and the voluntary termination
of Consultant’s employment with the Company on that date. If such condition is not satisfied, this Agreement shall not take effect.


2. Consulting Services. Deciphera retains Consultant, and Consultant agrees to provide, consulting and advisory services to Deciphera
as Deciphera may from time to time reasonably request and as specified in the attached Business Terms Exhibit (the “Consulting
Services”). Any changes to the Consulting Services (and any related compensation adjustments) must be agreed to in writing
between Consultant and Deciphera prior to implementation of the changes. 


3. Compensation. As full consideration for Consulting Services provided under this Agreement, Deciphera or its designee agree to pay
Consultant and reimburse expenses as described in the Business Terms Exhibit (the “Compensation”). For the avoidance of doubt,
Consultant shall not be entitled to new equity grants; provided that the Parties intend that the transition from Consultant’s status as an
employee pursuant to the Employment Agreement to his status as Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall not affect the
continuation of the Parties’ service relationship for purposes of Consultant’s previously granted equity rights.


4. Expenses. Except for expenses for travel, all expenses relating to the Consulting Services are to be borne by Consultant in exchange
for the Compensation and will not be reimbursed by Deciphera unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Deciphera in advance. If
Deciphera agrees to reimburse Consultant for any reasonable, necessary, and prior-approved out-of-pocket expenditures, that are
incurred directly in connection with the Consulting Services and are in accordance with Deciphera’s travel and expense policy for
non-employee travel, the actual costs will be passed through to Deciphera with no markup.


5. Performance. Consultant agrees to provide the Consulting Services to Deciphera in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations and the highest professional standards. Consultant represents and covenants that Consultant has not been, and is not under
consideration to be (a) debarred from providing services pursuant to Section 306 of the United States Federal Food Drug and
Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. § 335a; (b) excluded, debarred or suspended from, or otherwise ineligible to participate in, any federal or
state health care program or federal procurement or non-procurement programs (as that term is defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(f));
(c) disqualified by any government or regulatory agencies from performing specific services, and is not subject to a pending
disqualification proceeding; or (d) convicted of a criminal offense related to the provision of health care items or services, or under
investigation or subject to any such action that is pending.
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6. Compliance with Obligations to Third Parties. Consultant represents and warrants to Deciphera that the terms of this Agreement
and Consultant’s performance of Consulting Services do not and will not conflict with any of Consultant’s obligations to any third
parties. Consultant agrees not to use any trade secrets or other confidential information of any other person, firm, corporation,
institution or other third party in connection with any of the Consulting Services. Consultant agrees not to make any use of any funds,
space, personnel, facilities, equipment or other resources of a third party in performing the Consulting Services, nor take any other
action that would result in a third party asserting ownership of, or other rights in, any Work Product (defined in Section 6), unless
agreed upon in writing in advance by Deciphera.


7. Work Product. Consultant will promptly and fully disclose in confidence to Deciphera and its affiliates all inventions, discoveries,
improvements, ideas, concepts, designs, processes, formulations, products, computer programs, works of authorship, databases, mask
works, processes, methodologies, trade secrets, know-how, information, data, documentation, reports, research, creations, copyrights,
derivative works and copyrightable works, and other products arising from or made in the performance of (solely or jointly with
others) the Consulting Services (whether or not patentable or subject to copyright or subject to trade secret protection) (collectively,
the “Work Product”). Consultant will assign and does hereby assign to Deciphera and its affiliates all rights, in the United States
and throughout the world, whether existing under statute or at common law or equity, now or hereafter in force or recognized to
Work Product. Consultant will keep and maintain adequate and current written records of all Work Product, and such records will be
available to and remain the sole property of Deciphera at all times. For purposes of the copyright laws of the United States, Work
Product shall be considered specifically ordered for Deciphera and its affiliates, and constitute “works made for hire” under the
United States Copyright Laws (17 U.S.C. § 101 et seq., and any amendments) or similar law of any other jurisdiction, except to the
extent such Work Product cannot by law be “works made for hire.” If for any reason Work Product cannot by law be “works made
for hire,” Consultant will assign and does hereby assign all right, title, and interest in the Work Product to Deciphera and its affiliates
in perpetuity. Consultant represents and covenants that Consultant has and will have the right to transfer and assign to Deciphera
ownership of all Work Product. Consultant will execute all documents, and take any and all actions needed, all without further
consideration, in order to confirm Deciphera’s rights as outlined above. In the event that Consultant should fail or refuse to execute
such documents within a reasonable time, Consultant appoints Deciphera as attorney to execute and deliver any such documents on
Consultant’s behalf.


8. Confidentiality.

8.1 “Confidential Information” means (a) any and all non-public scientific, technical, business, regulatory, intellectual property or

financial information or data or trade secrets in whatever form (written, oral or visual) that is furnished or made available to
Consultant by or on behalf of Deciphera, (b) all information contained in or comprised of Deciphera Materials (defined in
Section 9); and (c) all Work Product. Confidential Information is, and will remain, the sole property of Deciphera. 

8.2 Obligations. During and at all times following the Term (as defined in Section 12), Consultant agrees to (a) hold in confidence all
Confidential Information, and not disclose Confidential Information without the prior written consent of Deciphera; (b) use
Confidential Information solely in connection with the Consulting Services; (c) treat Confidential Information with no less
than a reasonable degree of care; (d) reproduce Confidential Information solely to the extent necessary to provide the
Consulting Services, with all such reproductions being considered Confidential Information; and (e) notify Deciphera of any
unauthorized disclosure of Confidential Information promptly
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upon becoming aware of such disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the non-disclosure and non-use obligations
imposed by this Agreement with respect to trade secrets included in the Confidential Information will continue for as long as
Deciphera continues to treat such Confidential Information as a trade secret. If Consultant is required by a governmental
authority or by order of a court of competent jurisdiction to disclose any Confidential Information, Consultant will give
Deciphera prompt written notice thereof and Consultant will take all reasonable and lawful actions to avoid or minimize the
degree of such disclosure. Consultant will cooperate reasonably with Deciphera in any efforts to seek a protective order.


8.3 Exceptions. Consultant’s obligations of non-disclosure and non-use under this Agreement will not apply to any portion of
Confidential Information that Consultant can demonstrate, by competent proof:


(a) is generally known to the public at the time of disclosure or becomes generally known through no wrongful act on the
part of Consultant;


(b) becomes known to Consultant on a non-confidential basis through disclosure by sources other than Deciphera that have
no fiduciary, contractual or other legal duty to maintain the confidentiality of such Confidential Information and that
have the legal right to disclose such Confidential Information without restriction; or


(c) is independently developed by Consultant without reference to or reliance upon Confidential Information and unrelated
to the performance of Consulting Services.


8.4 Defend Trade Secrets Act. Deciphera provides notice to Consultant that pursuant to the United States Defend Trade Secrets Act
of 2016:


(a) An individual will not be held criminally or civilly liable under any United States federal or state trade secret law for
the disclosure of a trade secret that is made (i) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official or to an
attorney, and solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (ii) in a complaint or
other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal; and


(b) An individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose
the trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the
individual (i) files any document containing the trade secret under seal; and (ii) does not disclose the trade secret,
except pursuant to court order.


In addition, this Agreement does not prohibit Consultant from participating in or cooperating with any government
investigation or proceeding, nor does this Agreement restrict Consultant from disclosing Confidential Information to
government agencies in a reasonable manner when permitted by applicable state or federal “whistleblower” or other laws.
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8.5 Personal Identifiable Information.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 8, (a) Consultant will not disclose to any third party nor use any
protected health information, personal identifiable data, or biological samples of subjects enrolled in clinical studies that are
the subject of services, or any other information that could be used to identify an individual (collectively, “Personal Data”)
except as expressly required in the Agreement and as long as such disclosure and use is in compliance with applicable law;
and (b) such restrictions on the disclosure and use of Personal Data will remain in place for as long as such restrictions are
required under applicable law. Deciphera’s use and disclosure of Personal Data will be in accordance with applicable Laws
and regulations and the relevant consent documents.

9. Deciphera Materials. Confidential Information of Deciphera and its affiliates includes (a) materials, Work Product, intellectual
property rights, records , documents, data, records, materials, compounds, apparatus, equipment and other physical property
furnished scientific and medical data, investigator brochures, protocols and correspondence with or from institutional review
boards and other entities with oversight responsibilities for clinical studies that are the subject of Consulting Services, including
ethics committees and data safety monitoring committees; (b) development and marketing plans, regulatory and business
strategies, financial information, and forecasts of Deciphera; and (c) all information of third parties that Deciphera has an
obligation to keep confidential, whether or not, in each case, such materials or information are marked or identified as
confidential, furnished or made available by or on behalf of Deciphera and its affiliates to Consultant in connection with this
Agreement (“Deciphera Materials”) are and will remain the sole property of Deciphera and its affiliates. Consultant will use
Deciphera Materials only as necessary to perform the Consulting Services and will not transfer or make available to any third
party the Deciphera Materials without the express prior written consent of Deciphera and its affiliates. Consultant will return to
Deciphera and its affiliates any and all Deciphera Materials upon request.


10. Publication; Publicity. Consultant may not publish or refer to Work Product, in whole or in part, without the prior express written
consent of Deciphera and its affiliates. Consultant will not use the name, logo, trade name, service mark, or trademark, or any other
identifiers including but not limited to any simulation, abbreviation, or adaptation of same, or the name of Deciphera or any of its
affiliates for publicity, promotion, or other uses without Deciphera’s prior written consent.


11. Notice of Other Service. Consultant shall notify Deciphera in writing of any employment or engagement as an independent contractor
for any other party before undertaking any such commitment or otherwise commencing any such employment or engagement during
the Term, as defined below. Such notice shall set forth the identity of the employer or other contracting party, the nature of
Consultant’s services and the anticipated time commitment of Consultant. Consultant shall share any other information that
Deciphera may reasonably request regarding any such employment or engagement and otherwise confer with Deciphera regarding
any such anticipated employment or engagement; provided that Consultant shall not be obligated to violate any confidentiality
obligations to any other party. Nothing in this Section 11 or otherwise in this Agreement shall be construed to modify any of
Consultant’s obligations under any other surviving agreement between Consultant and either Deciphera or Deciphera
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., including without limitation Consultant’s obligations under Section 7 of the Employment Agreement, entitled
“Nondisclosure/Confidentiality.”
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12. Expiration/Termination. The term of Deciphera’s engagement of Consultant pursuant to this Agreement (the “Engagement”) will
commence on the Effective Date and expire at the end of the period specified in the “Term” Section of Business Terms Exhibit,
unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Section 12 or extended by mutual written agreement of the parties (the
“Term”). Deciphera may terminate the Engagement at any time with or without cause upon not less than ten (10) days’ prior written
notice to Consultant. Consultant may terminate the Engagement at any time with or without cause upon not less than sixty (60) days’
prior written notice to Deciphera. Any expiration or other termination of the Term shall be without prejudice to any obligation of
either party that has accrued prior to the effective date of expiration or termination. Upon expiration or other termination of the Term,
neither Consultant nor Deciphera will have any further obligations under this Agreement, except that (a) Consultant will terminate all
Consulting Services in progress in an orderly manner as soon as practicable and in accordance with a schedule agreed to by
Deciphera, unless Deciphera specifies in the notice of termination that Consulting Services in progress should be completed; (b)
Consultant will deliver to Deciphera all Work Product made through expiration or other termination of the Term; (c) Deciphera will
pay Consultant any monies due and owing Consultant, up to the time of expiration or other termination of the Term, for Consulting
Services properly performed and all authorized expenses actually incurred; (d) Consultant will immediately return to Deciphera all
Deciphera Materials and other Confidential Information and copies thereof provided to Consultant under this Agreement; and (e) the
terms, conditions and obligations under Sections 7, 8, 9, 10 and 13.2 to 13.11 inclusive will survive expiration or other termination of
the Term.


13. Miscellaneous.

13.1 Independent Contractor. The parties understand and agree that Consultant is an independent contractor and not an agent or

employee of Deciphera. Consultant has no authority to obligate Deciphera by contract or otherwise. Consultant will not
be eligible for any employee benefits of Deciphera and expressly waives any rights to any employee benefits. Consultant
will bear sole responsibility for paying and reporting Consultant’s own applicable federal and state income taxes, social
security taxes, unemployment insurance, workers’ compensation, and health or disability insurance, retirement benefits,
and other welfare or pension benefits, if any, and indemnifies and holds Deciphera harmless from and against any
liability with respect to such taxes, benefits and other matters. Consultant further acknowledges and agrees to the
following:


(a) Deciphera shall treat payments to Consultant as Internal Revenue Service Form 1099 income and shall not withhold any
employment taxes on Consultant’s behalf; 


(b) while Consultant will receive instruction on the objects and goals for which Consultant is responsible, Deciphera has no
right to control the manner in which Consultant performs services under this Agreement and Consultant is free to
perform such services in the manner Consultant deems fit; provided that such performance is consistent with
recognized standards for performing such services; 


(c) Consultant shall not use Deciphera’s trade names, trademarks, service names or service marks without the prior written
approval of the Company; and 


(d) if, at any time, Consultant’s status with Deciphera as an independent contractor changes or Consultant is ever deemed to
be an employee of Deciphera for any
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period during the Term, each of the covenants set forth above and this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect in their entirety until and unless replaced with a subsequent and superseding agreement.

13.2 Use of Name. Consultant consents to the use by Deciphera of Consultant’s name on its website, in press releases, company
brochures, offering documents, presentations, reports or other documents in printed or electronic form, and any documents
filed with or submitted to any governmental or regulatory agency or any securities exchange or listing entity; provided, that
such materials or presentations accurately describe the nature of Consultant’s relationship with or contribution to Deciphera.


13.3 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with regard to its subject matter and supersedes
all prior or contemporaneous written or oral representations, agreements and understandings between the parties relating to
that subject matter; provided that this Agreement shall not be construed to supersede any ongoing obligations under the
Employment Agreement (including without limitation Consultant’s continuing obligations under Section 7 of the
Employment Agreement, entitled “Nondisclosure/Confidentiality”), under the Transition Agreement between Deciphera
and Consultant (the “Transition Agreement”) or under any other agreement that is expressly preserved in Section 5 of the
Transition Agreement. This Agreement may be modified only by a writing signed by Consultant and an authorized
representative of Deciphera.


13.4 Assignment and Binding Effect. The Consulting Services to be provided by Consultant are personal in nature. Consultant may
not assign or transfer this Agreement or assign, transfer or subcontract any of Consultant’s rights or obligations under this
Agreement. In no event will Consultant assign or delegate responsibility for actual performance of the Consulting Services
to any third party. Deciphera may transfer or assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of
Consultant. Any purported assignment or transfer in violation of this Section is void. This Agreement will be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective legal representatives, heirs, successors and permitted assigns.

13.5 Notices. All notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and must be given by directing the notice to
the address for the receiving party set forth in this Agreement or at such other address as the receiving party may specify in
writing under this procedure. Notices to Deciphera will be marked “Attention: Chief Scientific Officer” with a copy to
“Attention: General Counsel”. All notices must be given (a) by personal delivery, with receipt acknowledged; (b) by prepaid
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; or (c) by prepaid recognized next business day delivery service. Notices
will be effective upon receipt or at a later date stated in the notice.

13.6 Governing Law. This Agreement and any disputes relating to or arising out of this Agreement will be governed by, construed,
and interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Kansas, without regard to any choice of law principle that
would require the application of the law of another jurisdiction. The parties agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of
the state and federal courts located in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and waive any defense of inconvenient forum to
the maintenance of any action or proceeding in such courts.

13.7 Severability; Reformation. Each provision in this Agreement is independent and severable from the others, and no provision
will be rendered unenforceable because any other provision is found by a proper authority to be invalid or unenforceable in
whole
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or in part. If any provision of this Agreement is found by such an authority to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in
part, such provision shall be changed and interpreted so as to best accomplish the objectives of such unenforceable or
invalid provision and the intent of the parties, within the limits of applicable law.

13.8 No Strict Construction; Headings. This Agreement has been prepared jointly and will not be strictly construed against either
party. The section headings are included solely for convenience of reference and will not control or affect the meaning or
interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

13.9 Waivers. Any delay in enforcing a party’s rights under this Agreement, or any waiver as to a particular default or other matter,
will not constitute a waiver of such party’s rights to the future enforcement of its rights under this Agreement, except with
respect to an express written waiver relating to a particular matter for a particular period of time signed by Consultant and an
authorized representative of the waiving party, as applicable.

13.10 Remedies. Consultant agrees that (a) Deciphera may be irreparably injured by a breach of this Agreement by Consultant; (b)
money damages would not be an adequate remedy for any such breach; (c) as a remedy for any such breach Deciphera will
be entitled to seek equitable relief, including injunctive relief and specific performance, without being required by Consultant
to post a bond; and (d) such remedy will not be the exclusive remedy for any breach of this Agreement.

13.11 Material Nonpublic Information. Consultant hereby acknowledges that it is aware that United States and other applicable
securities laws prohibit any person who has material, non-public information about a company from purchasing or selling
securities of such company or from communicating such information to any person under circumstances in which it is
reasonably foreseeable that such person is likely to purchase or sell such securities. Consultant agrees that it will not use or
cause any third party to use, any of Deciphera’s Confidential Information in contravention of U.S. securities laws.

13.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but
all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. A facsimile or portable document format (“.pdf”) copy of
this Agreement, including the signature pages, will be deemed an original.

[Signature page immediately follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized representative as of the Effective
Date.

DECIPHERA PHARMACEUTICALS, LLC

By: /s/ Steven Hoerter

Name: Steven Hoerter

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: August 1, 2023

DANIEL L. FLYNN

/s/ Daniel L. Flynn, Ph.D.

Date: August 1, 2023
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BUSINESS TERMS EXHIBIT

CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH DANIEL L. FLYNN

Dated: January 1, 2024

1. Consulting Services:

Consultant will provide the following Consulting Services to Deciphera:

During the period January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 (the “2024 Consulting Period”)

To the extent requested by the Chair of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors or the Chair of the Parent Company Board of
Directors’ Science & Technology Committee, provide scientific consulting advice to such bodies. The “Parent Company” means
Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

To the extent requested by Deciphera’s Chief Scientific Officer (“CSO”), provide transition services, scientific consulting advice
and/or consulting advice with respect to Deciphera’s research organization.

To the extent requested by Deciphera’s General Counsel (or designee), provide consulting services in respect of patent matters,
including, without limitation, as a witness or an expert.

To the extent requested by Deciphera’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) or CSO, provide any additional services that are in the
nature of consulting services.


During the period January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2027 (the “2025-2027 Consulting Period”): 
To the extent requested by the Deciphera’s General Counsel (or designee), provide consulting services in respect of patent matters,
including, without limitation, as a witness or an expert.


Consultant shall perform consulting services at reasonable times consistent with the timely completion of services and with any particular
scheduling needs associated with the performance of services. Consultant and Deciphera shall strive to reach mutual agreement on timing and
scheduling. In order to facilitate the provision of consulting services, Deciphera will provide Consultant with Deciphera equipment and
materials as determined by the CSO and CEO. In the event the Board of Directors of the Parent Company forms a Scientific Advisory Board
(“SAB”) and invites Consultant to be a member thereof, service on any such SAB shall be covered by a separate agreement for such purpose.


It is anticipated that Deciphera’s needs for Consultant’s services will be no greater than 80 hours per month for the 2024 Consulting Period. It
is further anticipated that in most months in the 2025-2027 Consulting Period, Deciphera’s needs for Consultant’s services shall not exceed
20 hours per month; provided that it is anticipated that for isolated months, such needs may require up to 150 hours in a month. Consultant
shall not perform services for Deciphera in any month of the 2024 Consulting Period exceeding 80 hours and shall not perform services for
Deciphera in any month of the 2025-2027 Consulting Period exceeding 150 hours except, in either case, if the CEO or the CSO specifically
approves in writing in advance the performance of additional services beyond 80 hours or 150 hours in a month, as applicable. 
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Consultant shall perform consulting services from his residence or other locations of his choosing outside Deciphera, except when Deciphera
reasonably determines that the nature of requested services requires performance of services at a particular location.

2. Compensation:

Fees: As full consideration for all requested and authorized Consulting Services performed by Consultant, Deciphera or its designee
will pay to Consultant a fee of $500 per hour.

Invoicing: No later than the last day of each calendar month, Consultant will invoice Deciphera for all requested and authorized
Consulting Services rendered and related approved expenses incurred during the preceding month. Invoices should reference this
Agreement and should be submitted to Deciphera to the attention of apinvoices@deciphera.com referencing the PO #. Invoices will
set forth the time spent (expressed in hours to the nearest tenth of an hour) in each day, a summary of the activities performed in each
day and any other detail as Deciphera may reasonably require. Invoices will be payable in U.S. Dollars. Undisputed payments will be
made by Deciphera within forty-five (45) days after Deciphera’s receipt of Consultant’s invoice, request for reimbursement and all
supporting documentation.

3. Term:

The Engagement will begin on the Effective Date and will continue to and end on December 31, 2027 unless earlier terminated
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Steven L. Hoerter, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: October 30, 2023 By: /s/ Steven L. Hoerter
Steven L. Hoerter
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas P. Kelly, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: October 30, 2023 By: /s/ Thomas P. Kelly
Thomas P. Kelly
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended September 30,
2023 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, Steven L. Hoerter, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to the best of his knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: October 30, 2023 By: /s/ Steven L. Hoerter
Steven L. Hoerter
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended September 30,
2023 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, Thomas P. Kelly, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best
of his knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: October 30, 2023 By: /s/ Thomas P. Kelly
Thomas P. Kelly
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)


